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2020 Best 100f East China Real Fstate Developers Brasi Valae
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2020 Bes1 100 of China Real Estate Developers

BIIX AR FRBARLS

LBEARA AR
FRARERAL A
Z0=08ZA

The 2020 Appraisal Results Conference of China Top 500 Real
Estate Developers jointly hosted by China Real Estate Association,
Shanghai E-House Real Estate Research Institute (/& 5/EEH
EET7EBT) and China Real Estate Appraisal Center was officially
held. According to the appraisal results, Datang Real Estate was
awarded as one of the Top 100 Real Estate Developers in China
and Top 10 for Stable Operation in 2020!

At the 2020 Appraisal Results Conference of China Real Estate
Corporate Brand Value jointly hosted by China Real Estate
Association, Shanghai E-House Real Estate Research Institute (L&
B 5 EEMEMITF) and China Real Estate Appraisal Center,
Datang Real Estate was awarded as one of the “Eastern China Top
10 Real Estate Developers in 2020 in terms of Brand Value (2020
B i EE R B (b 3 TR BB (B 2E 5R1058)” by virtue of its strong
brand strength and ranked 8th, showing the high recognition of
the brand value of Datang Real Estate by the national industry
institutions and professional market organizations and the
acceptance of the development achievements of Datang Real
Estate brand.

Datang Real Estate was awarded the title of “Real Estate Outstanding
Award 2020 (20207 BIFE K R W HE ) at the Boao Real
Estate Forum hosted by the Guandian Real Estate Agency, which
reflects the recognition of Datang Real Estate’s strength and
corporate brand by industry research institutions and mainstream
media, and also proves the great development potential of Datang
Real Estate.

Ll B KRR
PE AR A
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AWARDS OF THE GROUP
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AWARDS OF THE GROUP
KEFkRE

Datang Real Estate won the “2020 China’s Most Potential Valuable
Real Estate Developers” award granted by Leju Finance Research
Institute through modeling and analysis of land reserve, growth
rate of sales area of major real estate developers, and the number
of real estates in various tier cities in the first half of 2020, which
demonstrates the recognition of development potential of Datang
Real Estate for the year.

The 10th Annual Meeting of the Most Valuable Real Estate
Enterprises of China was held in Shenzhen, which was hosted
by the National Business Daily, at which the “Valuable Real Estate
Ranking of China for 2020" was officially released. Datang Real
Estate was awarded as the “Annual Valuable Real Estate Enterprise”
with its strong comprehensive strength.

The Top 100 List of Chinese Property Projects (R Bl EE B (X & 58
1) was unveiled in Guangzhou. A list of outstanding real estate
enterprises was selected by Times Media based on the industry
database and other data sources and corporate reports. Datang
Real Estate was awarded as one the “2020 Most Potential Real
Estate Enterprises of China” with its good development potential.

KB E SR B 44 = B AC AT 7o B AB B2 B9 [ 20204F
TREEENEERD BB - ZEELLEH
ERERRBRBYH S REER2020F FFFR il
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SERENERRE

PEENSRASERE
2020E1F

The 13th China Media Management Conference and the Top 100
List of 2019-2020 China Media Management Conference hosted
by the Organizing Committee of China Media Management
Conference was held in Xiamen, at which, the Organizing
Committee of China Media Management Conference officially
awarded Datang Real Estate the Annual Brand Value Achievement
Award.

The comprehensive selection of the 15th Kinpan Awards for Hainan
and Guangxi provinces was successfully held in Nanning. After
fierce competition and strict professional selection by the jury,
Dynasty Zhenguan (/& 8:87) in Nanning city, Guangxi province
stood out from many outstanding competing projects and won
the “First Prize in the Annual Comprehensive Class of the Best
Residential Projects”, bringing additional splendor to the list of
the year!

The list of the second batch of winning projects of the 9th
(2019-2020) China Real Estate “Guangsha Award” was officially
announced. With its excellent comprehensive quality, the project
of Dynasty Shengshi Phases | (KB Bttt —HA) successfully stood
out from the rest of other projects across the country and won
the 9th “Guangsha Award". It is the only resettlement project in
the real estate industry in Guangxi Province that won the award.

7)

9)
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
FEHE

WU DI R
CHAIRMAN =&

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board of Directors”) of
Datang Group Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and together with its
subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”), | am pleased to present the audited
annual results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2020.

MACRO INDUSTRY ANALYSIS

2020 is an extraordinary year in the history of China. The frequent
occurrence of Black Swan incidents, the outbreak of the epidemic in
China at the beginning of the year, the fusing of stock market in the
United States, and the second rebound of the epidemic at abroad at the
end of the year, etc, all of which have a profound impact on the global
economy and society. Amidst huge difficulties and challenges, China’s
economy achieved a “V"-shaped recovery in the second quarter, and the
actual GDP growth rate in the fourth quarter reached 6.5% year-on-year.
In 2020, China's GDP exceeded RMB100 trillion for the first time, with an
actual increase of 2.3% year-on-year, making it the only major economy
in the world to achieve positive economic growth.
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However, the epidemic has not changed the keynote of “residential
properties are for living, not speculation” in the real estate market.
Localized policy has beenimplemented to accurately control and stabilize
the market in the PRC. Particularly, since the second half of the year, the
financial supervision on real estate market has been strengthening, and
several cities with unstable housing prices and land premiums have
successively upgraded their control policies with an aim to promote
the rational return of the market. Nevertheless, sales of commercial
properties for the whole year still achieved breakthrough of exceeding

RMB17 trillion, up by 8.7% year-on-year.

OPERATING RESULTS

During the reporting period, the Group recognised sales revenue during
the year of RMB10.6 billion, representing a significant increase of 30.6%
compared with last year, and achieved net profit for the year of RMB0.95
billion, representing an increase of 51.4% compared with last year. The
net profit attributable to owners of the Company was RMB0.715 billion.
In order to return the trust and support of shareholders, the Board of
Directors proposed the distribution of a final dividend of RMB11 cents
(equivalent to approximately HK$13 cents) per share for the year 2020.

WORK REVIEW FOR 2020

“The layout of urban agglomerations and the deep cultivation of
metropolitan areas” is our basic strategy. During the reporting period,
the Group continued to deepen its understanding of deep cultivation in
the metropolitan area, closely followed the industry situation, adhered
to the implementation of the investment standard that prioritizes cash
flow indicators, pay equal attention to deep cultivation and external
expansion, and replenish land reserves effectively. During the year, the
Group obtained land reserves with the total GFA of 8.39 million sg.m.
and entered into 14 new cities, which further opened up space for
regional layout, of which, the area of of new land bank in the Yangtze
River Delta was 1.69 million sg.m., accounting for 20% of the newly land
bank during this year.
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ERHE

As of 31 December 2020, the Group has a total of 123 real estate projects,
each in various stages of development, in six large economic zones, with
a total site area of approximately 20.44 million sq.m. in land bank. The
Group was ranked 73rd among the Sales Top 200 Ranking List of China
Real Estate Enterprise for 2020 by CRIC Real Estate Research Institute.

While expanding our territory, the Group formally implemented a
platform-based strategy in 2020. With this strategy, through an open
platform and a market-oriented transaction mechanism, parties
participating in the platform such as partners, upstream and downstream
suppliers, and funders can achieve resource sharing, value creation, and
ultimately complete the sharing of interests of all parties and build a

win-win ecosystem.

2020 is a milestone for the Group to achieve a capital breakthrough.
In December 2020, the Company successfully listed on the Main Board
of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”),
raised total proceeds of approximately HK$1.49 billion (equivalent to
approximately RMB1.26 billion).

In addition, in the anti-epidemic process in 2020, the Group also
demonstrated our social responsibility and duty. The Group donated

120205124318 - AEEEe R AR EHEA 123
BFENTREMAERENNEERER - TRBEEEREL
2,044 ¥ 730K o A& B 5o i it A B 2B AT 482020
FREEEDENETop 20080HTEE735 -
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D EREELET  HEEESM49EBTIEA
R¥&#N2618TT) ©

LEN - FE2020F B IBIBE M TUR BIEF - IR TR
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a total of 430,000 materials to 25 medical institutions, 20 government
anti-epidemic departments, Red Cross, international organizations, and
individuals in 14 cities across the country, all of which contributed to

the gradual and effective control of the domestic epidemic.

OUTLOOK FOR 2021

Looking forward to the future, the Group will always adhere to the
“customer-focused, high-quality and large-scale development theme,
two-wheel drive of platform strategy and product power improvement”
to achieve further growth in performance.

In terms of specific businesses, the Group will continue to firmly
implement the platform strategy, broaden the circle of friends, and
accelerate the gathering of resources. The Group will insist to focus on the
customer’s value perception, and continue to promote the improvement
of product power. The Group will be guided by the requirements of
the capital market, and continue to improve the level of financial and
cost management. In addition, the Group will actively promote the
construction of headquarters in Shanghai, and is determined to create
a more open and compatible platform, introduce more high-quality
resources, and achieve national layout with a better brand image.

REEEZRERAT . —2-ZEFHE 13
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
ERHE

Moreover, the Group will continue to follow closely on the “14th
Five-Year Plan” development strategy of China, firmly implement the
strategy of “making the layout of urban agglomeration, taking root in
metropolitan area”, and adhere to open cooperation. The Group will
grasp the structural and trending opportunities in the new era of China’s
real estate development, steadily expand to cities with high-quality
strategic opportunities, and strive to open up a broader development
space to further consolidate our industry and market position, and
achieve sustained and steady business growth.

gEAN - REEFEEEEK R R - BER
EERBTEMGD - EmERMEE - WERHFHENE
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Meanwhile, the Group will maintain the high degree of transparency
and good corporate governance structure, improve the Company’s
comprehensive management capabilities, enhance its competitiveness,
and actively seek to promote the Company to achieve leapfrog
development through equity investment, introduction of strategic
investors and platform resources, etc., in order to build Datang Real Estate
into a high-quality listed company with sustainable growth capabilities
and achieve win-win situations for customers, employees, society, and

shareholders.

APPRECIATION

Finally, once again, on behalf of the Board of Directors, | would like to
extend my sincere appreciation to all shareholders, employees, partners
and customers for their full support to the Group in 2020!

Datang Group Holdings Limited
Wu Di

Chairman of the Board of Directors

Hong Kong, 16 March 2021
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEENWE D

REVIEW FOR 2020

The outbreak of COVID-19 in 2020 will be remembered by history.
The lockdown and economic standstill of many countries affected
by the COVID-19 led to market volatility and downturn of investors’
confidence. Relying on a sound foundation and a well-known
brand, the Group has coped with the turbulent market conditions
calmly, witnessed good financial performance of 2020. Meanwhile,
we believe that the worst moment of the COVID-19 pandemic is
over, and vaccination could be expected to significantly improve
the global economic outlook in the future. Nevertheless, the
impact of the COVID-19 pandemic will continue. Before the
trend becoming stable, we will prudently manage resources and
adhere to cost control, as well as invest sufficient funds to realize
the strategic deployment of the Group. The management of the
Company currently does not foresee significant disruption in our
business operation due to COVID-19 going forward.

In the first quarter of 2020, the pause button was pressed for the
economy in China. Subsequently, the PRC introduced a series of
anti-epidemic relief policies, which eased the operating pressure of
enterprises to a certain extent. Since the second quarter of 2020, the
epidemic prevention and control in China has achieved remarkable
results, the economy has recovered in an orderly manner, and
the real estate market has ushered in a sales rebound. According
to data from the National Bureau of Statistics, in 2020, the total
sales value of commercial housing was approximately RMB17.4
trillion and the sales area was approximately 1.76 billion square
meters, representing an increase of 8.7% and 2.6% respectively, as
compared with last year. Of which, the growth was strong in first-
tier cities, steady in second-tier cities, and slow in third- and fourth-
tier cities. This shows that the status of the real estate industry in
the national economy is still irreplaceable. With the upgrading of
the national regional strategy, some core cities, node cities and
areas with transportation advantages in the metropolitan area
will be expected to usher in better development opportunities.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEETWE DM

Real Estate Business

In 2020, the Group followed the geographical layout of
2+1+X, focused on existing areas, consolidated existing
layoutin the two urban agglomerations of the Haixi and Beibu
Gulf, and established a relatively stable scale advantage.
Meanwhile, we seized the opportunity of relocating our
headquarters to Shanghai, by taking root quickly in the
Yangtze River Delta region, as well as successively entered
into 14 nodal core cities with economic vitality, such as
Ningbo, Taizhou, Wenzhou, Changzhou, Nantong, Wux
and others. We have strengthened strategic cooperation
with leading companies in the industry, all of which will
lay a solid foundation for the Group to become a national
comprehensive real estate company.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEERWR DN

During the reporting period, the Group's revenue from the
real estate business was RMB10.11 billion. The total GFA
of the land bank was approximately 2044 million square

meters, providing sufficient support for future development.

PREHR  BHEEFHERAARYE
101.BTT - TR EEEREEENA2044
BEYERX AXKBEEREHfTRENX
H: o



AEEBERERAT . —E-2EFH D]

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Newly acquired land

In 2020, the Group adopted various land acquisition
methods such as public bidding, auction and listing and
joint ventures, a total of 44 high-quality land parcels were
obtained by the Group, with a total planned GFA of 8.39

million square meters.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEEFRE DM

2. Land Bank 2. TR
As of 31 December 2020, the total GFA of the Group's HZE2020F128318 - AEB LiEHR
land bank was approximately 20.44 million sq.m. FREEMEA A20448F 77K o EFRRR2020
among which the GFA of completed properties for F128318 - BRIHEEMEI4EFH
sale was 1.34 million sq.m., the rentable GFA for K BERENAHEHAEEI7EFE K -
investment was 0.17 million sq.m. and the GFA of FEERYEIBEFHK o

properties under development was 18.93 million sg.m.
as of 31 December 2020.

Actual/ Completed Percentage

City where Estimated but  GFAheld  Total GFA of interest

the project is date of undelivered  for property under owned by

located Project name completion  Site area GFA investment development  Total GFA the Group
BB/ Bt BATARN BENRRE RETH4E

fesm B4R RIBE GBER NREER NREER 0 $ER ARER 2R@ER

(square (square (square (square (square
meters) meters) meters) meters) meters)

(Fh%)  (Fmk)  (FAX)  (FAK)  (FAK)

Changzhou  Dynasty Zhongnan Shangyuecheng 200 53338 - - 138,941 138,941 36%
i REDE LI
Changzhou  Yuhu Shangguan Garden 200 58,093 - - 138,600 138,600 40%
2 EREETR
Chengdu ~ Jiuyue Lanwan Project 203 68901 - - 229893 29893 40%
wa RREER
Chengdu  Tianyue Royalty 203 58,066 - - 188,169 188,169 26%
wH INALE
Fuzhou Dynasty Shuxiang Yazhu 200 54,189 = = 178821 178821 100%
M REEETE
Fuzhou Pukou Dynasty Royalty 202 15954 - - 53,597 53597 80%
M BORELR
Fuzhou Longjiang Jiujin Pavilion 203 113059 - - 373011 373011 3%
i RINGE
Guigang Guigang Dynasty Royalty 2022 4076 = = 191,686 191,686 63%
&t ERAELR
Guigang (uigang Yating 2004 45,229 = = 178,009 178,009 26%
&t ST
Guigang Guigang Chenguang 204 32760 - - 168,766 168,766 34%
& ¥y

>



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

REREBEZRARAE - —Z-TFFH

EEENWR DM
Actual/ Completed Percentage
City where Estimated but ~ GFAheld  Total GFA of interest
the project is date of undelivered for property under owned by
located Project name completion  Site area GFA  investment development  Total GFA the Group
BB/ Bif BATARN BENERE RYtnEE

fesm  BRER RIKE GHER HREER NREER 0 @R 4REER ARERR

(square (square (square (square (square

meters) meters) meters) meters) meters)

(FA%)  (Fa%)  (Fmk)  (FAK)  (¥AX)
Kunming  Tianyu Smart City 2005 138,601 - - 497,798 497,798 20%
2H REEEH
Liuzhou Liuzhou Dynasty Mansion 204 74989 - - 2913% 2913% 51%
Ll INAEEE
Liuzhou Dynasty Biyuan West Garden 200 56,797 - - 195,703 195,703 78%
N AEEERE
Liuzhou Dynasty Biyuan East Garden 204 4546 - - 168,586 168,586 80%
N AEZERE
Longyan Royalty Wenyuan 2022 26197 = = 79395 79395 33%
Er LESC
Nanning Zhongnan Ziyun Impression 2005 50,128 = = 276,284 276,084 2%
HE PREEDR
Nanning Wuxiang Huguang Institution 203 65,007 = - 326309 326309 14%
HE it e
Nanning Yango Dynasty Royalty 2003 37047 S S 203,5% 203,5% 4%
B Bty
Nanning Wuxiang Lanting Mansion 2023 159,991 S S 903,879 903,879 33%
HE DR AR
Nanning Yango Dynasty Tanjing 204 177,954 = = 877300 877300 41%
HE BRiAERS
Nanning Impression Discovery Bay 02 111,138 - - 614237 614237 17%
LI CF
Nanning Wuxiang Dynasty Youth 201 23817 = = 102193 102,193 97%
HE I5AER
Nanning Jinjiu Royalty 02 68401 = = 380330 380330 5%
HE EEALE
Nanning Tanfu Impression 2022 137811 % - 639,367 639,367 30%
HE BRI%
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEETWR D

Actual/ Completed Percentage
City where Estimated but ~ GFAheld  Total GFA of interest
the project is date of undelivered for property under owned by
located Project name completion  Site area GFA  investment development  Total GFA the Group
BB/ Bif BATARN BENERE RYtnEE
fesm  BRER RIKE GHER HREER NREER 0 @R 4REER ARERR
(square (square (square (square (square
meters) meters) meters) meters) meters)
(FA%)  (Fa%)  (Fmk)  (FAK)  (¥AX)
Nanning Binjiang Jinwan 2003 36039 = = 17631 17631 34%
WE B
Nanning Shengshi Chunjiang 204 5774 - - 217058 27058 34%
HE PALENN
Nanning Xi'an Royalty 2023 294% S S 138,09 138,09 33%
HE Bt
Nanning Dynasty Shengshi Xuhui Mansion 203 25405 - - 105,195 105,195 51%
HE AR EER
Nanning Dynasty Shengshi Phase 2001 94,893 115,465 - - 115465 100%
HE A5
Nanning Dynasty Shengshi Phase I 2001 87,048 100471 - 403327 503,798 100%
HE RESt=H
Nanning Shenghu Yuejing 201 90929 141676 = 193,285 334,960 26%
WE HHiz
Nanning Zhenyuan 204 91849 = = 430927 430927 100%
WE %H
Nanning Dynasty Tianyue 2001 28320 S S 128510 128510 56%
HE REAH
Nanning Nanning Jinkiu Royalty 2023 23,565 = = 95,078 95,078 56%
HE HERRLR
Nanning Nanning Shengshi Jinyue 200 25,66 - - 102415 102415 1%
HE HERHEH
Nanning Anji Dynasty Royalty 2002 27%. = = 143,198 143,198 10%
HE TEAELR
Nanning Anji Dynasty Royalty Phase I 003 9170 - - 57,936 57,936 70%
HE TEAEHZ_H
Nanning Xingning Dynasty Youth 2071 24786 110360 = 121629 231989 7%
HE REAER
-
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEENWR DM
Actual/ Completed Percentage
City where Estimated but ~ GFAheld  Total GFA of interest
the project is date of undelivered for property under owned by
located Project name completion  Site area GFA  investment development  Total GFA the Group
BB/ Bif BATARN BENERE RYtnEE
frgm  EEAR RIKE GHER HREER NREER 0 @R 4REER ARERR
(square (square (square (square (square
meters) meters) meters) meters) meters)
(®RK)(BBK (®RK) (BEK (®RX)
Nanning Nanning Yunxitai 00 20014 S . 69,155 69,155 25%
WE 4EEEL
Nanning Dynasty Tiancheng Phase I 2001 19,141 = = 180,942 180942 100%
HE RERA=H
Nanning Dynasty Zhenguan 00 45582 1298 S 166,199 167497 85%
HE REEH
Nanning Jinyue Qingshan 2021 32507 68431 = 439688 112420 49%
HE el
Nanning Xingning Dynasty Impression 001 95,750 98783 = = 98,783 40%
AR REREOS
Nanning Dynasty Tiancheng Phases | & I 2019 5007 6434 67,846 - 74,80 100%
HE REXH— —H
Nanning Longgang Dynasty Royalty 2020 109878 3555 5128 - 40683 100%
HE REAEER
Nanning Dynasty International Center 2018 11,54 4909 34979 S 39,888 100%
HE RERRAD
Nantong Dynasty Zhongnan Yuehu 2002 60,240 = = 97778 97,778 55%
(] REPHRH
Nantong Shiji Yunchen 2024 73942 = = 182,786 182,786 20%
Bk ELER
Nantong Langyuan 2003 42430 = = 101,334 101,334 20%
[ il
Ningbo Chenyue Royalty 200 38013 - - 113391 113391 51%
ER e
Ningbo QiYue li 2023 20,388 - - 39218 39218 100%
ER B
Ningbo Feng Lan Di 202 24387 : - 61,938 61,938 35%
ER BRE

25



26

DATANG GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED - Annual Report 2020

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEETWR D

Actual/ Completed Percentage
City where Estimated but ~ GFAheld  Total GFA of interest
the project is date of undelivered for property under owned by
located Project name completion  Site area GFA  investment development  Total GFA the Group
BB/ Bif BATARN BENRRE REth4E
fesm  BRER RIEE fHER HRIER HREER 0 FER AREER AREER
(square (square (square (square (square
meters) meters) meters) meters) meters)
(FA%)  (Fa%)  (Fmk)  (FAK)  (¥AX)
Ningbo Jiuyun Mansion (56) 2003 n S S 86215 86,215 40%
B AZf (56)
Ningbo Jiuyun Mansion (74) 03 4951 - - 118,044 118044 40%
Bl AEF (74)
Ningde Ningde Dynasty Royalty 2005 19409 - - 55200 55200 55%
2 EEAELR
Putian Putian Yuhu Impression 204 3769 - - 144827 14480 59%
i BRERIK
Putian Putian Xiuyu Dynasty Royalty 03 8319 - - 254507 254507 35%
i BRARAELX
Putian Yuexiu Royalty 003 53647 - - 149321 14931 40%
& AR
Quanzhou  Jinjiang Dynasty Royalty 2000 30773 33,469 - - 33,469 55%
N BIAELY
Quanzhou  Shimao Yuncheng 204 89,544 - - 346,176 346,176 15%
N HREN
Quanzhou Jinjiang Dynasty Mansion 203 66,781 - - 27681 27681 60%
il BIIAEFR
Quanzhou  Spring Impression 202 2953 - - 114482 114482 45%
M HSEX R
Quanzhou  Hufan Julong Guofeng 204 102427 - - 271,768 271,768 10%
i FEREER
Sanming Shaxian Yunzhu 203 53,688 - - 123484 123484 40%
=5 VEEE
Xiamen Tong'an Shuiyunjian 2001 15,000 - - 84816 84816 100%
Ef AR KER
Xiamen Dynasty Hotel 200 16850 - - 64320 64320 100%
Ef REBE
>
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEENWR DM
Actual/ Completed Percentage
City where Estimated but ~ GFAheld  Total GFA of interest
the project is date of undelivered for property under owned by
located Project name completion  Site area GFA  investment development  Total GFA the Group
BB/ Bif BATARN BENERE RYtnEE
fesm  BRER RIEE fHER HRIER HREER 0 FER AREER AREER
(square (square (square (square (square
meters) meters) meters) meters) meters)
(FA%)  (Fa%)  (Fmk)  (FAK)  (¥AX)
Xiamen Dynasty Center 2024 93,166 - 38,131 27918 66,049 100%
Ef RER
Suining Suining Zhongliang No. 1 Yard 202 4828) - - 9023 98,023 40%
kz FER2 58k
Taizhou Chuangshi Mingdl 02 32862 - - 102,829 102829 4%
a g4l
Taizhou Nanguan Impression 2022 16,048 = = 41,567 41,561 47%
a HEHR
Tianjin Vision Commercial Square 03 74076 31 - 1717 120238 30%
RE TRERER
Tianjin Tangsheng Yayuan 001 198873 = = 344747 344747 100%
RE ERER
Tianjin Tangyi Yayuan 200 35627 - - 127959 12799 100%
RE EERA
Tianjin Tangyun Yayuan 2024 97911 S . 321638 321638 100%
¥ EREE
Wenzhou  Xingyue Mingzhu 2023 26,686 = = 84,154 84,154 35%
il BfiAg
Wenzhou Cuican Tianrui 204 42634 = = 120341 120341 41%
il ERAH
Wi Lanyue Yayuan 2003 41m - - 130,204 130,204 30%
B RS
Yibin Jinke Town 2004 184590 - - 622310 622310 40%
EE SR
Yueyang Yueyang Dynasty Royalty Phases 2003 122085 = = 404,969 404,969 100%
L&
i ERAEtE-—=4
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEEFRE DM

Actual/ Completed Percentage

City where Estimated but ~ GFAheld  Total GFA of interest

the project is date of undelivered for property under owned by

located Project name completion  Site area GFA  investment development  Total GFA the Group
BB/ Bif BATARN BENERE RYtnEE

frgm  EEAR RIKE GHER HREER NREER 0 @R 4REER ARERR

(square (square (square (square (square
meters) meters) meters) meters) meters)

(PR (¥RK)  (FAK)  (¥A%) (F5X)

Yueyang Yueyang Dynasty Royalty Phases 2003 124892 S . 405227 40527 100%
V&V
ik EBAEtZMNRH
Zhangjiagang  Tangyue Royalty 203 44599 - - 131,250 131,250 35%
FxE RHEER
Zhangzhou  Jiaomed Dynasty Royalty 00 41558 - - 174541 174541 67%
=N EEINA
Zhangzhou  Mingmen Impression 2019 53338 40,669 3326 = 43,995 100%
2l ZApllE
Zhangzhou  Tianlai Town Phase | 2024 73,607 = = 91444 9144 10%
i ReE-H
Zhangzhou  Tianlai Town Phase I 2005 86,754 = = 113,546 113546 70%
2N ReEZH
Zhangzhou  Dynasty Jinxiu Royalty 202 48278 - - 139310 139310 70%
i AESRER
Zhangzhou  Zhangzhou Dynasty Chunfengli 200 41073 - - 140,193 140,193 51%
2N BNAERRE
Zhangzhou  Yango Dynasty Feili Impression 204 83810 - - 269677 269677 50%
i BRaAEEEIS
Zhangzhou  Jiangshan Tianjing 202 39609 - - 142647 142047 30%
2N il
Zhangzhou Jiaomei Dynasty Impression 2023 15,748 = = 43650 4650 30%
=N EEINAE
Zhangzhou  Zhangzhou Dynasty Chunfengli 202 6189 = = 2315 23115 60%
Phase
B ENAEREE_S
-
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEENWR DM
Actual/ Completed Percentage
City where Estimated but ~ GFAheld  Total GFA of interest
the project is date of undelivered for property under owned by
located Project name completion  Site area GFA  investment development  Total GFA the Group
BB/ Bif BATARN BENERE RYtnEE
frgm  EEAR RIKE GHER HREER NREER 0 @R 4REER ARERR

(square (square (square (square (square
meters) meters) meters) meters) meters)

(PR (¥RK)  (FAK)  (¥A%) (F5X)

Zhangzhou  Dynasty Sanmu Impression 2023 17659 - - 69,115 69,115 4%%
West Lake

i Rl i

Zhangzhou  Shimao Dynasty Yunjing 200 12453 - - 40038 40038 31%

i ERAEER

Changsha ~ Repulse Bay 201 133,163 54611 = 5705 60327 100%

R EKE

Changsha ~ Dynasty Impression— Yufu 2000 38,304 29,785 - - 29,785 100%

R REENZ 1

Changsha ~ Dynasty Impression—Yuxi 2071 81362 S S 190465 190,465 100%

R REHS 08

Changsha ~ Dynasty Impression—Yuyuan 2001 21083 - - 43650 43650 100%

R REHSHE

Changsha ~ Hantang Royalty 203 40004 - - 608726 608726 4%

R Bty

Chongging  Boyun Mansion 2022 63610 = = 140,79 140,792 30%

S REN

Chongging ~ Xichen Yijing 2022 4170 - - 87,268 87,268 31%

&R BRE5

Chongging  Hanlin Tianchen 2003 90,075 - - 1853% 185,3% 30%

BF BHAR

Chongging Jiuzhu Tianchen 2023 136328 = = 292061 292,061 3%

EJ YERR

Others Other odd land reserves N/A N/A 494543 19,744 16912 531,200 N/A

£t EHEE LR TR TR ¥k

1,339,589 169154 18934770 20443513
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEEFRE DM

Investment and Operation of Commercial Properties

During the year, the Group achieved rental income of
approximately RMB56.4 million, representing an increase
of 38.9% compared to the same period of last year. The
increase was mainly attributable to the additional rent from
commercial space of Nanning Dynasty Tiancheng Phases
I & Il. The Group has 10 commercial properties projects
mainly located in Xiamen, Fujian and Nanning, Guangxi
respectively.

Hotel Operation

During the year, the Group achieved sales revenue from
hotel operation business of approximately RMB47.8 million,
representing an increase of 37.6% compared to the same
period of last year. The increase was mainly attributable to
the improvement of performance of Xiamen Dynasty Ginlan

Jia Hotel and Nanning Dynasty Congyue Hotel.

Up to now, the Group has two hotels opened, namely
Xiamen Dynasty Ginlan Jia Hotel and Nanning Dynasty
Congyue Hotel.

Il. FINANCIAL REVIEW

1.

Revenue

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group's
revenue amounted to approximately RMB10,588.4 million,
representing an increase of 30.6% from approximately
RMB8,108.0 million for the corresponding period last
year. The revenue mainly included income generated
from property sales, commercial property investment and
operations and hotel operations. In particular, revenue from
(i) property sales amounted to approximately RMB10,109.3
million, representing an increase of 30.1% as compared with
the corresponding period last year, and contributed 95.5%
of the total revenue recognised; (ii) provision of construction
services amounted to approximately RMB242.0 million,
representing an increase of 10.7% as compared with the
corresponding period last year; (iii) commercial property
investment and operations amounted to approximately
RMB56.4 million, representing an increase of 38.9% as
compared with the corresponding period last year; and
(iv) hotel operations amounted to approximately RMB47.8
million, representing an increase of 37.6% as compared with
the corresponding period last year.

EENEREREE

RER AEBERASBADARE
5648 87T - ML _E R HAE A138.9% o 1
MEBHREERBERR — R _HmE
EEMSHSMISERE - A5EEH
0EEEYEEER - TELEREREEM
MEFAEE -

R EE
RER - AEEBRAEELEEHHEEW
ABANR¥E478EE T - Mtk EFRIEAE
n37.6% o MPHEEHRREPIRESRE
EREEREEUBERRE MRS RA
HEAFTER o

BB ARBECHAMECHER
B DRIREFARESREENEERE
=UUEE -

— MK EE

1.

WA

HZE2020F12A31BIEFE - AEEKA
HARBE105884B BT - REAFREBLD
BARMES1080E & ITIBM30.6% © AR
BREEREMEHE  BEDERERK
EROBEEBBAE - Hh - (VR HE
FIEMAREFREEMI0IBENAR
1010938 BT - HERRMARER
95.5% i (IR ERBEAERAREER
BRI IN107% 2 X ARME24208 & T ¢ (i)
PR E REEFIRAREF R E
EIN38.9%EH BARES6ABETT 5 K(v)
B JE 48 & FT B AR 25 57 (R B 1137.6%49
BARB47SEETT °
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Cost of Sales

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group's cost of
sales amounted to approximately RMB7,892.5 million. The
increase was mainly due to the increased number of projects
delivered during the year.

Gross Profit and Gross Profit Margin

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group’s gross
profit was approximately RMB2,695.9 million, representing
an increase of 23.4% from approximately RMB2,185.4 million
for the corresponding period of 2019. Such increase was
primarily attributable to the increased number of projects
delivered during the year. For the year ended 31 December
2020, the gross profit margin was 25.5%, representing a
decrease from 27.0% for the corresponding period of
2019. Such decrease was mainly due to that the Company
delivered several property projects with higher gross profit
margin in 2019.

Selling and Marketing Costs

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group's selling
and marketing costs amounted to approximately RMB482.7
million, representing an increase of 8.7% from approximately
RMB444.2 million for the corresponding period last year.
Such increase was due to the launch of new property
projects of the Group for presale in 2020.

Administrative Expenses

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group's
administrative expenses amounted to approximately
RMB522.2 million, representing an increase of 14.8% from
approximately RMB454.9 million for the corresponding
period last year. Such increase was mainly due to the
increased number of employees resulted from the Group's
business expansion.

Share of Results of Joint Ventures and Associates

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group's share
of losses of joint ventures and associates amounted to
approximately RMB45.7 million, representing a decrease
of RMB54.6 million from the share of profits of joint
ventures and associates of approximately RMB8.9 million
for the corresponding period last year. Such decrease was
attributable to the expenses incurred during the early
development stage in respect of several cooperation
projects under progress.

EEETWR D

THER A

REBREZE2020F12 8318 IEFERH
ERANGAEAREILRSEETT » BINER
RAEERFAXMNEBEZHHY -

ERMREFZER
NEBREE2020F12831B IEFEHNE
FHBARME 269598 BT + HH¥E20194F
EHEIZ A ANRE2,1854F B ITiBN23.4%
ENREAFZEAFARNEE LS
HZE20200F12A31BLEFENERERA
255% - 2019 AHARAI&27.0% + EFEEF
FriBE  Z TREERE2019FRARNT
AERSEMNENYEER -

HEREHBAX
HE20200F12A318LEFE - AEEHEE
MEHAIHAARB4IAEEL » BE
FRENBAREE4I442HE T ING7%
Ihig R 2 H N AN E B R 2020F # H M E
BB B EATER -

THFEX
HZE2020F12831HIEFE - AEETH
X BARESD2EET @ WEFERE
HEBAREAS40F ELILIN148% + 7238
MEZHERAEBEBKBETRABE TAK
EFHETER -

EhEEERBE NRXE

HZE2020F 12831 BILFE - AEBEEN
BECERBENRBBNAARE47H
B BREAFRPELEECERBER
AIAEOAEARKOAETT » MA546E
B RS RBERZEMEEEEER
FAEERR B AR A S A ATE B -
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEEFRE DM

Finance Costs - Net

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group's net
finance costs amounted to approximately RMB19.6 million,
representing a decrease of 14.4% from approximately
RMB22.9 million for the corresponding period of 2019. Such
decrease was attributable to the increase in interest income
due to the increase in deposits.

Income Tax Expense

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group's income
tax expense amounted to approximately RMB765.7 million,
representing a decrease of 1.9% from approximately
RMB780.5 million for the corresponding period last year.
The Group's income tax expense included the provision
for the corporate income tax and land appreciation tax
during the year. The slight decrease in income tax for the
year was mainly due to the decrease in the Group’s land
appreciation tax.

Profit for the Year

As a result of the aforementioned factors, the Group's profit
before tax increased by 21.9% to approximately RMB1,715.7
million for the year ended 31 December 2020 from
approximately RMB1,407.9 million for the corresponding
period last year. The Group's net profit increased by 51.4%
to approximately RMB949.9 million (of which net profit
attributable to owners of the Company amounted to
RMB715.4 million) for the year ended 31 December 2020
from approximately RMB627.4 million for the corresponding
period of 2019.

Ill. LIQUIDITY, FINANCE AND CAPITAL

1.

Cash Position

As at 31 December 2020, the Group’s cash and bank balances
were approximately RMB5.66 billion (as at 31 December
2019: approximately RMB4.10 billion), of which, restricted
bank balances amounted to approximately RMB2.20 billion
(as at 31 December 2019: RMB1.88 billion).

1.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Borrowings and Pledged Assets

As at 31 December 2020, the Group’s total borrowings
(including interest-bearing bank loans and other borrowings)
amounted to approximately RMB10.31 billion (as at 31
December 2019: approximately RMB7.77 billion).

As at 31 December 2020, assets with an aggregate value of
approximately RMB12.39 billion (as at 31 December 2019:
approximately RMB11.63 billion) have been pledged to
banks and other financial institutions to secure the credit
facilities granted to the Group and its joint ventures and
associates.

Gearing Ratio

As at 31 December 2020, the Group's net gearing ratio
(total borrowings less cash and bank balances divided by
total equity) was approximately 58.7%, as compared with
approximately 119.2% as at 31 December 2019. As at 31
December 2020, the Group's gearing ratio (total debts divided
by total assets) was approximately 83.2%, as compared with
approximately 91.7% as at 31 December 2019. As at 31
December 2020, the Group's debt-to-asset ratio excluding
advances from customers (total debt excluding contract
liabilities divided by total assets excluding contract liabilities)
was approximately 77.7%, as compared with approximately
87.0% on 31 December 2019. As at 31 December 2020,
the Group's current ratio (current assets divided by current
liabilities) was approximately 1.28 times, as compared
with approximately 1.18 times as at 31 December 2019.
As at 31 December 2020, cash to short-term debt ratio
(unrestricted cash and bank balances divided by short-term
borrowings) was approximately 1.30 times, as compared
with approximately 0.96 times as at 31 December 2019.

EEENWR DM
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Capital Commitment

As of 31 December 2020, the Group's contracted but
unprovided commitment payments for non-current assets
were approximately RMB40 million (as of 31 December 2019:
approximately RMB95 million).

Financial Guarantee

Pursuant to the mortgage contracts, the banks require the
Group to provide guarantees to the purchasers in respect of
their mortgage loans. Such mortgage guarantees provided
to the purchasers are usually released when the title deeds
of the respective properties are pledged to the banks
as security to continue to support the mortgage loans,
which generally takes place after the delivery of relevant
properties to the purchasers. If the purchasers are in default
on their mortgage loans, the Group shall be liable to the
repayment of the outstanding mortgage principal amount
together with the accrued interest and penalties owed by
the defaulting purchasers to the banks and the Group shall
be entitled to take over the legal title and possession of the
related properties.

As at 31 December 2020, the Group provided guarantees of
approximately RMB12.08 billion to certain banks in respect
of the mortgage loans granted to certain purchasers of the
Group's properties (as at 31 December 2019: approximately
RMB10.45 billion).

As at 31 December 2020, the Group provided guarantees
of approximately RMB5.41 billion to related companies
(as at 31 December 2019: approximately RMB3.63 billion).
These related companies are not controlled by the Ultimate
Controlling Shareholder.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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IV. CORPORATE GOVERNANCE AND OTHER EER - HiER

INFORMATION

1. Material Acquisition and Disposal 1. ERWBREESEE
As of 31 December 2020, the Group did not hold any 20205124318 - NEE W EFEFE 1A
significant investments. For the year ended 31 December BEREE - HE2020F 128318 EFE -
2020, the Group did not have material acquisitions or AEBVHEEAERARBEXILSEWE L
disposals of subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures. A BERRREETE -

2. Employee and Remuneration Policy 2. EERFHMBE
As of 31 December 2020, the Group had a total of 2,592 M2020F12H31H » AEEHEF2592%
employees. The remuneration of the employees of the Group BE - AEBEEE cHFMEZRIEMISR
is mainly determined based on the prevailing market level THMKE EERAFERERITEL
of remuneration and the individual performance and work BMAE REMIEZEERERTETE
experience of the employees. Bonuses are also distributed W AEEAREERHEBERRKE 2
based on the performance of the employees. The Group BEBBAFXERBARENEELSRIZM
provides employees with career development opportunities HEFMIREAR - AEEEMEN2E
and considers if their remuneration should be raised or if BEEN RFIEEIEE -
they should be promoted with reference to their individual
performance and potential. Other benefits provided by the
Group include medical benefits and specialised training
schemes.

3. Use of Proceeds from the IPO 3. REEBR L AHBREESEELAR
The Company's net proceeds from the global offering are RAEBRIRBEEMSRIEFEL149E8
approximately HK$1.49 billion, excluding the net proceeds T NERERE MRS TEBRERR
from the partial exercise of the over-allotment option which BERFTBRIAFRE - BEARSHE - K
took place after the reporting period. As of the date of this AEIEEAAAE2020F 11 A27BNBRE
report, the Company has applied the balance of proceeds BIERERDFEEHCAZERAES
raised from the global offering in accordance with the HEBEEEEMGHRIEHE -

proposed applications as disclosed in the prospectus of
the Company dated 27 November 2020 (the “Prospectus”).
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The following table sets out the utilisation of the net

proceeds up to 31 December 2020 and the breakdown of

the proposed utilisation:

TREDFTERIEFEEE2020F12 831
BB ABR R ES B

Utilised Unutilised
amount amount Expected
up to as of timeline for
Net proceeds 31 December 31 December usage of
from the IPO 2020 2020 proceeds
HZE20205F #HZE2020F
BRABBEH 12A31H 12A318 BAMRERE
Purpose k=S BREFE CHASE XDASE MNEHANERX
HKS million HKS million HKS million
BEET BEET BEET
Construction costs for RBYEMREIR 951 951 = =
existing property B BB EERL AR
development projects
Repayment of partial BEBHEAS 384 145 239 First half of 2021
existing interest-bearing  BIRTTER 20214 EH5F
bank borrowings
General working capital —REEES 158 158 = =
Total 5T 1,493 1,254 239
Subsequent Events &SR

On 6 January 2021, ICBC International Capital Limited, the

Sponsor of the Public Offering, partially exercised the over-
allotment right and allotted and issued 30,144,000 additional
shares at price of HKS$4.56 per share. The net proceeds

from the partial exercise of the over-allotment right were

approximately HK$135.4 million. The net proceeds will be

utilised in accordance with the proposed application as

disclosed in the Prospectus.

Dividend Distribution

The Board of Directors recommended a final dividend of

RMB11 cents (equivalent to HK$13 cents) per share.

20211 A6 » RAZEENREBALIR
EREBRAREDITEBEL SR
W 12 B AR 4.567%8 7T Bl 3 2 8£9730,144,000%
BEOMNRD o B 1T B S A FTE K
SRR 354187870 - FTIS IR FREAS IR I
BRERMERHRERLZDA -

iz Sk 2
EZeRFRERAREREBRAREN
2 GRER13EAL)
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Purchase, Sale or Redemption of Any of the
Company'’s Listed Securities

During the period from 11 December 2020 (i.e. the date
when the shares of the Company were listed on the Stock
Exchange) (the “Listing Date”) to 31 December 2020, neither
the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased, sold
or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities.

Currency Risk

The Group primarily operates in the PRC and the majority of
the Group's transactions were denominated and settled in
RMB. The Group was not subject to any material risk directly
relating to foreign exchange fluctuation. The management
will continue to monitor the foreign exchange exposure,
and take prudent measure to reduce foreign exchange risks.
The Company does not engage in any hedging activities in
relation to the foreign currency risk.

Corporate Governance

The Group is committed to implementing high standards
of corporate governance to safeguard the interests of the
shareholders of the Group and enhance the corporate value
as well as the responsibility commitments. The Company has
adopted the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”") as
set out in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”) as

the code of corporate governance.

The Group has complied with all applicable code provisions
under the CG Code. To the knowledge of the Directors, the
Group has complied with all applicable code provisions set
out in the CG Code from the Listing Date to 31 December
2020, and the Directors will use their best endeavors to
procure the Group to continue to comply with the CG Code.
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Annual General Meeting

The annual general meeting (the “AGM”") of the Company
is proposed to be held on 13 May 2021.

Closure of Register of Members

In order to determine the entitlement to attend and vote at
the AGM, the register of members of the Company will be
closed from 10 May 2021 to 13 May 2021, both days inclusive,
during which period no transfer of shares will be registered.
All transfer documents of the Company accompanied by the
relevant share certificates must be lodged with the branch
share registrar of the Company in Hong Kong, Tricor Investor
Services Limited at Level 54, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s
Road East, Hong Kong for registration not later than 4:30
p.m. on 7 May 2021.

Subject to the approval of shareholders at the AGM, the final
dividend will be paid on or about 30 June 2021. In order to
determine the entitlement to the proposed final dividend,
the register of members of the Company will be closed from
24 May 2021 to 27 May 2021, both days inclusive, during
which period no transfer of shares will be registered. In order
to qualify for the entitlement to the proposed final dividend,
all transfer documents of the Company accompanied by the
relevant share certificates must be lodged with the branch
share registrar of the Company in Hong Kong, Tricor Investor
Services Limited at Level 54, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s
Road East, Hong Kong for registration no later than 4:30
p.m. on 21 May 2021.

Compliance with the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”)
set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as its code for
dealing in securities of the Company by the Directors. The
Directors have confirmed their compliance with the required
standard set out in the Model Code from the Listing Date
to 31 December 2020.

10.

11.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Review of Annual Results

The Board of Directors has established its audit committee
with written terms of reference in compliance with Rules
3.21 and 3.22 of the Listing Rules and code provision C.3 of
the CG Code. The primary duties of our audit committee
are to review and monitor the Group’s financial reporting
process, risk management and internal control system, to
oversee the audit process, to provide recommendation
and advice to the Board, and to perform other duties
and responsibilities as may be assigned by the Board. Our
audit committee consists of three members, including
Mr. QU Wenzhou, Ms. XIN Zhu and Mr. TAM Chi Choi. Our
audit committee is chaired by Mr. QU Wenzhou, who has
appropriate professional qualifications.

Our audit committee has reviewed the Company’s audited
consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2020 and confirmed that it has complied
with all applicable accounting principles, standards and
requirements, and made sufficient disclosures. Our audit
committee has also discussed the matters of audit and

financial reporting.

12.
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The Board is pleased to present the Directors’ Report for the year ended
31 December 2020.

COMPANY INFORMATION

Our Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands as an exempted
company with limited liability under the Cayman Islands Companies Law
on 14 December 2018. Shares of the Company were listed on the Main
Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited on 11 December
2020 (the “Listing Date”).

MAIN BUSINESS

The Group is a property developer in China focusing on the development
of residential and commercial properties in selected economic regions.
The Group has expanded its business into mainly six economic regions in
China, including the Western Taiwan Strait Economic Region, Beibu Gulf
Region and Neighboring Cities, Beijing-Tianjin-Hebei Region, Midstream
Parts of the Yangtze River Region, Yangtze River Delta Region and
Chengdu-Chongging Region.

Details of the main business of the key subsidiaries of the Group are set
out in Note 43 to the consolidated financial statements of the Group in
this annual report. For the year ended 31 December 2020, the nature
of the main business of the Group has no significant changes. As of the
date of this annual report, the Board has no intention to significantly

change the main business of the Group.
RESULTS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2020 are set
out in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income of the

Group in this annual report.
BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group's business review and future business development are set
out in the sections headed “Chairman’s Statement” and “Management
Discussion and Analysis” in this annual report.
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An analysis of the Group’s performance using financial key performance
indicators is set out in the section headed “Management Discussion and
Analysis” in this annual report.

MAJOR RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES FACED BY THE
GROUP

Our operations involve certain risks, some of which are beyond our
control. These risks can be broadly categorized into: (i) risks relating to
our business, (ii) risks relating to the real estate industry, and (iii) risks
relating to doing business in China.

Some of the risks generally associated with our business and industry
include the following:

i. we are susceptible to adverse movements in the PRC real estate
market, particularly in regions and cities where we have property
development projects.

ii. we are vulnerable to adverse changes in economic, political and

social conditions and government policies in China.

iii. we may not have adequate financing to fund our property
development projects, and capital sources may not be available
on favorable terms, or at all.

iv. we rely on contractors during the construction and development
stages of our property development projects, who may not

perform in accordance with our expectations.

V. we may fail to protect our intellectual property rights, which may

materially and adversely affect our brand value.

For further details on the major risks and uncertainties faced by the
Group, please refer to the section headed “Risk Factors” on pages 37
to 77 of the Company's prospectus dated 27 November 2020 (the
"Prospectus”).
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SOCIAL,HEALTH AND WORKSAFETY,ENVIRONMENTAL
MATTERS, LEGAL PROCEEDINGS AND COMPLIANCE

Social, Health and Work Safety

In respect of social responsibilities, in particular health, work safety and
social insurance, we have entered into employment contracts with our
employees in accordance with the applicable PRC laws and regulations.
We maintain social welfare insurance for our full-time employees in
the PRC, including pension insurance, medical insurance, occupational
injury insurance, unemployment insurance and maternity insurance, in

accordance with relevant PRC laws and regulations.

Our Employee's Administrative Measures (8 TEIE##7%) contain
policies and procedures regarding work safety and occupational health
issues. We provide our employees with necessary safety training, and our
construction sites are equipped with safety equipment including gloves,
boots and hats. Our human resources department and administrative
department are responsible for recording and handling work accidents
as well as maintaining health and work safety compliance records.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, we did not encounter any
material safety accident, there were no material claims for personal or
property damages, and no compensation was paid to employees in
respect of claims for personal or property damages related to safety
accident.

Environmental Matters
We are subject to a number of environmental and safety laws and
regulations in the PRC including the Environmental Protection Law of
(h#EARKEMBIRRIREE) ), the
Prevention and Control of Noise Pollution Law of the People’s Republic of
China ( (P #E AR LMBIRIERE T LDIAE)
Impact Assessment Law of the People’s Republic of China

HMBEREZEFNEZE) )
Environmental Protection for Development Projects (

REEIRIRDI) ).

the People’s Republic of China (

), the Environmental
({PEA
and the Administrative Regulations on
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Pursuant to these laws and regulations, depending on the impact of
the project on the environment, an environmental impact study report,
an environmental impact analysis table or an environmental impact
registration form shall be submitted by a developer before the relevant
authorities will grant approval for the commencement of construction
of the property development. In addition, upon completion of the
property development, the relevant environmental authorities and the
construction unit will also inspect the property to ensure compliance
with the applicable environmental standards and regulations before the
property can be delivered to the purchasers.

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group did not encounter any
major issues in the process of completing the real estate development
project and passing the inspection and acceptance of the relevant
environmental agencies. The Group has also not been subject to
significant fines or penalties for violating the environmental laws and
regulations of the PRC.

In accordance with Rule 13.91 of the Listing Rules and the Environmental,
Social and Governance Reporting Guide set out in Appendix 27 thereto,
the Company's environmental, social and governance report will be
available on our website and on the Stock Exchange’s website within
three months from the publication of this report.

Legal Proceedings and Compliance

We have been involved in legal proceedings or disputes in the ordinary
course of business, including, but not limited to, claims relating to
disputes with our suppliers and disputes arising from property purchase
agreements with our customers. Please refer to “Risk Factors — Risks
Relating to Our Business — We may be involved in claims, disputes,
legal proceedings and negative publicity, which may adversely affect
our financial condition, divert management attention and harm our

reputation” in the Prospectus.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, we were not involved in any
litigation, arbitration or administrative proceedings, claims or disputes
which had a material adverse effect on our financial condition or results

of operation.
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Compliance with Laws and Regulations

For the businesses and industries in which the Group operates, the most
important laws and regulations in the PRC include (but not limited to)
laws related to the establishment of real estate development enterprises,
acquisition of land use rights, property development, commercial

housing sales or pre-sales, and environmental protection.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, except as disclosed in the
Prospectus, we had complied with all the relevant and applicable PRC
laws and regulations governing the business of property development
and management in all material respects, and we had obtained all
material licenses, permits and certificates for the purpose of operating
our business.

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group has no non-compliance
incident that have had a material adverse effect on the Company.

Financial Summary

The summary of the results and assets, liabilities and equity of the Group
for the years ended 31 December 2017, 2018, 2019 and 2020 are set
out on page 268 of this annual report.

Significant Acquisitions and Disposals
During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group has no significant
acquisition and disposal of subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures.

Final Dividend

The Board proposed to pay a final dividend of RMB11 cents (equivalent
to HK$13 cents) per share for the year ended 31 December 2020 to
shareholders listed on the register of members of the Company at the
end of business hours on 27 May 2021 (Thursday).

If the resolution regarding the proposed final dividend has been
approved at the annual general meeting, the proposed final dividend
will be paid on or before 30 June 2021 (Wednesday).
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Permitted Indemnity and Insurance Provisions

The articles of association of the Company provides that every Director
shall be indemnified out of the assets of the Company against any
liability, action, proceeding, claim, demand, costs, damages or expenses
as a result of any act or failure to act in carrying out his/her functions.

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the Company has arranged
appropriate directors and officers liability insurance in respect of legal

action against Directors.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

Major Customers
The Group primarily target individuals and companies of residential
properties and tenants of investment properties.

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the five largest customers of the
Group accounted for 2% of the revenue of the Group, and all of them
are independent third parties to us.

To the best of the knowledge of the Directors, none of the Directors,
their respective close associates or any shareholder who owns more
than 5% of the issued share capital of the Company had any interest in
any of the five largest customers of the Group during the year ended
31 December 2020.
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Major Suppliers

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the five largest suppliers of the
Group, primarily comprising construction contractors, accounted for
32% of the total purchases of the Group, of which the largest supplier
of the Group accounted for 11% of the total purchases of the Group. All
of the five largest suppliers are all construction companies engaged by

the Group and all of them are independent third parties to the Group.

To the best of the knowledge of the Directors, none of the Directors,
their respective close associates or any shareholder who owns more
than 5% of the issued share capital of the Company had any interest
in any of the five largest suppliers of the Group during the year ended
31 December 2020.

Relationship with Stakeholders

The Group recognises that the employees, customers and suppliers are
keys to corporate sustainability and are keen on developing long-term
relationships with stakeholders.

We consider our employees are key contributors to our growth and that
our success and ability to maintain our competitiveness depend on the
well-being, performance and skills of our staff. For example, we offer
leadership training programs to our mid-level and senior management
and we sponsor selected employees to attend EMBA program at Xiamen
University. We also provide regular training programs, such as the Seal
Training Program (8 %915 #lI51£l) for entry-level employees, Star Training
Program (2 & F 15351 2l) for our entry-to-mid-level employees with
outstanding work performance and Dynasty Iron Army Program (K&
2 5) for sales and marketing personnel.

The Company provides a fair and safe workplace, promoting diversity
development to our staff, providing competitive remuneration and
benefits and career development opportunities based on their merits and
performance. The Group also puts on-going efforts to provide adequate
trainings and development resources to the employees so that they can
keep abreast of the latest development of the market and the industry,

and improve their performance and self-fulfillment in their positions.
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The Company understands that it is important to maintain good
relationship with customers. The Group has established procedures
in place for handling customers’ complaints and customer satisfaction
surveys in order to ensure customers' complaints are dealt with in a

prompt and timely manner.

The Group is also dedicated to develop good relationship with suppliers
as long-term business partners to ensure stable supplies and timely
delivery of materials. The Group reinforces business partnerships with
suppliers and contractors by recurring communication in proactive and
effective manner so as to ensure quality and delivery.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the Group
during the year ended 31 December 2020 are set out in note 15 to the
consolidated balance sheet of the Group in this annual report.

Equity
Details of the changes in the Company’s share capital are set out in note
29 to the consolidated balance sheet of the Group in this annual report.

Reserves

Details of the changes in the Group’s reserves for the year ended 31
December 2020 are set out in the consolidated statement of changes
in equity of the Group in this annual report.

Distributable Reserves
As of 31 December 2020, the distributable reserves of the Company
were approximately RMB1,987.5 million.

Bank and Other Borrowings

The details of the Group’s bank and other borrowings as of 31 December
2020 are set out in note 32 to the consolidated balance sheet of the
Group in this annual report.
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DIRECTORS

During the year ended 31 December 2020 and up to the date of this
annual report, the Directors of the Company were as follows:

Executive Directors
Mr. Wu Di

Mr. Hao Shengchun
Mr. Tang Guozhong
Ms. Zhang Jianhua

Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. Qu Wenzhou (Appointed on 20 November 2020)
Ms. Xin Zhu (Appointed on 20 November 2020)
Mr. Tam Chi Choi (Appointed on 20 November 2020)

In accordance with Article 112 of the articles of association of the
Company (the “Articles of Association”), any Director appointed by
the Board to fill a casual vacancy shall hold office only until the first
general meeting of the Company after his appointment and be subject
to re-election at such meeting. Any Director appointed by the Board as
an addition to the existing Board shall hold office only until the next
following annual general meeting of the Company and shall then be

eligible for re-election.

Accordingly, Mr. Wu Di, Mr. Hao Shengchun, Mr. Tang Guozhong, Ms.
Zhang Jianhua, Mr. Qu Wenzhou, Ms. Xin Zhu and Mr. Tam Chi Choi
shall retire as Directors at the AGM. Mr. Wu Di, Mr. Hao Shengchun, Mr.
Tang Guozhong, Ms. Zhang Jianhua, Mr. Qu Wenzhou, Ms. Xin Zhu and
Mr. Tam Chi Choi being eligible, have offered themselves for re-election
as Directors at the AGM.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE AGREEMENTS AND LETTERS OF
APPOINTMENT

Each of our executive Directors has entered into a service agreement
with our Company for a term of three years commencing from the Listing
Date, which may be terminated by not less than three months’ notice
in writing served by either party on the other.

Each of our independent non-executive Directors has entered into a
letter of appointment with our Company for a term of three years
commencing from the date of his/her appointment, which may be
terminated by not less than three months' notice in writing served by
either party on the other.

None of the Directors has entered into any service contract with the
Company which is not determinable by the Company within one year

without payment of compensation (other than statutory compensation).

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF THE DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

The biographical details of the Directors and senior management of
the Company are set out in the section headed “Directors and Senior
Management” in this annual report.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE OF INDEPENDENT
NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received a confirmation of independence from each
of the independent non-executive Directors pursuant to Rule 3.13
of the Listing Rules. The Board and the nomination committee have
assessed their independence and concluded that all the independent
non-executive Directors are considered to be independent pursuant to

the Listing Rules.
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DIRECTORS” AND CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS’
INTERESTS IN TRANSACTION, ARRANGEMENT OR
CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in this annual report, no transaction, arrangement or
contract of significance to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries
has been a party and in which a Director or an entity connected with
a Director is or was materially interested, whether directly or indirectly,
subsisted at the end of the year ended 31 December 2020 or at any
time during the year.

Save as disclosed in this annual report, no contract of significance,
whether for the provision of services or otherwise, was entered into
between the Company or any of its subsidiaries and a controlling
shareholder of the Company or any of its subsidiaries during the year
ended 31 December 2020.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company were
entered into or subsisted during the year ended 31 December 2020.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Share Option Scheme” in this
annual report, no equity-linked agreements were entered into by the
Group, or subsisted during the year ended 31 December 2020.
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DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID
INDIVIDUALS

Details of the remuneration of the Directors and those of the five highest
paid individuals of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2020 are
set out in note 44 and note 8 to the consolidated financial statements
of the Group in this annual report, respectively.

None of the Directors waived his/her emoluments nor has agreed to
waive his/her emoluments for the year ended 31 December 2020.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY ORITS
ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

As at 31 December 2020, the interests and short positions of the Directors
and the chief executives of the Company in the Shares, underlying
Shares and debentures of the Company or its associated corporation
(within the meaning of Part XV of the “Securities and Futures Ordinance”,
Chapter 571 of the laws of Hong Kong (the “SFO”")) which were required
to be entered in the register kept by the Company pursuant to section
352 of the SFO, or which were otherwise required, to be notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code
for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as contained in
Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules (the “Model Code”), are set out below:
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Interests in shares of the Company (Long position)

Approximate percentage

Name of Director Nature of Interest Number of Shares of shareholding
E=pE EEME R B E RERLBEME
Wu Di' Controlled corporation 212,121,000 15.91%
R REHDEE
Hao Shengchun? Controlled corporation 2,000,000 0.15%
MEsE EEHEE
Tang Guozhong? Controlled corporation 1,000,000 0.075%
& B > REGDEE
Zhang Jianhua? Controlled corporation 1,000,000 0.075%
SRR REHDEE

As at 31 December 2020, the Company issued 1,333,400,000 Shares.

Notes:

1. These Shares are owned by Mr. Wu Di through his wholly-owned
company, MeiDi Investment Holding Limited (“MeiDi"). By virtue of the
SFO, Mr. Wu Di is deemed to be interested in the Shares held by MeiDi.

2. Tangjia Real Estate Management Co., Limited (“Tangjia") is owned as to

20% by Mr. Hao Shengchun, and 10% by each of Ms. Zhang Jianhua and
Mr. Tang Guozhong. By virtue of the SFO, each of Mr. Hao Shengchun,
Mr. Tang Guozhong and Ms. Zhang Jianhua is deemed to be interested
in the 2,000,000, 1,000,000 and 1,000,000 Shares held by Tangjia.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2020, none of the Directors
and chief executives of the Company had any interests or short positions
in the Shares, underlying Shares and debentures of the Company or its
associated corporations, recorded in the register required to be kept
under section 352 of the SFO or required to be notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.
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ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed under the section headed “Share Option Scheme” in
this annual report, at no time during the year ended 31 December 2020
were there any rights to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of
shares or debentures of the Company granted to any Director or their
respective spouse or children under 18 years of age, nor were there any
such rights exercised by them. Also, there was no subsisting arrangement
to which the Company, its holding company, or any of its subsidiaries or
fellow subsidiaries is a party that would enable the Directors to acquire

such rights in any other body corporate.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES AND UNDERLYING
SHARES OF THE COMPANY

So far as is known to the Company, as at 31 December 2020, as recorded
in the register required to be kept by the Company under section 336 of
the SFO, the following persons, other than a Director or chief executive of
the Company, had an interest of 5% or more in the Shares or underlying

Shares of the Company:

Name of Shareholders Nature of Interest
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Approximate percentage

Number of Shares of shareholding

BRoHEE8 BEME R B E RESLBEME

Xiamen ITG Holding Group Co., Ltd.* Beneficial owner 82,501,000 6.19%
EFBEEREEGRAR EnEEAA Long position
Ha

Chongging International Trust Co,, Trustee 82,501,000 6.19%
Ltd.* Long position
BEERBREFERNERAT E7EA "R
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Approximate percentage
Name of Shareholders Nature of Interest Number of Shares of shareholding
BROKSE£B BEMEE RIDEE RESABHLL
Dynasty International Co. Ltd. Beneficial owner 727,273,000 54.54%
REBBRER AR B A Long position
("Dynasty Cook”)! e )
50,010,000 3.75%
Short position
KR
Dynasty International Holding Co., Ltd. Controlled corporation 727,273,000 54.54%
(‘Dynasty Cayman”) RiEHEE Long position
HR
50,010,000 3.75%
Short position
KRB
Good First International Holding Controlled corporation 727,273,000 54.54%
Limited (“Good First HK")! SIEHEE Long position
RIEEFZERER AR ey}
GEEECN
50,010,000 3.75%

Short position

NN
KB
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Approximate percentage

Name of Shareholders Nature of Interest Number of Shares of shareholding

BRGHEEB BEMEE RIDEE REMY B0

Good First Holding Limited Controlled corporation 777,879,000 58.34%
("Good First BVI")"2 ZAEHEE Long position
e

50,010,000 3.75%
Short position
HE

Wong Hei (“Ms. Wong")':2 Controlled corporation 777,879,000 58.34%
= ([EL )2 SRS EE Long position
"R

50,010,000 3.75%
Short position
KRB

MeiDi Investment Holding Limited Beneficial owner 212,121,000 15.91%
EHIREERER A A BB A Long position
HE

ICBC International Securities Limited®>  Beneficial owner 17,053,000 1.28%
THREIRESBR A BB A Long position
HE

Underwriter 50,010,000 3.75%
B Long position
"R

5,010,000 3.75%

Short position

NN
KB
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Name of Shareholders

Nature of Interest

Number of Shares

Approximate percentage
of shareholding

BRGHEEB EEME RIDEE REMY B0

ICBC International Holdings Limited? Controlled corporation 67,063,000 5.03%
TREIFR IR B R A ) ZEHEE Long position
e

50,010,000 3.75%
Short position
KRB

Central Huijin Investment Ltd? Controlled corporation 69,876,000 5.24%
FRESREBRETARS SRS EE Long position
"R

50,010,000 3.75%
Short position
KRB

Industrial and Commercial Bank of Controlled corporation 69,876,000 5.24%
China Limited? RS EE Long position
PEITRERITRD AR AR 5=y

50,010,000 3.75%

Short position

NN
KB



As at 31 December 2020, the Company issued 1,333,400,000 Shares.

Notes:

Dynasty Cook is owned (i) as to 41.67% by Dynasty Cayman, which is in
turn owned as to 70% by Good First HK and 30% by Good First BVI; and
(i) 58.33% by Good First HK. Good First HK is wholly owned by Good
First BVI, a company wholly-owned by Ms. Wong. By virtue of the SFO,
each of Dynasty Cook, Dynasty Cayman, Good First HK, Good First BVI
and Ms. Wong is deemed to be interested in the same number of Shares

in which Dynasty Cook is interested in.

Fujia Group Holdings Limited (“Fujia”) is wholly-owned by Good First BVI,
which is in turn wholly owned by Ms. Wong. By virtue of the SFO, each
of Good First BVI and Ms. Wong is deemed to be interested in the same

number of Shares in which Fujia is interested in.

According to the disclosure of interest forms ("Dl form(s)”) both dated 6
January 2021 filed by Central Huijin Investment Ltd. and Industrial and
Commercial Bank of China Limited in relation to the relevant event on
31 December 2020, Central Huijin Investment Ltd. through Industrial
and Commercial Bank of China Limited, ICBC International Holdings
Limited and ICBC International Securities Limited was interested in
69,876,000 Shares (long position) and 50,010,000 Shares (short position),
which includes unlisted derivatives of 19,866,000 Shares (long position).
According to the DI forms filed by ICBC International Securities Limited
and ICBC International Holdings Limited dated 28 December 2020,
each of which was interested in 67,063,000 Shares (long position) and
50,010,000 Shares (short position) including unlisted derivatives of
50,010,000 Shares (long position). There are no DI forms filed by them

in relation to the relevant event on 31 December 2020.

Save as disclosed above and to the best knowledge of the Directors, as

at 31 December 2020, the Company is not aware of any persons (other

than a Director or chief executive of the Company) who had an interest

or short position in the Shares or underlying Shares of the Company

that were recorded in the register required to be kept under section
336 of the SFO.
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Articles of
Association of the Company, or the law of Cayman Islands being the
jurisdiction in which the Company was incorporated under which would
oblige the Company to offer new Shares on a pro-rata basis to existing
Shareholders.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTING
SECURITIES

For the period from the Listing Date to 31 December 2020, neither the
Company nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased, sold or redeemed
any of the listing securities of the Company.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE DEED OF NON-COMPETITION

Ms. Wong Hei, the controlling shareholder of the Company, has entered
into the deed of non-competition (the “Deed of Non-Competition”)
dated 20 November 2020 in favor of our Company, pursuant to which,
Ms. Wong has undertaken that, save as disclosed in the Prospectus, she
will not, and will procure her close associates (other than members of
our Group) not to directly or indirectly be involved or engaged in any
business (other than our business) that directly or indirectly competes,
or may compete, with our business, or hold shares or interest in any
companies or business that competes directly or indirectly with the
business engaged by our Group from time to time, except where Ms.
Wong and her close associates hold less than 10% of the total issued
share capital or registered capital of any company which is engaged in
any business that is or may be in competition with any business engaged
by any member of our Group and they do not control the composition
of the board of directors of such companies at any time.

The Deed of Non-Competition will lapse automatically if (@) Ms. Wong
and her close associates cease to hold, whether directly or indirectly, 30%
or above of our Shares with voting rights or securities or other interests;
or (b) our Shares cease to be listed on the Stock Exchange.

For details of the Deed of Non-Competition, please refer to the section
headed “Relationship with Controlling Shareholders — Deed of Non-
Competition” on pages 318 to 327 in the Prospectus.
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For the period from the Listing Date to 31 December 2020, Ms. Wong
or her close associates did not refer any business opportunities related
to restricted business to the Company.

Annual Review

The Company has received the written confirmation letter from Ms. Wong
regarding compliance with the terms of the Deed of Non-Competition.
The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the Deed
of Non-Competition and are satisfied that Ms. Wong and her close
associates have complied with their undertakings under the Deed of
Non-Competition from the Listing Date to the date of this annual report.

CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS’ AND DIRECTORS’
INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS

Mr. Wu Di, our executive Director, has interests in Xiamen Gefusite Real
Estate Co., Ltd. ("Xiamen Gefusite”) and Fuxin Group Co., Ltd. ("Fuxin
Group”). The table below sets forth Mr. Wu's shareholding in and the
business scope of each of Xiamen Gefusite and Fuxin Group:

Company name
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Shareholding structure
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Business scope

e

Xiamen Gefusite Indirectly owned as to 82% by Mr. Wu

=PI AR H MR AR ER82%

Fuxin Group Directly owned as to 10% by Mr. Wu and 1.96% by
a company controlled by Mr. Wu

BEEE FRSEEE YA 10%A & B R 5t FTiEfila) —

fE A BlHEE 1.96%

Although there is overlap between the business of Xiamen Gefusite and
our Group, having taking into account that (a) substantially all of the
properties developed by Xiamen Gefusite have been completed and
delivered; and (b) Mr. Wu has undertaken to procure Xiamen Gefusite
not to engage in property development business in the future, our
Directors are of the view that no material competition exists between

Xiamen Gefusite and our Group.

Xiamen Gefusite is engaged in the property
development in Xiamen, Fujian Province. The
property projects developed by Xiamen Gefusite
have been completed and delivered.

EriFRAT R A BT R ERE - B
PIRiB TR PR M E IR B B R TR -

Fuxin Group is an investment holding company
in the PRC. Please refer to the Prospectus for
details.
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Save as disclosed in this annual report and the Prospectus, none of the
controlling shareholders of the Company or the Directors was engaged
or had interest in any business, apart from the business of the Group,
which competes or is likely to compete, directly or indirectly, with the
Group's business, which would require disclosure under Rule 8.10 of
the Listing Rules.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

The transactions between the Group and certain connected persons of
the Group have become continuing connected transactions pursuant to
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. Set forth below are the details of the
continuing connected transactions of the Group since the Listing Date
and up till the date of this annual report, which were exempted from
the requirements of independent shareholders’ approval, but subject
to the reporting and annual review requirements under Chapter 14A
of the Listing Rules:

1. Architectural Design Services

On 20 November 2020, Xiamen Datang Real Estate Group Co.,
Ltd. ("Xiamen Datang”) (for itself and on behalf of its subsidiaries)
entered into an architectural design services framework
agreement (the "Design Services Framework Agreement”) with
Xiamen Yingzao Design Co,, Ltd. (BPI& &2 ERABREA

("Xiamen Design”), pursuant to which Xiamen Design agreed to
provide architectural design services, including but not limited to
concept design, construction documentation, and landscaping
design (the “Architectural Design Services”) to our Group for
a term commencing from the Listing Date to 31 December
2022. Our Directors are of the view that Xiamen Design has
adequate resources to fund its business operations and provide
Architectural Design Services based on the cooperation history
with Xiamen Design since 2013. We will endeavor to seek
quotations from at least three qualified independent architectural
design service providers and will only engage Xiamen Design as
the service provider if the price and quality of the Architectural
Design Services are comparable to or more favorable to our
Group than those offered by the independent service providers.
The service fees to be charged for the Architectural Design
Services shall be determined after arm’s length negotiations
with reference to the prevailing market price for similar services
in the open market and the anticipated costs of Xiamen Design.
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The maximum annual service fees in relation to the Architectural
Design Services to be provided under the Design Services
Framework Agreement for each of the years ending 31 December
2020, 2021 and 2022 will not exceed RMB4.8 million, RMB8.1
million and RMB10.3 million, respectively. Such estimation is
based on: (i) the number of current projects for which we have
engaged Xiamen Design to provide the Architectural Design
Services; (ii) the historical transaction amounts in particular,
the actual transaction amount for the six months ended 30
June 2020; (iii) the total GFA of properties of our Group which
required Architectural Design Services; and (iv) the expected
increase in number of projects and GFA of our properties which
required Architectural Design Services after taking into account
our business development plan for each of the years ending 31
December 2020, 2021 and 2022.

The Design Services Framework Agreement is a framework
agreement which provides the mechanism for the operation
of the connected transactions between our Group and Xiamen
Design. It is envisaged that from time to time and as required,
individual service agreements may be required to be entered
into between our Group and Xiamen Design. Each individual
service agreement will set out the scope of services to be
provided by Xiamen Design to our Group. The individual
service agreements may only contain provisions which are in
all material respects consistent with the binding principles,
guidelines, terms and conditions set out in the Design Services
Framework Agreement. As the individual service agreements are
simply further elaborations on the services contemplated by the
Design Services Framework Agreement, they do not constitute
new categories of connected transactions as far as Listing Rules
are concerned. Xiamen Design is owned as to 70% by Xiamen
Chengxin Design Consulting Co., Ltd. (EFIERTFHEAAB
R 2 7)), a wholly-owned subsidiary of Xiamen Xindi, which is
indirectly controlled by Ms. Wong, our Controlling Shareholder.
As such, Xiamen Design is a connected person of our Company
for the purpose of the Listing Rules. Accordingly, the transactions
contemplated under the Design Services Framework Agreement
will constitute continuing connected transactions for our
Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules upon Listing.
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As some of the applicable percentage ratios (other than the
profit ratio) under the Listing Rules in respect of the annual
caps in relation to the Design Service Framework Agreement are
expected to be more than 0.1% but less than 5% on an annual
basis, such transactions will constitute continuing connected
transactions of our Company that will be subject to the
reporting, annual review and announcement requirements but
will be exempted from the independent Shareholders’ approval
requirement under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

The actual transaction amount of the foregoing transactions in
2020 amounted to RMB3.3 million.

Property Management Services

On 20 November 2020, Xiamen Datang (for itself and on behalf
of its subsidiaries) entered into a master property management
services agreement (the “Master Property Management Services
Agreement”) with Xiamen Tangren Property Management
Co, Lid. (EFIEAWEEERBR AR (‘Tangren Property”)
pursuant to which we agreed to engage Tangren Property
and its subsidiaries (“Tangren Group”) to provide property
management and related services, including but not limited
to (i) pre-delivery services and property management services
for unsold properties owned by us; (ii) house inspection and
cleaning services; and (iii) display units and on-site sales office
management services (the “Property Management Services”) for
aterm commencing from the Listing Date to 31 December 2022.
Our Directors are of the view that Tangren Group has adequate
resources to fund its business operations and provide Property
Management Services based on the cooperation history with
Tangren Group since 2010. The service fees to be charged for
the Property Management Services shall be determined with
reference to a number of factors, including (i) the total GFA
of the property development projects of which such Property
Management Services is required; (i) the anticipated operational
costs (including labor costs, material costs and administrative
costs); and (i) the prevailing market price for similar services
and similar type of projects and shall be no less favorable than
those quoted by independent third parties to us.
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The maximum annual service fees in relation to the Property
Management Services to be provided under the Master Property
Management Services Agreement for each of the years ending
31 December 2020, 2021 and 2022 will not exceed RMB66.4
million, RMB92.6 million and RMB121.0 million, respectively.
Such estimation is based on: (i) the number of current property
projects for which we have engaged Tangren Group to provide
the Property Management Services; (i) the historical transaction
amounts for the Track Record Period; (iii) the increase in GFA of
new properties which will require pre-delivery services in 2020
as compared to 2019, which has been estimated based on the
GFA of properties delivered by us and managed by Tangren
Group as of 30 June 2020. In addition, we estimate that the GFA
of new properties which will require such services will continue
to increase for each of the years ending 31 December 2020,
2021 and 2022. According to our business development plan,
we anticipate to complete 8, 8, and 10 projects for each of the
three years ending 31 December 2020, 2021 and 2022; and (iv)
the increase of number of property projects to be pre-sold by
us and the corresponding number of display units and sales
office which we will engage Tangren Group for the provision
of on-site management services for each of the years ending
31 December 2020, 2021 and 2022. We plan to operate a total
of 23, 30 and 37 sales offices for such projects developed or to
be developed for the three years ending 31 December 2022,
respectively. For each of the sales offices, we normally built up
two to three display units. The Master Property Management
Services Agreement is a framework agreement which provides
the mechanism for the operation of the connected transaction
between our Group and Tangren Group. It is envisaged that
from time to time and as required, individual service agreements
may be required to be entered into between our Group and
Tangren Group. Each individual service agreement will set out
the scope of Property Management Services to be provided by
Tangren Group to our Company, the fees for the services to be
paid by our Company and any detailed specifications which
may be relevant to those engagements. The individual service
agreements may only contain provisions which are in all material
respects consistent with the binding principles, guidelines, terms
and conditions set out in the Master Property Management
Services Agreement. Tangren Property is directly owned as to
75% by Xiamen Xindi Group Co., Ltd. ("Xiamen Xindi") and 25% by
Xiamen Fuxin Real Estate Co., Ltd. ("Xiamen Fuxin”). Xiamen Xindi
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is owned as to 95.5% by Fuxin Group, which is in turn owned as
to 51.03% by Ms. Wong. Xiamen Fuxin is owned as to 51.26% by
Xiamen Xindi, and 48.74% by Good First Group, which is in turn
owned as to 90% by Ms. Wong. Accordingly, Tangren Property
is indirectly owned as to approximately 53.76% by Ms. Wong,
and thus indirectly controlled by Ms. Wong, our Controlling
Shareholder. As such, Tangren Property is a connected person of
our Company for the purpose of the Listing Rules. Accordingly,
the transactions under the Master Property Management Services
Agreement will constitute continuing connected transactions
for our Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules upon
Listing. As each of the applicable percentage ratios (other than
the profits ratio) under the Listing Rules in respect of the annual
caps in relation to the Master Property Management Services
Agreement is expected to be more than 0.1% but less than 5%
on an annual basis, such transactions will constitute continuing
connected transactions for our Company that will be subject to
the reporting, annual review and announcement requirements
but will be exempted from the independent Shareholders’
approval requirement under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

The actual transaction amount of the foregoing transactions in
2020 amounted to RMB62.1 million.

Annual Review

The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the above

continuing connected transactions pursuant to Rule 14A.55 of the Listing

Rules and confirmed that the transactions have been entered into:

(i)

(i)

(iii)

in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;
on normal commercial terms; and
according to the agreement governing them on terms that

are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the Company’s
shareholders as a whole.
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PricewaterhouseCoopers, the independent auditor of the Company, was
engaged to report on the Group’s continuing connected transaction in
accordance with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000
(Revised) “Assurance Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of
Historical Financial Information” and with reference to Practice Note 740
“Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong
Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. The auditor has issued an unqualified letter containing
the findings and conclusions in respect of the aforesaid continuing
connected transaction in accordance with Rule 14A.56 of the Listing
Rules. The copy of the independent auditor's letter provided by the
auditor to the Company has been submitted to the Stock Exchange.

In respect of the continuing connected transactions, the Company’s

auditor confirmed that:

a. nothing has come to their attention that causes them to believe
that the continuing connected transactions have not been
approved by the Company's board of directors;

b. for transactions involving the provision of goods or services by
the Group, nothing has come to their attention that causes them
to believe that the transactions were not, in all material respects,

in accordance with the pricing policies of the Group;

C. nothing has come to their attention that causes them to believe
that the transactions were not entered into, in all material
respects, in accordance with the relevant agreements governing
such transactions; and

d. with respect to the aggregate amount of each of the continuing
connected transactions, nothing has come to their attention
that causes them to believe that the continuing connected
transactions have exceeded the annual cap as set by the
Company.
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

A summary of the related party transactions entered into by the Group

during the year ended 31 December 2020 is contained in note 40 to

the consolidated financial statements of the Group in this annual report.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company approved a share option scheme (the “Share Option

Scheme”) on 20 November 2020, the summary of principal terms of

which is as follows:

(a)

Purpose

The Share Option Scheme is a share incentive scheme prepared
in accordance with Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules and is
established to recognize and acknowledge the contributions
that the Eligible Participants (as defined in paragraph (b) below)
had or may have made to our Group. The Share Option Scheme
will provide the Eligible Participants an opportunity to have a
personal stake in our Company with the view to achieving the

following objectives:

(i) motivate the Eligible Participants to optimize their
performance efficiency for the benefit of our Group; and

(i) attract and retain or otherwise maintain an on-going
business relationship with the Eligible Participants whose
contributions are or will be beneficial to the long-term
growth of our Group.

BB L RS

AEBEZ2020F12A3B I FEETNEB AR S
BEHN AT RANRER S Gt B RERMFE40 o

RS

AR BF20209F 11 A 20 B ER BB RO 5+ 81 ([ BR AR =t

gl

(a)

B &

I2EFBEDT

BRER I RIE EHARRE T EEHEA K

0BT 8l
(EERE TXO)B)HAKBMIELRAE

BERZEE
EfEH

Ty R R MR A

MERMRY - BEREFEHRaER2EE

RH—EARARFEEEARDORE @ JAZ
BRIIBRE

(ii)

i%ﬁU;%b’-\éﬁ%%éﬁi% RARE 2 /UL mE
{EERIBRE
ol kB (EE ) AEEN R

EEBERMIANNEERZEE »
AEM T A REEARENTESE
HRAR -



Participants
The Board may, at its discretion, offer to grant an option to the

following persons (collectively the “Eligible Participants”):

(i) any full-time or part-time employees, executives or

officers of our Company or any of its subsidiaries;

(if) any directors (including non-executive directors and
independent non-executive directors) of our Company
or any of its subsidiaries; and

(iii) any advisers, consultants, suppliers, customers,

distributors and such other persons who, in the sole

opinion of the Board, will contribute or have contributed

to our Company and/or any of its subsidiaries.

Consideration of options granted
Upon acceptance of the option, the grantee shall pay HK$1.00

to our Company by way of consideration for the grant.

Maximum number of shares

The maximum number of Shares in respect of which options may
be granted under the Share Option Scheme and under any other
share option schemes of our Company must not in aggregate
exceed 10% of the total number of Shares in issue immediately
following completion of the Global Offering, being 133,340,000
Shares (represents approximately 9.78% as at the date of this
annual report), excluding for this purpose Shares which would
have been issuable pursuant to options which have lapsed in
accordance with the terms of the Share Option Scheme (or any
other share option schemes of our Company).
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Maximum number of options granted

The total number of Shares issued and which may fall to be

issued upon exercise of the options granted under the Share

Option Scheme and any other share option schemes of our

Company (including both exercised and outstanding options)

to each Eligible Participant in any 12-month period up to the

date of grant shall not exceed 1% of our Shares in issue as at

the date of grant. Any further grant of options in excess of this

1% limit shall be subject to:

(@)

theissue of a circular by our Company to our Shareholders
which small comply with Rules 17.03(4) and 17.06 of
the Listing Rules and/or such other requirements as
prescribed under the Listing Rules from time to time.
The circular to be issued by our Company shall contain
the identity of the Eligible Participant, the numbers of
and terms of the options to be granted (and options
previously granted to such participant), the information
as required under Rule 17.02(2)(d) and the disclaimer
required under 17.02(4) of the Listing Rules; and

the approval of our Shareholders in general meeting
and/or other requirements prescribed under the Listing
Rules from time to time with such Eligible Participant
and his close associates (as defined in the Listing Rules)
(or his/her associates (as defined in the Listing Rules) if
the Eligible Participant is a core connected person (as
defined in the Listing Rules)) abstaining from voting.
The numbers and terms (including the exercise price)
of options to be granted to such participant must be
fixed before our Shareholders’ approval and the date of
the Board meeting at which the Board proposes to grant
the options to such Eligible Participant shall be taken
as the date of grant for the purpose of calculating the

subscription price of our Shares.
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Granting options to a director, chief executive or
substantial shareholder of our Company or any of their

respective associates

Any grant of options to a director, chief executive or substantial
shareholder (as defined in the Listing Rules) of our Company or
any of their respective associates (as defined in the Listing Rules)
is required to be approved by the independent non-executive
Directors (excluding any independent non-executive Director
who is the grantee of the options). If the Board proposes to
grant options to a substantial shareholder or any independent
non-executive Director (or any of their respective associates (as
defined in the Listing Rules)) which will result in the number of
Shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of options granted
and to be granted (including options exercised, canceled and
outstanding) to such person in the 12-month period up to and
including the date of such grant:

(i) representing in aggregate over 0.1% or such other
percentage as may be from time to time provided under
the Listing Rules of our Shares in issue on the date of
offer of the option; and

(ii) having an aggregate value, based on the official closing
price of our Shares as stated in the daily quotation sheets
of the Stock Exchange on the date of such grant, in excess
of HKS5 million or such other sum as may be from time
to time provided under the Listing Rules. Such further
grant of options will be subject to the issue of a circular
by our Company and the approval of our Shareholders
in general meeting on a poll at which the grantee,
his/her associates and all core connected persons (as
defined in the Listing Rules) of our Company shall abstain
from voting in favor, and/or such other requirements
prescribed under the Listing Rules from time to time.
Any vote taken at the meeting to approve the grant of
such options shall be taken as a poll.
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Time of exercise of option and duration of the Share

Option Scheme

An option may be exercised in accordance with the terms of
the Share Option Scheme at any time after the date upon which
the option is deemed to be granted and accepted and prior to
the expiry of 10 years from that date. The period during which
an option may be exercised will be determined by the Board in
its absolute discretion, save that no option may be exercised
more than 10 years after it has been granted. No option may
be granted more than 10 years after the Listing Date. Subject
to earlier termination by our Company in general meeting or by
the Board, the Share Option Scheme shall be valid and effective
for a period of 10 years from the Listing Date.

Subscription price for Shares

The subscription price of a Share in respect of any particular
option granted under the Share Option Scheme shall be such
price as the Board in its absolute discretion shall determine, save
that such price must be at least the highest of:

(i) the official closing price of our Shares as stated in the
Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheets on the date of
grant, which must be a day on which the Stock Exchange
is open for the business of dealing in securities;

(if) the average of the official closing prices of our Shares as
stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheets for
the five business days immediately preceding the date
of grant; and

(iii) the nominal value of a Share.

From the Listing Date to 31 December 2020, no option had been granted

or agreed to be granted under the Share Option Scheme.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company

and to the knowledge of the Directors as at the latest practicable date

prior to the issue of this annual report, the Company has maintained a

sufficient public float as required under the Listing Rules.
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CHARITABLE DONATIONS

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group made charitable
and other donations in a total amount of approximately RMB10 million.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

On 6 January 2021, ICBC International Capital Limited, the Sponsor of the
Public Offering, partially exercised the over-allotment right and allotted
and issued 30,144,000 additional shares at price of HK$4.56 per share.
The net proceeds from the partial exercise of the over-allotment right
were approximately HK$135.4 million. The net proceeds will be utilised in
accordance with the proposed application as disclosed in the Prospectus.

Save as disclosed above, the Group has no significant events after the
end of the year ended 31 December 2020 and up to the date of this

annual report.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Principal corporate governance practices adopted by the Company are
set out in the section headed “Corporate Governance Report” in this

annual report.

AUDITOR

PricewaterhouseCoopers, the auditor of the Company, has audited the
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2020,

and will retire at the annual general meeting.
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Having been approved by the Board upon the Audit Committee’s
recommendation, a resolution for the re-appointment of
PricewaterhouseCoopers as the Company’s auditor is to be proposed
at the annual general meeting. There was no change of the auditor of
the Company from the Listing Date.

On behalf of the Board
Datang Group Holdings Limited
Mr. Wu Di

Chairman

Hong Kong, 16 March 2021
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Directors recognize the importance of incorporating elements
of good corporate governance in the management structures and
internal control procedures of the Group so as to achieve effective
accountability. The Company has adopted the code provisions stated
in the Corporate Governance Code contained in Appendix 14 to the
Listing Rules since the Listing Date. The Company is committed to the
view that the Board should include a balanced composition of executive
Directors and independent non-executive Directors so that there is a
strong independent element on the Board, which can effectively exercise
independent judgment.

From the Listing Date to 31 December 2020, the Company has complied
with all applicable provisions of the Corporate Governance Code.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Board Composition

As at the date of this report, the Board consists of four executive Directors,
namely Mr. Wu Di (chairman of the Board), Mr. Hao Shengchun, Mr.
Tang Guozhong and Ms. Zhang Jianhua, and three independent non-
executive Directors, namely Mr. Qu Wenzhou, Ms. Xin Zhu and Mr. Tam
Chi Choi. An updated list of the Directors and their roles and functions is
published on the websites of the Stock Exchange and of the Company,
respectively. Their names and biographical details are set out in the
section headed “Directors and Senior Management” of this report. The
overall management and supervision of the Company’s operation and
the function of formulating overall business strategies were vested
in the Board. There is no financial, business, family or other material
relationships among members of the Board.

During the the period from the Listing Date to 31 December 2020,
the Board has at all times met the requirements of Rules 3.10(1) and
(2) of the Listing Rules relating to the appointment of at least three
independent non-executive directors with at least one independent non-
executive director possessing appropriate professional qualifications,
or accounting or related financial management expertise. The three
independent non-executive Directors represent more than one-third
of the Board, complying with the requirement under Rule 3.10A of the
Listing Rules whereby independent non-executive directors of a listed
issuer must represent at least one-third of the board. The Board believes
there is sufficient independence element in the Board to safequard the
interest of Shareholders.
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Directors’ Responsibilities

The Board takes the responsibility to oversee all major matters of the
Company, including the formulation and approval of all policy matters,
overall strategies, internal control and risk management systems, and
monitor the performance of the senior executives. The Directors have
to make decisions objectively in the interests of the Company. As at the
date of this report, the Board comprised seven Directors, including four
executive Directors and three independent non-executive Directors.
Names and biographical details are set out in the section headed
"Directors and Senior Management” of this report.

MEMBERS OF OUR BOARD

Date of joining

EEEE
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Date of

appointmentas Roles and

Name Age Existing position  the Group Director responsibilities
BEER
HE i RAERK MAXEBEZE ZEEZH AEREME
Mr. Wu Di 55  Executive Director, 22 January 2011 14 December 2018 Responsible for the overall strategic
Rk chairman of the 2011418228 20185124148 development and major

Board
WITES - =fF

Mr. Hao Shengchun 46
MEBELE

Executive Director 22 January 2011

and president 20114F1 A22H

WITESREH

business decisions of the Group
BEASENBRERERNLE
REBRE

11 November 2019
201911 A1 H

Responsible for assisting in the
overall strategic development,
operational planning and daily
operation of the Group

BB BB AN EE R AR AR 3
R ESHERAEES

Mr. Tang Guozhong 46
fEBIgE S

Ms. Zhang Jianhua 68
REEL L

Executive Director
and joint
company
secretary

HITESR®

FEANCIE

Executive Director

HITES

22 January 2011
20114E1 A 22H

22 January 2011
20114E1 A22H

11 November 2019
201911 A1 H

11 November 2019
201911 A11H

Responsible for securities
management, risk management
and public relations
management of the Group

BEAEEESERE  RARER
RAFBRER

Responsible for human resources
management of the Group

BEAKBANERER
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Date of

appointmentas  Roles and

Name Age Existing position  the Group Director responsibilities
BEER
HE Fir BRAERK MAXEBzH EEZH AEREE
Mr. Qu Wenzhou 48  Independent non- 20 November 2020 20 November 2020 Responsible for providing
JESUM A& executive Director 20209F11 8208 20204118208 independent advice on the
B IEMITES operations and management of
the Group
BEMARENKLE REEBRM
BIER
Ms. Xin Zhu 52 Independent non- 20 November 2020 20 November 2020 Responsible for providing
FIRL T executive Director 2020811 H208 2020911 H20H independent advice on the
BYIFRITES operations and management of
the Group
BEMAEENKE RERRH
BUER
Mr. Tam Chi Choi 56 Independent non- 20 November 2020 20 November 2020 Responsible for providing

BESEE

executive Director

B IFFWITES

20204F11 H20H

The roles of the chairman and the president of the Company have be

separated pursuant to the CG Code provision A.2.1 of the Corporate

Governance Code, Mr. Wu Di served as the chairman of the Company

and Mr. Hao Shengchun served as the president of the Company (the

"President”) for the year ended 31 December 2020.

202011 H20H independent advice on the

operations and management of

the Group
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BN ER
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Liability insurance for Directors and senior management of the Company
is maintained by the Company with appropriate coverage for certain
legal liabilities which may arise in the course of performing their duties.

Delegation by the Board

The management, consisting of executive Directors along with other
senior executives, is delegated with responsibilities for implementing the
strategy and direction as adopted by the Board from time to time, and
conducting the day-to-day management and operations of the Group.
Executive Directors and senior executives meet regularly to review the
performance of the businesses of the Group as a whole, co-ordinate
overall resources and make financial and operational decisions. The Board
also gives clear directions as to their powers of management including
circumstances where management should report back, and will review
the delegation arrangements on a periodic basis to ensure that they

remain appropriate to the needs of the Group.

Directors’ Responsibilities for Financial Statements

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for preparing the
consolidated financial statements of the Group in accordance with
statutory requirements and applicable accounting standards. The
Directors also acknowledge their responsibilities to ensure that the
consolidated financial statements of the Group are published in a timely
manner. The Directors are not aware of any material uncertainties relating
to events or conditions which may cast significant doubt upon the
Company's ability to continue as a going concern. Accordingly, the
Directors have prepared the consolidated financial statements of the
Group on a going concern basis.

Independent Non-executive Directors

The independent non-executive Directors play a significant role in the
Board by virtue of their independent judgment and their views carry
significant weight in the Board's decision. The functions of independent
non-executive Directors include bringing an impartial view and judgment
on issues of the Company’s strategies, performance and control; and
scrutinizing the Company's performance and monitoring performance

reporting.
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All independent non-executive Directors possess extensive academic,
professional and industry expertise and management experience and
have made positive contributions to the development of the Company
through providing their professional advice to the Board.

All independent non-executive Directors are appointed for a term of
three years.

Confirmation of Independence

The independence of the independent non-executive Directors has been
assessed in accordance with the applicable Listing Rules and each of the
independent non-executive Directors has provided an annual written
confirmation of independence to the Company pursuant to Rule 3.13
of the Listing Rules. The Company is of the view that all independent
non-executive Directors meet the guidelines for assessing independence
set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and are independent.

Board Diversity Policy

The Board has adopted a board diversity policy which sets out the
approach to achieve diversity on the Board. The Company recognizes
and embraces the benefits of having a diverse Board and sees increasing
diversity at the Board level as an essential element in supporting the
attainment of the Company’s strategic objectives and sustainable
development. The Company seeks to achieve Board diversity through
the consideration of a number of factors, including but not limited
to gender, age, cultural and educational background, ethnicity,
professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of service. All
Board appointments will be based on meritocracy and candidates will be
considered against objective criteria, having due regard to the benefits

of diversity on the Board.
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As of the date of this report, the Board comprises seven members,
including one female executive Director and one female independent
non-executive Director. The Directors also have a balanced mix of
knowledge, skills and experience, including property development,
overall business management, finance and investment. They obtained
degrees in various majors including business administration, civil
engineering, international finance, physics, accounting and law. The
Board has three independent non-executive Directors with different
industry backgrounds, representing more than one-third of the Board
members. Furthermore, the Board has a wide range of age, ranging from
45 years old to 68 years old. The Company has taken and will continue to
take steps to promote gender diversity at all levels of the Group, including
but without limitation at the Board and senior management levels.
Taking into account the business model of the Group and its specific
needs as well as the presence of two female Directors out of a total of
seven Board members, the Directors consider that the composition of
the Board satisfies the board diversity policy.

With regards to gender diversity on the Board, the board diversity policy
further provides that the Board shall take opportunities to increase the
proportion of female members over time when selecting and making
recommendations on suitable candidates for Board appointments. The
Group will also ensure that there is gender diversity when recruiting
staff at mid to senior level so that it will have a pipeline of female senior
management and potential successors to the Board going forward. It
is the objective of the Company to maintain an appropriate balance of
gender diversity with reference to the stakeholders’ expectation and
international and local recommended best practices.

The nomination committee of the Company is responsible for ensuring
the diversity of the Board members and compliance with relevant codes
governing board diversity under the Listing Rules. The nomination
committee of the Company will review the board diversity policy and its
diversity profile from time to time to ensure its continued effectiveness.
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Appointment, Re-election and Removal of Directors

Each of the executive Directors and independent non-executive Directors
has entered into a service contract or a letter of appointment with the
Company for a specific term. Such term is subject to his/her retirement
by rotation and re-election at an annual general meeting of the Company
in accordance with the Articles of Association. The Articles of Association
provide that any Director appointed by the Board to fill a casual vacancy
in the Board shall hold office until the first general meeting after his/her
appointment or as an additional member of the Board shall hold office
only until the next following annual general meeting and shall then be
eligible for re-election at such meeting.

In accordance with the Articles of Association, at each annual general
meeting of the Company, one-third of the Directors for the time being,
shall retire from office by rotation provided that every Director shall be
subject to retirement at an annual general meeting at least once every
three years. The members of the Company may, at any general meetings
convened and held in accordance with the Articles of Association, by
ordinary resolution remove a Director at any time before the expiration
of his/her period of office notwithstanding anything to the contrary in
the Articles of Association or in any agreement between the Company
and such Director (but without prejudice to any claim for damages
under any such agreement).

Directors’ Training and Professional Development

Every newly appointed Director has been given a comprehensive, formal
and tailored induction on appointment. Subsequently, the Directors
will receive updates on the Listing Rules, legal and other regulatory
requirements and the latest development of the Group’s business and are
encouraged to participate in continuous professional development to
develop their knowledge and skills. During the year ended 31 December
2020 and prior to the Listing, all of the Directors, namely, Mr. Wu Di
(chairman of the Board), Mr. Hao Shengchun, Mr. Tang Guozhong, Ms.
Zhang Jianhua, Mr. Qu Wenzhou, Ms. Xin Zhu and Mr. Tam Chi Choi
participated in a training session conducted by Sidley Austin, the legal
adviser of the Company as to Hong Kong laws, on directors’ duties,
responsibilities and obligations under the Listing Rules and the SFO and
complied with the code provision A.6.5 of the Corporate Governance
Code.
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The Company will arrange regular seminars to provide Directors with
updates on latest development and changes in the Listing Rules and
other relevant legal and regulatory requirements from time to time.
The Directors are also provided with regular updates on the Company’s
performance, position and prospects to enable the Board as a whole and
each Director to discharge their duties. Pursuant to the requirements
of the code provisions set out in the Corporate Governance Code, all
Directors have provided the Company with records of the training they
received to ensure that their contributions to the Board remain informed

and relevant.

Board Meetings

The Board meets regularly to discuss and formulate the overall strategy as
well as the operation and financial performance of the Group. Directors
may participate in meetings either in person or through electronic
means of communications. The Board holds at least four meetings a
year at approximately quarterly intervals. Additional meetings would be
arranged, if and when required. The date of each meeting is decided
in advance to enable the Directors to attend the meeting in person.
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Attendance Record of Directors

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the Company held 2 Board
meetings, one for appoitment of independent non-executive Directors
with all executive Directors attending the meeting, and another for
consideration and approval of relevant listing documents and steps
adopted for the listing of the Company (and its sudsidiaries) on the Main
Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited with all Directors
(including executive Directors and independent non-executive Directors)
attending the meeting. The table below sets out the details of attendance
of these Board meetings:
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Number of Board Meetings
held/attendance

Name of Director EEEE EESRRETAE HE
Executive Directors BITES
Mr. Wu Di Rt 2/2
Mr. Hao Shengchun e 2/2
Mr. Tang Guozhong EESE A 2/2
Ms. Zhang Jianhua REFEL T 2/2
Independent Non-Executive Directors BIkHTES

(appointed on 20 November 2020) (7202011 B20 B EEE)
Mr. Qu Wenzhou JESUM A& 1/1
Ms. Xin Zhu FRL L 1/1
Mr. Tam Chi Choi el s 1/1

No general meeting was held since the Listing Date and up to 31
December 2020.
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Nomination policy

The nomination committee of the Company utilizes various methods for
identifying candidates for directorship, including recommendations from
Board members, management and professional search firms. In addition,
the nomination committee of the Company will consider candidates for
directorship properly submitted by the Shareholders. The evaluation
of candidates for directorship by the nomination committee of the
Company may include, without limitation, review of biographies and
working experience, personal interviews, verification of professional
and personal references and performance of background checks. The
Board will consider the recommendations of the nomination committee
of the Company and is responsible for designating the candidates for
directorship to be considered by the Shareholders for their election at the
general meeting of the Company, or appointing the suitable candidate
to act as Director to fill the Board vacancy or as an additional to the
Board members, subject to compliance of the constitutional documents
of the Company. All appointments of Director should be confirmed by
letter of appointment and/or service contract setting out the key terms
and conditions of the appointment of Directors.

The nomination committee of the Company should consider the
following qualifications as a minimum to be required for a candidate
in recommending to the Board to be a potential new Director, or the
continued service of existing Director:

the highest personal and professional ethics and integrity;

proven achievement and competence in the nominee’s field and
the ability to exercise sound business judgment;

skills that are complementary to those of the existing Board;

the ability to assist and support management and make significant
contributions to the Company's success;

an understanding of the fiduciary responsibilities that is required
for a member of the Board and the commitment of time and

energy necessary to diligently carry out those responsibilities;
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independence: the candidates for independent non-executive
directorship should meet the “independence” criteria as required
under the Listing Rules and the composition of the Board is in
conformity with the provisions of the Listing Rules.

The nomination committee of the Company may also consider such
other factors as it may deem are in the best interests of the Company
and the Shareholders as a whole.

COMPLIANCEWITHTHE MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listing Issuers (the “Model Code”) in Appendix 10 to the
Listing Rules as the code of conduct for the Directors’ dealings in the
securities of the Company since the Listing and, upon specific enquiries
of all the Directors, each of them has confirmed that he/she complied
with all applicable code provisions under the Model Code since the
Listing and up to 31 December 2020.

As required by the Company, relevant officers and employees of the
Company are also bound by the Model Code, which prohibits them to
deal in securities of the Company at any time when he/she possesses
inside information in relation to those securities. No incident of non-
compliance of the Model Code by the relevant officers and employees

was notified to the Company.

REMUNERATION PAYABLE TO MEMBERS OF SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

Pursuant to code provision B.1.5 of the Corporate Governance Code, the
annual remuneration of 6 senior management of the Company (other
than Directors) for the year ended 31 December 2020 ranged from Nil
to RMB1,000,000.
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DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company has adopted a dividend policy, pursuant to which the
Company may, at its discretion, declare and distribute dividends to
the Shareholders. In deciding whether to propose a dividend and in
determining the dividend amount, the Board would take into account,
inter alia, the Group’s earnings, cash flow, financial condition, capital
requirements, statutory fund reserve requirements and any other
conditions that the Board may consider relevant. Whilst the Board will
review from time to time the determination on proposed dividend
with the above factors taken into account, there can be no assurance
that dividends will be declared or paid in any particular amount for any
given period.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board is responsible for performing the corporate governance duties
including:

to develop and review the Company’s policies and practices on

corporate governance;

to review and monitor the training and continuous professional

development of Directors and senior management;

to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and
Directors; and

to review the Company's compliance with Appendix 14 to
the Listing Rules (Corporate Governance Code and Corporate

Governance Report).

The Board has performed the above duties during the year ended 31
December 2020.
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established three committees with specific written terms
of reference to oversee particular aspects of the Group's affairs.

Audit Committee

The Company established the audit committee in compliance with
Rules 3.21 to 3.23 of the Listing Rules with written terms of reference in
compliance with the Corporate Governance Code on 20 November 2020.
The primary duties of the audit committee are to review and monitor
the financial reporting process and internal control system and assist
the Board to fulfill its responsibility over the audit responsibility. The
audit committee is also responsible for audit performing the corporate
governance duties including:

to develop and review the Company’s policies and practices on
corporate governance;

to review and monitor the training and continuous professional

development of Directors and senior management;

to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and
Directors; and

to review the Company’'s compliance with Appendix 14 to
the Listing Rules (Corporate Governance Code and Corporate
Governance Report).

The audit committee consists of three independent non-executive
Directors, namely Mr. Qu Wenzhou (the chairman of the audit committee),
Ms. Xin Zhu and Mr. Tam Chi Choi. In compliance with Rule 3.21 of
the Listing Rules, the chairman of the audit committee possesses the

appropriate professional and accounting qualifications.

The audit committee did not hold any meeting during the year ended
31 December 2020.
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Remuneration committee

The Company established the remuneration committee with written
terms of reference in compliance with Rule 3.25 of the Listing Rules
on 20 November 2020. The remuneration committee of the Company
reviews and recommends to the Board the remuneration and other
benefits paid by the Group to its Directors and senior management.
The remuneration of Directors and senior management is determined
with reference to the skills and knowledge of the Directors and senior
management, their job responsibilities and level of involvement in the
Group's affairs, the performance and profitability as well as remuneration
benchmark in the industry and the prevailing market conditions.
Remuneration comprises basic salaries and allowances, bonus, equity-
settled share based payments and retirement benefit contributions. The
remuneration of all the Directors and senior management is subject to
regular monitoring by the remuneration committee to ensure that levels
of their remuneration and compensation are appropriate.

The remuneration committee of the Company consists of three members,
including two independent non-executive Directors and one executive
Director, namely independent non-executive Directors Ms. Xin Zhu
(the chairman of the remuneration committee), Mr. Qu Wenzhou and
executive Director Ms. Zhang Jianhua.

The remuneration committee of the Company did not hold any meeting
during the year ended 31 December 2020.

Nomination Committee

The Company established the nomination committee with written
terms of reference in compliance with Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules
on 20 November 2020. The primary responsibilities of the nomination
committee of the Company are to consider and recommend to the
Board suitable and qualified candidates of Directors and to review the
structure, size and composition of the Board and the board diversity
policy adopted by the Company on a regular basis.

The nomination committee of the Company consists of three members,
including two independent non-executive Directors and one executive
Director. The three members are executive Director Mr. Wu Di (the
chairman of the nomination committee), independent non-executive
Directors Mr. Tam Cai Choi and Ms. Xin Zhu.

As the Company was listed on 11 December 2020, the nomination
committee of the Company did not hold any meeting during the year
ended 31 December 2020.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND
SYSTEMS

INTERNAL CONTROL

Risk Management and Internal Control System

The Board and senior management are responsible for establishment,
review and implementation of the risk management and internal control
systems of the Group. The Board acknowledges its responsibility for
maintaining an adequate and effective risk management and internal
control systems of the Group on an ongoing basis and reviewing their
effectiveness at least annually. The internal control system covers all major
aspects of the Group’s operations, including, among others, property
development, property sales, investment property management,
procurement, financial reporting, asset management, budgeting and
accounting processes. The systems are designed to manage rather than
eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives and can
only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against material
misstatement or loss. The Group also has set up the risk management
department to advise the executive Directors and senior management
regarding the risk control and compliance issues arising from the day-
to-day business operations of the PRC subsidiaries. The risk management
department is responsible for setting up the procedures for identification,
assessment and management of major risks, the procedures for reviewing
the effectiveness of risk management and internal control system, the
procedures for addressing defect of internal control, the procedures
for dealing with and publication of insider information and advising
corresponding internal control measures. The Board considers that the
current composition of the risk management and control team offers
the expertise to provide a risk assessment of key areas of concern, such
as strategy, operations, finance and compliance, to the Board and assists
the Board to effectively plan and manage the operations of the Group's

overall business.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the remunerations paid or
payable to PricewaterhouseCoopers in respect of its audit services and
non-audit services were approximately RMB4.05 million in total.

The auditor is also the reporting accountant of the Listing. A total of
RMB4.13 million (2019: RMB2.00 million) has been paid and payable
for its services in connection with the issue and listing of shares of the
Company which has been included in share issuance costs and listing
expenses (2019: prepayments and listing expenses) as appropriate. The
audit committee was satisfied that the non-audit services in 2020 did
not affect the independence of the auditor.
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JOINT COMPANY SECRETARIES

Mr. Tang Guozhong and Ms. Ng Wing Shan are the joint company
secretaries of the Company. Ms. Ng is the assistant vice president of
SWCS Corporate Services Group (Hong Kong) Limited. Ms. Ng's primary
contact at the Company is Mr. Tang Guozhong. Mr. Tang and Ms. Ng has
confirmed that for the year ended 31 December 2020, they have taken
no less than 15 hours of relevant professional training in compliance with
Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules. The biographies of Mr. Tang and Ms. Ng
are set out in the section headed “Directors and Senior Management”
of this report.

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

Convening an Extraordinary General Meeting

Pursuant to article 64 of the Articles of Association, extraordinary
general meetings shall be convened on the requisition of one or more
Shareholders holding at the date of deposit of the requisition not less
than one-tenth of the paid-up capital of the Company carrying the right
of voting at general meetings of the Company. Such requisition shall be
made in writing to the Board or the secretary of the Company for the
purpose of requiring an extraordinary general meeting to be called by
the Board for the transaction of any business specified in such requisition.
Such meeting shall be held within two months after submission of such
requisition. If within 21 days of such submission the Board fails to proceed
to convene such meeting, the requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may
do so in the same manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred by the
requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed
to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.

Putting Forward Proposals at General Meeting

There are no provisions under the Articles of Association regarding
procedures for Shareholders to put forward proposals at general meetings
other than a proposal of a person for election as Director. Shareholders
may follow the procedures set out above to convene an extraordinary
general meeting for any business specified in such written requisition.
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Enquiries to the Board

Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries and concerns to the
Board in writing through the joint company secretary of the Company at
the Company’s principal place of business in Hong Kong at 40th Floor,
Dah Sing Financial Centre, 248 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong.

Shareholders may also make enquiries with the Board at the general
meetings of the Company.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

There has been no change to the Company's constitutional documents
since the Listing Date. The memorandum of association of the Company
and the Articles of Association is available on the Company’s website
and the Stock Exchange’s website.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Board maintains an on-going dialogue with its Shareholders and
investors in a timely, open and transparent manner. During the year
under review, the Directors and senior management of the Company
participated in roadshows and investment meetings. Corporate
communications (such as interim and annual reports, notices, circulars
and announcements) are sent to Shareholders in a timely manner and
are available on the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

Enquiry from investors and shareholders, please contact:

Telephone: (852) 3703 4678
Email: ir@dyna888.com
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Our Board currently consists of seven Directors, comprising four executive
Directors and three independent non-executive Directors. The powers
and duties of our Board including convening general meetings and
reporting our Board’s work at our general meetings, determining our
business and investment plans, preparing our annual financial budgets
and final reports, formulating proposals for profit distributions and
exercising other powers, functions and duties as conferred by the Articles.
We have entered into a service agreement with each of our executive
Directors. We have also entered into a letter of appointment with each
of our independent non-executive Directors.
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The table below shows certain information in respect of members of TRIINBBEFSRARGSREEEKENET
our Board and senior management of our Company: BEHL
Members of our Board BEEEHNE
Date of
Date of joining appointment as  Roles and
Name Age Existing position our Group Director responsibilities
BZER
HE Fie BERHK MAXEBZzH EEZH AEREE
Mr. Wu Di 55  Executive Director 22 January 2011 14 December 2018 Responsible for the overall strategic
R aE and chairman 201141 H22H 2018124148 development and major

HITEERER

Mr. Hao Shengchun 46
=S

Executive Director
and president

HITESREH

22 January 2011
20114F1 H22H

Executive Director
and joint
company
secretary

MITESR

BN mIME

Mr. Tang Guozhong 46
EEE A

22 January 2011
201141 A22H

business decisions of our Group
BEAKENEBRBERERLE
RERRE

11 November 2019
201911 A1 H

Responsible for assisting in the
overall strategic development,
operational planning and daily
operation of our Group

BEBAREE AR R
R’ EEERAEEY

11 November 2019
201911 A11H

Responsible for securities
management, risk management
and public relations
management of our Group

BEAEEESERE  RARER
RAHKBRER



Name Age

B T

Existing position

RERE
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Date of joining
our Group

MAXEEZH

Date of
appointment as
Director
BEER
Ex2H

EEREREERE

Roles and
responsibilities

AeRERE

Ms. Zhang Jianhua 68
REELL

Mr. Qu Wenzhou 48
JESTUM A £

Ms. Xin Zhu 52
FHI L

Mr. Tam Chi Choi 56
BET A

Executive Director

WITES

Independent non-
executive Director

BUIFMITES

Independent non-
executive Director

BIUIFTES

Independent non-
executive Director

BIUIFRITES

22 January 2011
2011491 A22H

20 November 2020
2020%F11 A20H

20 November 2020
2020411 A20H

20 November 2020
2020911 A20H

11 November 2019
201911 A1 H

20 November 2020
20204F11 A 20H

20 November 2020
2020911 A20H

20 November 2020
20204F11 H20H

Responsible for human resources
management of our Group

BEAKBANERER

Responsible for providing
independent advice on the
operations and management of
our Group

BERAEENKE RERREH
BAUER

Responsible for providing
independent advice on the
operations and management of
our Group

BEMAEENKE REBRM
BIER

Responsible for providing
independent advice on the
operations and management of
our Group

BERAREENLE KEERH
BUER
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Wen

Members of senior management SREEENE
Date of
appointment
Date of joining as senior Roles and
Name Age Existing position our Group management responsibilities
BEER
SREEERE
HE FiR BRERK hMAFX&EEBzHE 2ZH AEREE
Mr. Lin Ruiyan 50 Vice president 22 January 2011 22 January 2011 Responsible for investment
IR B EE Bl 201181 A22H 201181 A22R management and financial
management of our Group
BEAEEREEENVKER
Mr. Wang Xuting 56  Vice president 22 January 2011 22 January 2011 Responsible for administrative
FHE=EE ElEGE 201141 H22H 201141 H22H management, legal
management and operation
of our commercial operation
companies
BERITHRER A ERE LM
Mr. Zhang Huojin 48  Vice president 22 January 2011 12 January 2019 Responsible for operation of our
RANE L EIEGESY 201141 A22H 20191 A 128 subsidiaries in Tianjin
BERMREMBAFINES
Mr. Ng Yan 53 Assistant to the 22 January 2011 22 January 2011 Responsible for assisting in
RREE Chairman 201181 A22H 201181 A22R investment and financing
EERE management of our Group
BEBPHAEBNRE REE
e
Ms. Mi Yuanyuan 45 Assistant to the 22 January 2011 18 January 2016 Responsible for contract cost
KEIREZ L president 20114E1 A22H 20165F1 518H management of our Group,
FEESg:npeil operation and assisting
in product development
management of our Group
BEREEARGEEERE B2
N pBhEmFEE R
Mr. Liu Weiping 40  Financial controller 16 July 2011 10 July 2017 Responsible for funds management
REFEE and fund 201147 R16H 201747108 and assisting in financial
controller management of our Group
MIGRERES BEAKEESEE RGBS
48 B =5



Executive Directors

Mr. Wu Di (&3#), aged 55, was appointed as our Director on 14
December 2018 and was appointed as the chairman of our Board and
redesignated as our executive Director on 11 November 2019. Mr. Wu
joined our Group in January 2011 as the president of Xiamen Datang and
has since then been responsible for the overall strategic development
and major business decisions of our Group. Mr. Wu currently holds
directorships in various subsidiaries of our Group, including Xiamen
Datang, Zhangzhou Datang and Zhangzhou Xindi.

Mr. Wu has over 20 years of experience in real estate industry. Mr. Wu
joined Fuxin Group as a president in January 2003, and since January
2016, has been the chairman of the board of directors of Fuxin Group and
he is primarily responsible for overall strategic planning. Since October
1993, Mr. Wu has been working at Xiamen Fuxin. Since June 2012, he
has been a non-executive director of China Minsheng Banking Corp,,
Ltd. (FRERARITIRID B R A ), the A shares and H shares of which
are listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange (stock code: 600016) and
the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 01988), respectively.
Since January 2011, he has been a director of Hangzhou United Rural
Commercial Bank Co,, Ltd (fi/NBsE& B B ERITRD AR A)).
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Mr. Wu is a council member of Jimei University (235K E2) in the PRC.
He is currently a representative of the thirteenth session of the Fujian
Provincial People’s Congress ({832 & %+ =@ AR KR F), and has
been a member of the Committee of the Chinese People’s Political
Consultative Conference (FBIARBUAHE ) of Xiamen since
2007. Mr. Wu was appointed as the honorary chairman of the second
Non-state-owned Enterprise Chamber of Commerce in Fujian (f82%&
REMHER D) in December 2017, the vice chairman of Fujian Province
Association of Industry and Commerce (1@ &4 T 5) in August 2017
and a standing chairman of China International Chamber of Commerce
for the Private Sector (F1EI R & & BB S /ER ) in May 2012.

Mr. Wu obtained a bachelor's degree in fishery machinery from the
Xiamen Institute of Aquatic Products (BPI7KEET) (now known as
Fisheries College of Jimei University (£ E R Z2IKEZT)) in the PRC in
July 1986, and completed an advanced course in global economics from
Xiamen University (EFIAE2) in the PRC in May 1998. He obtained a
doctorate’s degree in economics from Renmin University of China (47
ARAKE) in the PRC in January 2014 and has been serving as a guest
professor of Renmin University of China since then. Mr. Wu obtained a
senior economist certificate from Fujian Provincial Personnel Department

(@A AZEEE) in December 2005.

Mr. Wu received multiple awards in recognition of his outstanding
achievements. Mr. Wu obtained an outstanding contribution award of
Fujian Merchants Construction of Haixi area (B2 :%/8 82 H B &
#%) by Fujian Provincial People’s Government in June 2013. He obtained
an outstanding contribution award of non-public economic individual
donation and public welfare GEABHILBEALTBEAZESE) in

Fujian Province by Fujian Provincial People’s Government in June 2013.
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Mr. Hao Shengchun (#8 %), aged 46, was appointed as our executive
Director on 11 November 2019 and is responsible for assisting in the
overall strategic development, operational planning and daily operation
of our Group. Mr. Hao joined our Group in January 2011 as an assistant
to the president of Xiamen Datang, and was promoted to vice president
and executive vice president in January 2013 and July 2014, respectively.
Mr. Hao was appointed as the president of our Group in January 2015.

Mr. Hao has over 20 years of experience in real estate industry. From
March 2003 to January 2011, Mr. Hao worked at Xiamen Xindi, where
he last served as a vice president and was primarily responsible for the
cost management, engineering technology and marketing operations.
From August 2000 to March 2003, Mr. Hao worked at South Asia Real
Estate Holding Co.,, Ltd. (F z 2 & B B R A 7)), a property developer,
as a civil engineer where he was primarily responsible for the on-site
management of its property development projects. From July 1996 to
August 2000, Mr. Hao worked at the China Construction Fifth Engineering
Bureau the Second Construction and Installation (Hunan) Co., Ltd. (FR &
RBE - BELTEGHR) A F)), where he last served as deputy project
manager and was primarily responsible for its project management, cost

management and on-site construction management.

Mr. Hao obtained a diploma in industrial and civil construction from
Yueyang University (FEF%AZ2) (now known as Hunan University of
Technology ($F3E T AKE2)) in the PRC in July 1996. Mr. Hao obtained
a bachelor’s degree in construction engineering from Central South
University (FFEGAE) in the PRC in December 2002. Mr. Hao became
a certified construction cost engineer in January 2003, and a certified
Class 1 constructor (—#%23&HM) in February 2008. Mr. Hao also obtained
qualification as a construction economist by the Personnel Department
(AZEER) of the PRC in December 2002.
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Mr. Tang Guozhong (& Bl #Z), aged 46, was appointed as our executive
Director on 11 November 2019, and is primarily responsible for securities
management, risk management and public relations management of
our Group. Mr. Tang joined our Group in January 2011, served as a vice
president of Xiamen Datang.

Mr. Tang has over 20 years of experience in the real estate industry. From
July 1999 to December 2000, Mr. Tang served as a deputy manager of
the finance department of Xiamen Fuxin, and was responsible for its
financial management. From January 2001 to January 2011, Mr. Tang
worked at Fuxin Group, where he last served as a financial controller
and was primarily responsible for its financial management.

Since December 2016, Mr. Tang has been a vice president of the
general chamber of commerce of Xiamen Association of Industry and
Commerce (BP9 L (4 E)) and a vice president of Xiamen
Chamber of Commerce in Shanghai (/8T EFIRE®). Mr. Tang was a
standing committee member of Xiamen Foreign Investment Enterprise
Association (EPITSNEIRE B EWRE) from June 2013 to May 2019,
and has been a vice president of the association since June 2019.

Mr. Tang obtained a bachelor’s degree in auditing in July 1996, a master’s
degreein accounting in July 1999 and a doctorate’s degree in accounting
in July 2005, all from Xiamen University (B F9KXE2) in the PRC. Mr. Tang
became a member of the Chinese Institute of Certified Public Accountant
in December 1998 and a registered tax advisor in the PRC in June 2001.
He also obtained a senior accountant certificate from Fujian Provincial
Personnel Department (f&i£%& A ZEE2) in May 2005.
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Ms. Zhang Jianhua (3R %), aged 68, was appointed as our executive
Director on 11 November 2019 and is responsible for human resources
management of our Group. Ms. Zhang joined our Group in January 2011,
served as a vice president of Xiamen Datang and she became a director
of Xiamen Datang in January 2016.

Ms. Zhang has over 25 years of experience in real estate industry. Ms.
Zhang served as a vice president of Fuxin Group from May 1995 to
October 2019 and was primarily responsible for its human resources
management. From December 1993 to January 2011, Ms. Zhang served

as a deputy general manager and director of Xiamen Fuxin.

From December 2007 to November 2016, Ms. Zhang served as a vice
president of Chamber of Commerce of Siming District, Xiamen (& ]
mERRE ), and has been an honorary president since November
2016. Ms. Zhang has been a council member of the Alumni Association
of Jimei University (583K 22) in the PRC since July 2007,

Ms. Zhang obtained a diploma for special training program for
government and party cadres (EE#HIPEIEED) from the Open
University of Fujian ({8 f2& BHEERKRE) in the PRC in July 1986. Ms.
Zhang obtained a senior economist certificate from Fujian Provincial
Personnel Department (f&#2& A EB&) in December 2005.
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Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. Qu Wenzhou (J&3ZM), aged 48, was appointed as our independent
non-executive Director on 20 November 2020 and is responsible for
providing independent advice on the operations and management
of our Group. Mr. Qu is currently the dean of the Jinyuan Institute for
Financial Studies (& [EIfff EPi), professor of the School of Management,
and the head of Business Administration Education Center of Xiamen
University (B FPTKE) in the PRC.

Mr. Qu started to work at Xiamen University in the PRC as an associate
professor in 2005 and became a professor in 2007.

Mr. Qu is currently serving or had served as an independent non-
executive director or independent director during the three years
immediately proceeding the date of this annual report in the following
listed companies:

BAFHITES

JESUMSEE © 485% © 2020511 A20 R EZEAB T
FHITES AENAEENCEREEREBILE
Ro-BrRERAPREMAZSERAERRE - B2
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JB SR AR 2005 F FBER P BEPIRSEIZE - TR
2007FF X B -

EEREREERNFREAYMI=FARETHEENAT L
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Name of Place of listing and
Period of services company Principal business stock code Position(s)
LR

AR 7% BA R NEEH FTEEK R B

Since August 2019 Fuyao Glass Manufacturing float Stock Exchange Independent
Industry Group Co., Ltd. glass, automobile glass (stock code: 3606) non-executive

and construction glass director

BH2019F8 A8 BREHEIZEERNE SEDEWRE  AEFE B BUIERITES
iR A A NSRS (B 5R - 3606)

Since September 2018 China Merchants Shekou Development and operation Shenzhen Stock Independent
Industrial Zone Holdings of industrial parks, Exchange (stock director
Co,, Ltd. communities and cruise code: 001979)

business

B20184F9 A 2 BERBR O TXEERR IXER- - dREkBHE RAIESSH BIES

(aE=1 VNG ERREREE (AP R5R -
001979)

Since March 2015 Guangdong Baolihua New  New energy power Shenzhen Stock Independent

Energy Stock Co., Ltd. generation Exchange (stock director
code: 000690)

H2015F3 A% BREBEMLIRRG HELIREE RYFEHZZ 5P BUES

A7 (B R

000690)
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Name of Place of listing and
Period of services company Principal business stock code Position(s)
L RR
BR % #A REEH FEEHK IR A3 K5 B
Since January 2016 Ronshine China Holdings Property development Stock Exchange Independent
Limited (stock code: 3301) non-executive
director
H2016%F1 A2 BIEPBEERAR AR MEFE B P (BRin X BIUFAITES

From December 2013
to July 2019

2013F 128 %
201947 A

From July 2016 to
July 2019

2016F7A %
2019%7 A

From September 2011
to December 2017

201MF9AE
2017412 A

From August 2010 to
September 2018

2010F8 A&
201859 A

Geo-Jade Petroleum
Corporation

ME R AR AF]

Fujian Septwolves Industry
Co, Ltd

RETLREXRNER
]

Fujian Cosunter

Pharmaceutical Co,, Ltd.

BREBEEEXRMNAR

R A]

Mingfa Group
(International)
Company Limited

AR R E (BB ) AR AR

Exploration and
development of oil and
gas

RN IR K 2

Fashion design and
manufacturing

oo
-
i
X

W R

Manufacturing of
crude drug

RF B E

Property development

SE e

Mr. Qu has been a member of the Chinese Institute of Certified Public
Accountants since November 2003 and a chartered financial analyst
authorized by the Chartered Financial Analyst Institute since November
2004.

Mr. Qu obtained a bachelor’s degree in applied mathematics, a master’s
degree in finance, a master's degree in business administration and a
doctorate’s degree in finance, all from Xiamen University (B F9AE2) in
the PRC in July 1995, July 1999, July 2001 and July 2003, respectively.

2 3301)

Shanghai Stock
Exchange (stock
code: 600759)

BB AFRZSH
(AR 5% -
600759)

Shenzhen Stock
Exchange (stock
code: 002029)

RIYNFE 35 P
(AR R5R -
002029)

Shenzhen Stock
Exchange (stock
code: 300436)

RINFEHZ ST
(B 55 -
300436)

Stock Exchange
(stock code: 846)

Bt <2 B
(R R5R - 846)

Independent director

Independent
director

BUEE

Independent director

BIEE

Independent
non-executive
director
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Ms. Xin Zhu (£ 2k), aged 52, was appointed as our independent non-
executive Director on 20 November 2020. Ms. Xin is primarily responsible
for providing independent advice on the operations and management
of our Group.

Ms. Xin has over 15 years of experience in the accounting industry as
well as executive management in public companies. From February
2001 to February 2006, Ms. Xin worked at Guangdong Holdings Limited
(BREBZEREEEGRAR

development, manufacturing and real estate, where she last served

), a company engaged in infrastructure

as a deputy general manager of finance department of the group and
financial controller of its subsidiary, Shenzhen Kingway Brewery Holdings
Limited (RYI|& BB & E AR A 7)), where she was responsible for
the financial management of the group and ERP Informationization
Construction. From February 2006 to June 2008, she worked in Hopson
Development Holdings Limited (&4 &R E BB A F)) (a company
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange, stock code: 754), a
property developer, where she last served as a vice president, and was
primarily responsible for financial management, financing and fund
management. From July 2008 to June 2014, she worked in China Aoyuan
Group Limited (FBIREEBEKRHER AR (previously known as
China Aoyuan Property Group Limited (9 Bl 88 [&] 1t & & B ix (0 B IR
X)), a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange, stock
code: 3883), a property developer, with her last concurrent positions held
as an executive director and executive vice president, and was primarily
responsible for financial management, fund management and internal
auditing. She was also involved in review, discussion and decisions
making of land acquisition when she worked at China Aoyuan Group
Limited. From July 2014 to March 2015, she served as the chief financial
officer of Logan Property Holdings Company Limited (RE Yt HbETERY B
R 2 A)) (@ company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange,
stock code: 3380) where she was primarily responsible for financing.
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Since June 2018, Ms. Xin has been an independent non-executive
director of CanSino Biologics Inc. (R £ A F)) (a company
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange, stock code: 6185), a
company engaging in the development, manufacturing and sales of
vaccines. Since April 2020, she has been an independent non-executive
director of Central China New Life Limited GEEFAEBR AR (a
company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange, stock code:
9983), a property management service provider.

Ms. Xin obtained a bachelor’'s degree in accounting from Renmin
University of China (F BI A R AZ2) in the PRCin July 1990 and a master’s
degree in business administration from Auckland Institute of Studies
in New Zealand in December 1999. Ms. Xin became a member of the
Chinese Institute of Certified Public Accountant of the PRC in February
1996 and a member of the CPA Australia in January 2010.

Mr. Tam Chi Choi (FE& 7), aged 56, was appointed as our independent
non-executive Director on 20 November 2020 and is responsible for
providing independent advice on the operations and management of
our Group.

Mr. Tam has around 33 years of accounting and finance experience. He
began his career at KPMG Peat Marwick from August 1987 to April 1991
and his last position was audit supervisor. He worked as an accounting
manager of Kosonic Industries Company Limited from May 1991 to
July 1992 and as a deputy accounting manager of Applied Electronics
(OEM) Limited from December 1992 to July 1994. From August 1994 to
November 2015, he worked at the listing division of the Stock Exchange
and his last position was vice president of the IPO transactions, listing
and regulatory affairs division. From November 2015 to October 2017,
he served as a director of the quality and risk control division of CCB
International Capital Limited. He was the responsible officer of Proton
Capital Limited from February 2018 to September 2018. He has served
as a corporate finance director of Eric Chow & Co. in association with
Commerce and Finance Law Offices since September 2018. Since August
2019, Mr. Tam has been an independent non-executive director of
Sinic Holdings (Group) Company Limited (#7712 (EE) B R A 7))
(a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange, stock
code: 2103), a property developer. Since March 2021, Mr. Tam has been
an independent non-executive director of Helenbergh China Holdings
Limited (& fm & BIIEAR B PR A F)), a property developer.
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Mr. Tam obtained an honors diploma in accounting from Hong
Kong Baptist College in July 1987 and a master's degree in business
administration from the University of Canberra in Australia in December
2002. He became a fellow of the Chartered Association of Certified
Accountants and the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
in October 1995 and October 2000, respectively. Mr. Tam was a committee
member of the ACCA Hong Kong Committee from 2003 to 2008.

Save as disclosed above, none of our Directors have held any other
directorships in listed companies during the three years immediately

preceding the date of this annual report.

Save as disclosed in this annual report, there are no other changes to
the Directors’ information as required to be disclosed pursuant to Rule
13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Our senior management is responsible for the day-to-day operations

and management of our business.

Mr. Lin Ruiyan (#K¥548), aged 50, was appointed as our vice president
in January 2015 and is primarily responsible for investment management
and financial management of our Group.

Mr. Lin has more than 15 years of experience in real estate industry. Mr.
Lin joined our Group in January 2011 as a financial controller and was
later promoted as a vice president in January 2015. Prior to joining our
Group, from June 2008 to January 2011, Mr. Lin worked at Xiamen Xindi
where he successively served as a deputy financial manager, a financial
controller and assistant to president of Xiamen Xindi, where he was
primarily responsible for its financial management. From November
2002 to June 2008, Mr. Lin worked at Fuxin Group where he last served
as an accounting department manager and was primarily responsible

for its accounting management.
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Mr. Lin obtained a diploma in accounting from Jimei Financial College
(EEHFHERIER) in the PRC in July 1992. He obtained a graduation
certificate in accounting from Fuzhou University (&8N A E2) in the PRC
in December 2007. Mr. Lin received a qualification as a certified public
accountant in the PRC in December 1999 and became a registered tax
advisor in the PRCin June 2004. Mr. Lin also obtained a senior accountant
certificate from Fujian Provincial Personnel Department ({8i2& AH
EE) in May 2009.

Mr. Wang Xuting (E# =), aged 56, joined our Group in January 2011
as a vice president and has been responsible for the administrative
management, legal management and operation of our commercial

operation companies.

From May 1994 to July 1998, Mr. Wang worked at Xiamen Fuxin as an office
manager and was primarily responsible for its internal management and
public relations. From August 1998 to January 2011, Mr. Wang worked at
Xiamen Xindi where he last served as a vice president and was primarily
responsible for its operational management, public relations, product
development and marketing.

Mr. Wang obtained a bachelor's degree in fishery machinery from the
Xiamen Institute of Aquatic Products (BPI/KEET) (now known as
Fisheries College of Jimei University (5 £ A E2/KEE2FR)) in the PRC in
July 1986. Mr. Wang obtained a senior engineer certificate from Fujian
Provincial Personnel Department ({8324 A EE) in June 2006.

Mr. Zhang Huojin (3& X &), aged 48, was appointed as our vice president
in January 2019 and is responsible for operation of our subsidiaries in
Tianjin.
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Mr. Zhang joined our Group in January 2011 as an assistant to general
manager of our Fujian regional companies, and was later promoted as
deputy general manager of our Xiamen regional companies in July 2014,
and standing deputy general manager of our Xiamen regional companies
in July 2017. Mr. Zhang was appointed as the general manager of our
Zhangzhou regional companies in January 2018 and promoted as the
vice president of our Group in January 2019. Prior to joining our Group,
from August 2008 to August 2011, Mr. Zhang served as an assistant to
president and general officer of Xiamen Huatianlong Group (EF9ZE
KB E), a company principally engaged in property development,
where he was responsible for its project design, engineering and
cost control. From July 2005 to January 2008, Mr. Zhang worked at
Xiamen Xindi as a technical department deputy manager, where he was
primarily responsible for its design management. From June 1994 to
June 2000, Mr. Zhang worked as a structural designer at Yunxiao County
Construction Bureau Design Institute (B 5 %2R &

was responsible for its structural design and management.

& 51B%), where he

Mr. Zhang obtained a bachelor's degree in construction engineering
from Fuzhou University (f&1 K22) in the PRC in July 1994. Mr. Zhang
obtained a senior engineering certificate from Xiamen Municipal
Personnel Department in April 2008. Mr. Zhang became a Class 2
registered architect (Z 4R 5= 72 226M) and a Class 1 registered structural
engineer (—AR =45 TH2EM) in the PRC in September 2000 and
September 2004, respectively.

Mr. Ng Yan ($RfiR), aged 53, was appointed as the assistant to the
Chairman of our Board of our Group in January 2020 and is responsible
for assisting in investment and financing management of our Group.

Mr.Ng joined our Group in January 2011 as an assistant to president and
was primarily responsible for investment management and commercial
properties management. Mr. Ng was a vice president of our Group
from January 2015 to January 2020 and was responsible for investment
management of our Group. Prior to joining our Group, from December
2001 to January 2011, Mr. Ng worked at Xiamen Xindi where he last
served as an assistant to the chairman of the board of directors of Xiamen
Xindi and was responsible for its investment management.
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Mr. Ng obtained a bachelor’s degree in finance from Xiamen University
(BF9RE) in the PRC in July 1989. Mr. Ng obtained an economist
certificate from Xiamen Civil Service Bureau in January 2014

Ms. Mi Yuanyuan (CREE), aged 45, was appointed as assistant
to president in January 2016. She is responsible for contract cost
management of our Group, operation and assisting in product

development management of our Group.

Ms. Mi joined our Group as the general manager of contract cost
department of our Group in January 2011. She became the cost director
and general manager of contract cost department of our Group in July
2014, and has been serving as an assistant to president since January

016. Prior to joining our Group, from July 2002 to January 2011, Ms. Mi
worked at Xiamen Xindi, where she last served as a deputy president
of cost and the general manager of contract cost department and was
responsible for its contract cost control and sourcing management. From
August 1996 to June 2002, Ms. Mi successively worked at branches of
China Construction Bank Corporation (R BIZZIRTTIRHB BR A F]) in
Bengbu and Anging city, Anhui Province.

Ms. Mi obtained a bachelor’s degree in construction engineering from
Anhui Institute of Architecture and Industry (Z &5 T 2 E7) (now
known as Anhui Jianzhu University (ZHFEZE K E)) in the PRC in July
1996. She also obtained a senior engineering certificate from Fujian
Provincial Personnel Department ({834 A EE2) in August 2007, and
a registered cost engineer from Anhui Provincial Personnel Department

LA NEEE) in October 2000.
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Mr. Liu Weiping (2I1&), aged 40, was appointed as our financial
controller and fund controller since July 2017 and is responsible for

funds management and assisting in financial management of our Group.

Mr. Liu joined our Group in July 2011 as an assistant to general manager
of Southwestern China region, and was successively promoted as the vice
general manager of Nanning city company in January 2015, as a fund
controller of our Group in August 2016, and as our financial controller
and fund controller in July 2017. Prior to joining our Group, from April
2005 to April 2008, Mr. Liu served as assistant to general manager of fund
department in Fuxin Group, where he was primarily responsible for its
financing management. From April 2008 to July 2011, Mr. Liu served as
an assistant to the office of board of directors of Fuxin Group.

Mr. Liu obtained a bachelor's degree in economics from Liaoning
University of Petroleum and Chemical Technology (=AML TR
2) in the PRC in July 2002, and a master's degree in economics from
Xiamen University (JEF9AZ2) in the PRC in June 2005. Mr. Liu obtained
an economist certificate from Xiamen Civil Service Bureau in February
2009.

JOINT COMPANY SECRETARIES

Mr. Tang Guozhong (B El$), aged 46, was appointed as one of our
joint company secretaries on 11 November 2019. See “— Board of
Directors” above for more details.

Ms. Ng Wing Shan (R 3k, aged 43, was appointed as one of our
joint company secretaries on 11 November 2019. Ms. Ng is an assistant
vice president of SWCS Corporate Services Group (Hong Kong) Limited
and is responsible for assisting listed companies in company secretarial
work. She has over 10 years of professional experience in the company
secretarial field and is a fellow member of The Hong Kong Institute of
Chartered Secretaries and The Institute of Chartered Secretaries and
Administrators in the United Kingdom.
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BOARD COMMITTEES

Our Board has established the audit committee, the remuneration
committee and the nomination committee and delegated various
responsibilities to these committees, which assist our Board in discharging
its duties and overseeing particular aspects of our Group's activities.

Audit Committee

Our Group has established an audit committee on 20 November 2020
with written terms of reference in compliance with Rule 3.21 of the
Listing Rules and paragraph C.3 of the Corporate Governance Code
("CG Code”) as set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules. The audit
committee consists of three members, namely, Mr. Qu Wenzhou, Ms.
Xin Zhu and Mr. Tam Chi Choi, all of whom are our independent non-
executive Directors. Mr. Qu Wenzhou is the chairperson of the audit
committee and is our independent non-executive Director with the
appropriate professional qualifications.

The primary duties of the audit committee are to (i) review and supervise
our financial reporting process and internal control system of our Group,
risk management and internal audit; (ii) provide advice and comments
to our Board; and (iii) perform other duties and responsibilities as may
be assigned by the Board.

Remuneration Committee

Our Group has established a remuneration committee on 20 November
2020 with written terms of reference in compliance with Rule 3.25 of the
Listing Rules and paragraph B.1 of the CG Code as set out in Appendix
14 to the Listing Rules. The remuneration committee consists of three
members, namely, Ms. Xin Zhu, Mr. Qu Wenzhou and Ms. Zhang Jianhua.
Ms. Xin Zhu is the chairperson of the remuneration committee.
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The primary duties of the remuneration committee include, but not
limited to (i) establishing, reviewing and providing advices to our
Board on our policy and structure concerning remuneration of our
Directors and senior management and on the establishment of a formal
and transparent procedure for developing policies concerning such
remuneration; (i) determining the terms of the specific remuneration
package of each Director and senior management; and (iii) reviewing and
approving performance-based remuneration by reference to corporate
goals and objectives resolved by our Directors from time to time.

Nomination Committee

Our Group has also established a nomination committee on 20 November
2020 with written terms of reference in compliance with paragraph A.5
of the CG Code as set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules. The
nomination committee consists of three members, namely Mr. Wu Dij,
Mr. Tam Chi Choi and Ms. Xin Zhu. Mr. Wu Di is the chairperson of the
nomination committee.

The primary duties of the nomination committee are to (i) review
the structure, size and composition of our Board on a regular basis
and make recommendations to the Board regarding any proposed
changes to the composition of our Board; (ii) identify, select or make
recommendations to our Board on the selection of individuals nominated
for directorship, and ensure the diversity of our Board members; (i)
assess the independence of our independent non-executive Directors;
and (iv) make recommendations to our Board on relevant matters relating
to the appointment, re-appointment and removal of our Directors and
succession planning for our Directors.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Our Company recognizes the importance of incorporating elements of
good corporate governance in the management structures and internal
control procedures of our Group so as to achieve effective accountability.

Our Company has adopted the code provisions stated in the CG Code.
Our Company is committed to the view that the Board should include
a balanced composition of executive Directors and independent non-
executive Directors so that there is a strong independent element on
the Board, which can effectively exercise independent judgment.

BOARD DIVERSITY

Our Company recognizes the benefits of having a diversified Board. Our
Company has adopted a board diversity policy with the aim of achieving
an appropriate level of diversity among Board members according to
the circumstances of our Group from time to time. In summary, our
board diversity policy sets out that when considering the nomination
and appointment of a Director, with the assistance of our nomination
committee, our Board would consider a range of diversity of perspectives,
including but not limited to the skills, knowledge, professional experience
and qualifications, cultural and educational background, age, gender
and the potential contributions that the candidate is expected to bring
to our Board, in order to better serve the needs and development of
our Company. All Board appointments will be based on merits and
candidates will be considered against objective criteria, having due
regard to the benefits of diversity to our Board.

After Listing, our nomination committee will review the board diversity
policy from time to time to ensure its continued effectiveness and we
will disclose the policy or a summary thereof in our corporate governance
report on an annual basis.
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COMPENSATION OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

Our Directors and members of our senior management receive
compensation from our Group in the form of fees, salary and benefit,
housing allowance and contribution to a retirement benefit scheme and
share-based compensation.

Our Board will review and determine the remuneration and compensation
packages of our Directors and senior management and will, following
the Listing, receive recommendation from the remuneration committee
which will take into account salaries paid by comparable companies,
time commitment and responsibilities of our Directors and performance
of our Group.

COMPLIANCE ADVISOR

In compliance with Rule 3A.19 of the Listing Rules, we have appointed
Somerley Capital Limited as our compliance advisor to provide advisory
services to our Company. It is expected that the compliance advisor will,
amongst other things, advise our Company with due care and skill in
the following circumstances:

before the publication of any regulatory announcement, circular
or financial report;

where a transaction, which might be a notifiable or connected
transaction, is contemplated, including shares issues and share
repurchases;

where we propose to use the proceeds from the Global Offering in
a manner different from that detailed in the Prospectus or where
our business activities, developments or results deviate from any
forecast, estimate, or other information in the Prospectus; and

where the Stock Exchange makes an inquiry of us regarding
unusual movements in the price or trading volume of our Shares.

The term of the appointment shall commence on the Listing Date and
end on the date on which we distribute our annual report in respect
of our financial results for the first full financial year commencing after
the Listing Date and such appointment may be subject to extension
by mutual agreement.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

g o
pwec

To the Shareholders of Datang Group Holdings Limited
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

What we have audited

The consolidated financial statements of Datang Group Holdings Limited
(the "Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on pages 121
to 267, which comprise:

the consolidated balance sheet as at 31 December 2020;

the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the year
then ended;

the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year then
ended;

the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended;
and

the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which include
a summary of significant accounting policies.

Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2020, and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards ("HKFRSs") issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") and have been
properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the
Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence
We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”), and we have

fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole,
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters.

Key audit matter identified in our audit is summarised as follows:

Assessment of net realisable value of properties under development
and completed properties held for sale
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Key audit matter
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How our audit addressed the key audit matter

RAEEENNEEFAREREE

Assessment of net realisable value of properties under
development and completed properties held for sale

Refer to note 4 “Critical accounting estimates and judgements”,
note 22 “Properties under development” and note 23 “Completed
properties held for sale” to the consolidated financial statements.

Properties under development (“PUD") and completed properties
held for sale ("PHS") of the Group amounted to RMB23,444 million
and RMB2,135 million respectively as at 31 December 2020, which
in total accounted for approximately 54% of the Group's total assets.
The carrying amounts of PUD and PHS are stated at the lower of cost
and net realisable value (“NRV").

Management assessed the NRV based on existing selling and
development plans, and a forecast of future selling price with
reference to the current market price of properties of comparable
type, size and location. The determination of NRV involved critical
accounting estimates on the selling price, variable selling expenses
and, for PUD, the costs to completion.

For assessment of NRV, we assessed the inherent risk of material
misstatement by considering the degree of estimation uncertainty
and level of other inherent risk factors, and performed audit
procedures as follows:

(i) Obtained an understanding of, evaluated and tested, on a
sample basis, the relevant internal control procedures over
the Group's process in determining the NRV;

(i) Compared the actual selling prices of relevant PUD and PHS in
2020, on a sample basis, against the result of management's
assessment made in the prior year to assess the accuracy of

management’s historical NRV assessment; and

(i)  Tested management's key estimates, on a sample basis, for:

. selling price which is estimated based on the prevailing
market conditions, we compared the estimated selling
price to recent transactions by making reference to the
Group's selling price of pre-sold units or the prevailing
market price of comparable properties with comparable

We focused on auditing the assessment of NRV because the total
balance of PUD and PHS is significant and the estimation of the NRV
is subject to a high degree of estimation uncertainty. Therefore, the .
assessment of NRV of PUD and PHS is considered a key audit matter.

type, size and location.

variable selling expenses which were estimated based

on certain percentage of selling price, we compared the

above estimated percentage with the budget and the
actual average selling expenses to revenue ratio of the
Group in recent years.

. estimated costs to completion for PUD, we reconciled
the estimated costs to completion to the budget and
examined the construction contracts or compared the
anticipated completion costs to the actual costs of similar
type of completed properties of the Group.

Based on the audit procedures performed, we considered that
management’s judgements and assumptions applied in the
assessment of NRV of PUD and PHS were supportable by available
evidence.
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Key audit matter
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How our audit addressed the key audit matter
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises all of the information included in the
annual report other than the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance

conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the
audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is
a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND AUDIT
COMMITTEE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the Group's financial
reporting process.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BYZHERE

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. We report our opinion solely to you,
as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not
a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can
arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or
in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit.
We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional

omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.
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Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability
to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going

concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves
fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group
to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements.
We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance
of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit
opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence,
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BYZHERE

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine
that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the
adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor's report is Cheung Siu Cheong.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 16 March 2021
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
mEZTHWER

Year ended 31 December

BZNANALEE
2020 2019
20205 20194F
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
Piar AR¥T T ARETT
Revenue Wz 6 10,588,379 8,108,026
Cost of sales HEMRA 7 (7,892,454) (5,922,653)
Gross profit EF 2,695,925 2,185,373
Selling and marketing costs HEREHEFAX 7 (482,694) (444,185)
Administrative expenses THFA Y 7 (522,226) (454,868)
Net reversal of impairment on financial SRINRENEE
and contract assets MEREFEE 312 7,918 2,858
Other income Hi A 9 42,257 39,152
Other expenses HAp¥ 10 (11,763) (35,575)
Other gains - net HAla — 558 1 51,543 129,176
Operating profit mERF 1,780,960 1421931
Finance income BB WA 12 28,799 25,539
Finance costs AMEKK 12 (48,374) (48,466)
Finance costs — net AR — 55 12 (19,575) (22,927)
Share of results of joint ventures and associates DMEEERERBENTES 21 (45,730) 8,860
Profit before income tax FrSBiATER 1,715,655 1,407,864
Income tax expenses FTiSfifA 13 (765,706) (780,451)
Profit and total comprehensive income FRRFIRZEHBALE
for the year 949,949 627,413
Profit attributable to: BT AL REMEER
— Owners of the Company —ARAHERA 715,372 710,256
- Non-controlling interests —FEE R s 234,577 (82,843)
949,949 627413
Earnings per share (expressed in RMB per share) 8RR ZEF (UERAR®ETIIR)
Basic BEA 14 0.70 0.90
Diluted g 14 0.65 0.84

A 2 EUR S 7 A SRR T — BB -

S

The above consolidated statement of comprehensive income should
be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
HREEERER

As at 31 December

M12H31H
2020 2019
20205 2019%F
Note RMB'000 RMB’000
{pgz3 ARET T ARETTT
Assets BE
Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment ) E IS B 15 741,255 745,701
Investment properties BEME 16 1,566,730 1,550,540
Intangible assets B EE 17 15,310 17,320
Right-of-use assets CREEE 18 169,640 33,941
Properties under development R ES 22 14,140 14,140
Investments accounted for using the equity method JAREZEE A BREIZE 21 4,768,998 1,506,998
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss  Z AR BT ABZNSREE 20 217,841 200,806
Deferred income tax assets BEPEHEE 34 804,192 656,905
8,298,106 4,726,351
Current assets REEE
Inventories & 1,214 2,599
Properties under development FEpmE 22 23,429,576 21,343,530
Completed properties held for sale BIEHEMD R IYE 23 2,134,716 1,926,651
Contract assets and contract costs BHBEREHNA 24 438,332 278,334
Trade and other receivables B 5 LA MR 26 6,721,652 3,949,303
Prepaid income taxes BT PTIEH 27 571,369 717,022
Cash and bank deposits B MBITER 28 5,660,333 4,095,171
38,957,192 32,312,610

Total assets BEMAHE 47,255,298 37,038,961




ARERBZERARAT - —ZT-TFFH

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
mEEERER

As at 31 December

®12A31H
2020 2019
20205 20194F
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
B e AR TR ARET T
Equity xR
Equity attributable to owners of the Company A2 7 A AL RER
Share capital Bz 29 87,216 70
Share premium 0 m(E 29 1,677,903 508,442
Other reserves HihfEE 30 1,147,588 758,445
Retained earnings REBEF 1,987,465 1,610,225
4,900,172 2,877,182
Non-controlling interests IR RES 38 3,021,806 207,111
Total equity AR 7,921,978 3,084,293
Liabilities =Lt
Non-current liabilities *RBERE
Bank and other borrowings RITREAE 32 7,647,463 5,468,682
Lease liabilities HEaRE 33 133,954 1372
Deferred income tax liabilities BEFMEHREaR 34 1,217,226 1,203,899
8,998,643 6,673,953
Current liabilities REaE
Trade and other payables H 5 REAMENFIE 31 14,581,655 10,709,986
Contract liabilities EHaE 25 11,694,527 13,273,377
Bank and other borrowings RITRE M B 32 2,666,675 2,301,763
Lease liabilities HEaE 33 9,256 1,749
Current income tax liabilities BIEAFrSHi & & 1,382,564 993,840
30,334,677 27,280,715
Total liabilities BEHBE 39,333,320 33,954,668
Total equity and liabilities ERRkEEEE 47,255,298 37,038,961

The above consolidated balance sheet should be read in conjunction

with the accompanying notes.

The financial statements on pages 121 to 267 were approved by the

Board of Directors on 16 March 2021 and were signed on its behalf. EERE o
Mr. Wu Di Mr. Hao Shengchun
REEE M F KL
Director Director
BF EE

bR A B E A ERE LB E—GRE -

F121 2267 BN EHRRN2021F3 A16BEEESHE
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

GEREEBER

Attributable to owners of the Company

LN EIN, 1
Non-
Share Share Other Retained controlling Total
caEQital Egremiym reserves earnings Total interests q% 5%
A Hiad At REEN aF  FERER i
Note RVBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RVBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RVBON0
fE  ARETT  ARETR  AREBTR  ARETT  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR
(Note 29) (Note 29) Note 30)
(M) (Rtit29) (Ri&30)
Balance at 1 January 2019 R201951A 1B 25 - - 384765 1,009,241 1,394,006 11485 1405491
Comprehensive income 2EUA
Profit for the year ERg| - - - 7105 71056 (8284 627413
Transactions with owners BB AR
lssue of shares ikt bl 70 508442 - - 508512 - 508512
Capital injection from shareholders of AR AREAE
the Company 306) - - 265,548 - 265,548 - 265,548
Employee share schemes - value o~ EER(AEHEI-EERBERE
employee services L 300 - - 074 - 014 - 24
Capitalinjection fiom non-controlling - 3 TR iR T &
interests - - - - - 308,104 308,104
Disposals of subsidiaries HEHBAR 39 - - - - - (28.49) (28.245)
Disposal of interestsinasubsidiary ~ HE—RHBA R EEMY
without loss of control ERAEHE 38 - - 645 - 645 1,101 1746
Acquisitions of additional interests i~ WM B REIMER
subsidiaries L - - (24509) - (24,509) (2491) (27,000)
Appropriation of statutory reserves  BAAT 30(0) - - 109272 (109272 - - -
70 508442 373680 (109.272) 772920 278469 1,051,389
Balance at 31 December 2019 120195128310 2458 70 503442 758,445 1610225 2877182 207,11 3084293
Balance at 1 January 2020 202051 A 18 28 70 508,442 758445 1610225 2877182 207111 3,084293
Comprehensive income 2EUA
Profit for the year Epat - - - 715372 715372 234,577 949,949
Transactions with owners HEEANR A
Share issued in Public Offering AREERENRN 29(0) 21,806 1277753 - - 1,299,559 - 1,299,559
Capitalisation Issue BALEA 29d) 65,340 (65,340) = = = = =
Share ssuance costs for Public Offeing - AHEE ZRHEAMA 29(0) = (42952) = = (42,952) = (42,952)
Contributions from a fellow subsidiary H?M AT&é 30() - - 22,606 - 22,606 - 22,606
Employee share schemes - value o EER(AZHEI-EEREERE
employee services 30() - - 28,405 - 28,405 - 28,405
Capital injections from non-controling JFHER IR T &
interests o - - - - - 2,506,618 2,506,618
Disposals of nterestsin subsidiaies i EMBAABA LB
without loss of control Kl 38(a) - - - - - 73,500 73,500
Appropriation of statutory reserves  BRET R 30(0) - - 338,132 (388,132) - - -
87,146 1,169,461 389,143 (338,132) 1,307,618 2,580,118 3,887,736
Balance at 31 December 2020 R2020F12831B 28 87,216 1,677,903 1,147,588 1,987,465 4,900,172 3,021,806 7,921,978

The above consolidated statement of changes in equity should be

read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
HERERER

Year ended 31 December

BZ1ANALEE
2020 2019
2020%F 2019%
Note RMB'000 RMB'000
iy ARET R ARBETT
Cash flows from operating activities BETHRLRE
Cash (used in)/generated from operations gg (R /FiE8Ee 35(a) (1,241,943) 4,591,283
Income tax paid BRFMET (370,180) (542,032)
Interest paid ERFE (886,451) (729,154)
Net cash (used in)/generated from operating activities &&%8 (FTH) /FIBHEZE (2,498,574) 3,320,097
Cash flows from investing activities RETHRENE
Purchases of property, plant and equipment BENE  BEREH (84,286) (128,676)
Purchases of intangible assets EEEVAE (4,523) (11,934)
Payments for construction of investment properties BREMERETR 16 (2,465) (95,325)
Proceeds from disposals of property, plant and equipment  HEME « BRE KBS HIE 35(d) 4,774 31,468
Proceeds from disposals of investment properties HEREMERMEHE 30,811 -
Investment in joint ventures REEENEE (1,380,430) (346,812)
Investment in associates REFE R RIMEE (1,585,495) (806,000)
Advances to related parties and non-controlling interests — [FZ8EE 5 R IR IE R B (3,836,654) (3429,128)
Repayments from related partiess B R RS ER
and non-controlling interests 5,649,048 2,795,573
Proceeds from disposals of subsidiaries, net of cash and K EMB A FFEFUE
cash equivalent disposed of (MRLERE RALEEY) 39 159,180 145,810
Proceeds from de-registration of associates A ARMERE 9,486 -
Acquisitions of subsidiaries, net of cash and cash lhéAl=YNG]
equivalent acquired (kU ERE RREEED) - (119,914)
Decrease/(increase) in term deposits with original FEEEAZEAN LOTBER
maturities over three months wd/ () 28 2,183 (95)
Purchase of financial assets at fair value through profitor ~ BERAAEFABENEBEE
loss 20 (110,741) -
Proceeds from disposals of financial assets at fair value ~ HER AR B ABENEREER
through profit or loss BHAE 20 110,741 -
Interest received BUFIE 28,799 25,539
Net cash used in investing activities REZBMARETE (1,009,572) (1,939494)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
n _\éiﬁﬁﬁii

Year ended 31 December

BZ1ANALEE
2020 2019
2020%F 2019
Note RMB'000 RMB'000
Birx ARET R ARBETT
Cash flows from financing activities METHRERE
Issue of shares rin &7 29 1,299,559 508,512
Capital injection from shareholders of the Company ARERRTE 30 - 265,548
Proceeds from bank and other borrowings BITRAMERAERE 4,210,939 6,761,556
Repayments of bank and other borrowings BRRITREMER (1,667,246) (7,451,565)
Proceeds from amounts due to related parties FEERRE SRS 0B 1,416,043 6,375,495
Repayments to related parties A BN (1,505,698) (7,662,708)
Acquisitions of additional shares in subsidiaries WHEHB AR BEINR R - (27,000)
Share issuance costs R EATRAR (33,985) (6,276)
Increase in deposits pledged for bank and other BETREMETRENRSERLN
borrowings 28(b) (17,720) (101,908)
Contribution from a fellow subsidiary REMEARTE 9,987 -
Capital injections from non-controlling interests ERER T E 986,316 308,104
Principal elements of lease payments MERRHASEH D (15,346) (2,281)
Proceeds from disposal of subsidiaries without LERBARMEEREEHERE
loss of control WIE 38(a) 73,500 -
Net cash generated from/(used in) financing activities BWEEEFE,/ (FiA) BEBE 4,756,349 (1,032,523)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents ReRBRSEEMEMTE 1,248,203 348,080
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year FURe LA EEY 2,214,161 1,866,042
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash RekReSENEXZEHTE
equivalents 425 39
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year EXRERBLEZEY 28 3,462,789 2,214,161

The above consolidated statement of cash flows should be read in

conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1 GENERAL

INFORMATION AND GROUP

REORGANISATION

1.1

General Information

Datang Group Holdings Limited (the “Company”) was
incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 14 December 2018
as an exempted company with limited liability under the
Companies Law, Cap 22 (Law 3 of 1961 consolidated and
revised). The address of the Company’s registered office
and the principal place of business are respectively located
at Windward 3, Regatta Office Park, PO Box 1350, Grand
Cayman KY1-1108, Cayman Islands and No. 2001, Lvling
Road, Siming District, Xiamen.

The Company is engaged in investment holding and its
subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”) are primarily engaged
in property development business in the People’s Republic
of China (the “PRC"). Ms. Wong Hei is the ultimate controlling
shareholder (the “Ultimate Controlling Shareholder”) of the
Company.

The Company’'s shares have been listed on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange”) since 11 December 2020 (the “Listing”).

The consolidated financial statements are presented
in Renminbi (“RMB”), unless otherwise stated. These
consolidated financial statements have been approved for
issue by the Board of Directors on 16 March 2021.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR

1 GENERAL INFORMATION
REORGANISATION (Continued)

1.2 Reorganisation

Prior to the incorporation of the Company and the
completion of the reorganisation as described below (the
“Reorganisation”), the business of the Group was operated
through Xiamen Dynasty Real Estate Group Company Limited
(EFIRKERHESEE AR AR, "Xiamen Datang”) and its
subsidiaries in the PRC. Xiamen Datang, a wholly owned
subsidiary of Dynasty International Co. Ltd. (“Dynasty Cook”),
was incorporated in Xiamen, the PRC, on 29 August 1997
as a limited liability company. Dynasty Cook is incorporated
in the Cook Islands and was 70% indirectly owned by Ms.

Wong Hei.

In preparation for the Listing, the Reorganisation was
undertaken pursuant to which Xiamen Datang and
its subsidiaries were transferred to the Company. The

Reorganisation involved in the following steps:

(@) Incorporation of the Company

On 14 December 2018, the Company was incorporated
in the Cayman Islands with an authorised share capital
of US$50,000 divided into 50,000 ordinary shares of
US$1.00 each. Upon its incorporation, 1 fully-paid share
was issued to the initial subscriber, an independent
third party, at par and was transferred to Dynasty Cook

at par on the same day.

(b) Incorporation of offshore subsidiaries
Datang Investment Limited (“Datang Investment”) was
incorporated in Hong Kong on 30 January 2019. On
the same date, one share was issued to the Company.
Upon completion of the shares allotment and
issue, Datang Investment became a wholly-owned

subsidiary of the Company.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

INFORMATION AND GROUP

REORGANISATION (Continued)

1.2 Reorganisation (Continued)

(b)

(c)

Incorporation of offshore subsidiaries
(Continued)

Dynasty Management International Limited (“Dynasty
Management”) was incorporated in the British Virgin
Islands on 19 June 2019. On the same date, 100 shares
were issued to the Company. Upon completion of
the shares allotment and issue, Dynasty Management
became a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company.

Dynasty Development International Limited (“Dynasty
Development”) was incorporated in Hong Kong on 27
June 2019. On the same date, 100 shares were issued
to Dynasty Management. Upon completion of the
shares allotment and issue, Dynasty Development
became wholly-owned by Dynasty Management.

Transfer of Xiamen Datang

On 24 April 2019, the Company acquired the entire
equity interest in Xiamen Datang from Dynasty Cook
at a consideration of allotting and issuing 1 share to
Dynasty Cook by the Company. Upon completion of
the equity transfer on 30 April 2019, Xiamen Datang
became a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company.

On 13 May 2019, Datang Investment acquired the
entire equity interest in Xiamen Datang from the
Company at a consideration of allotting and issuing 10
shares to the Company by Datang Investment. Upon
completion of the equity transfer on 11 June 2019,
Xiamen Datang became a wholly-owned subsidiary

of Datang Investment.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR

1 GENERAL

INFORMATION AND GROUP

REORGANISATION (Continued)

1.2

Reorganisation (Continued)

As a result of the Reorganisation, the Company became
the holding company of the subsidiaries now comprising
the Group.

Public Offering and Listing

On 11 December 2020, upon its listing on The Hong Kong
Stock Exchange Limited, the Company issued 333,400,000
new shares with par value US$0.01 each at HK$4.56 per
share for a total cash consideration of HK$1,520,304,000
(equivalent to approximately RMB1,299,559,000) (the “Public
Offering”)..

On 6 January 2021, the Company issued 30,144,000 ordinary
shares with par value US$S0.01 each at HK$4.56 per share
to public pursuant to an over-allotment option granted
in conjunction with Public Offering. Gross proceeds from
the issue are HK$137,457,000 (equivalent to approximately
RMB114,548,000).

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

This note provides a list of the significant accounting policies

adopted in the preparation of these consolidated financial

statements. These policies have been consistently applied to all

the years presented, unless otherwise stated.
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ARERBZERARAT - —ZT-TFFH

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation

(a)

(b)

(c)

Compliance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRS”) and the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance

The consolidated financial statements of the Group
have been prepared in accordance with HKFRS and
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance Cap. 622.

Historical cost convention

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on a historical cost basis, except for financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL") and
investment properties, which are carried at fair value.

Newandamendedstandardsand interpretation
adopted by the Group
The Group has applied the following standards
and amendments for the first time for their annual
reporting period commencing 1 January 2020:
Amendments to HKFRS 3 Definition of a
business
Amendments to HKAS 1 Definition of material
and HKAS 8
Conceptual Framework for Revised Conceptual
Financial Reporting Framework for
Financial Reporting
Amendments to HKFRS 9, Interest rate

HKAS 39 and HKFRS 7 benchmark reform

The adoption of the above new and amended
standards does not have any significant impact on
the financial performance and position of the Group.
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e BHRME

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 FESHHBEHME(E)
POLICIES (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued) 2.1 REEE(E)
(d) New, revised and amended standards not yet (d) [EFRERAGIIZER] ~ FIEKRAE
adopted ZTER
Certain new and revised standards, amendments EEME A T ¥R RSB BEERIA
to existing standards have been published that are KA EAMEET AR AF E m R4
not effective in current year and have not been early M NEEREF TARMR

adopted by the Group.

Effective for annual periods
beginning on or after

KI5 H L &R FIREY

FREHAMER
Amendments to HKEES 16 ) Covid-19-related Rent Concessions 1 June 2020
FEMBRELNE 1657 (BFTA) Covid-19tERAE & TR 2020F6 A1H
Amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39, HKFRS Interest rate benchmark reform — 1 January 2021
7, HKFRS 4 and HKFRS 1 phrase 2 2021 1H18
&7 Eﬁ%i&%ﬁﬁﬂﬂ%9f %ﬁéja.ﬁr/ﬁ ﬂigﬁﬂﬁzﬁ FEPEER
RIZ30% - %58 15 95 R 75 -
BBM W E R B 45 R BE AP R
HARERIF 1658 (BFIA)
Amendments to HKFRS 3 N Reference to the Conceptual 1 January 2022
BBV EEEIR (IBF]A) Framework 2022F1TH1H
BEEZR S B
Amendments to HKAS 16 Proceeds before intended use 1 January 2022
BEEGTERFE 1658 (BFTA) BE &R Z PSS RUR 2022%FTA1RH
Amendments to HKAS 37 Cost of Fulﬂllm%a Contract 1 January 2022
EBGTERER (BFTA) BITEKIZ K 20224F 1 A1
Annual improvement project Annual Improvements 2018-2020 1 January 2022
FEBCEIER Cycle 2022%F1TA1H
85&020@5%2@17&
Account|n%GU|de| ne 5 (Revised) Merger accounting for common 1 January 2022
FRHE5IE59 (KI8E]) control combinations 2022F1A1H
HREIEHI T EBEHHNE &t
e
HKFRS 17 o Insurance Contracts 1 January 2023
BB MEERNE 175 R &4 2023 1A
Amendments to HKAS 1~ Classification of Liabilities as Current 1 January 2023
AERGFERE 15 (BF]4) or Non-Current 2023F1TA1H
RBIERBEEDE
HK Interpretation 5 (2020) Presentation of financial statements 1 January 2023
BB -REAES (2020) - classification by the borrower 2023F1TA1H
of a term loan that contains a
repayment on demand clause
ﬁﬁ%#&%ﬁu#& fE KA B B E 5K
WERRHEBE RS R
HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 (Amendmems) Sale or contribution of assets To be determined
BRMBHREEUF 10 RELEGE between an investor and its =E
AIZE 2857 (185]A) associate or, omt venture
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ARERBZERARAT - —ZT-TFFH

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

(d)

New, revised and amended standards not yet
adopted (Continued)

The Group has already commenced an assessment
of the impact of these new or revised standards,
interpretation and amendments, certain of which
are relevant to the Group's operations. According to
the preliminary assessment made by the directors of
the Company, no significant impact on the financial
performance and position of the Group is expected
when they become effective.

2.2 Subsidiaries
2.2.1 Consolidation

Subsidiaries are all entities (including structured
entities) over which the Group has control. The Group
controls an entity when the Group is exposed to, or
has rights to, variable returns from its involvement
with the entity and has the ability to affect those
returns through its power to direct the activities of
the entity. Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the
date on which control is transferred to the Group. They
are deconsolidated from the date that control ceases.

Inter-group transactions, balances and unrealised
gains on transactions between group companies
are eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated,
unless the transaction provides evidence of an
impairment of the transferred assets. When necessary,
amounts reported by subsidiaries have been adjusted
to conform with the Group’s accounting policies.

Non-controlling interests in the results and equity of
subsidiaries are shown separately in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, consolidated
statement of changes in equity and consolidated
balance sheet respectively.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.2 Subsidiaries (Continued)
2.2.1 Consolidation (Continued)

(a)

Business combinations not under common
control

The Group applies the acquisition method
to account for business combinations. The
consideration transferred for the acquisition of
a subsidiary comprises the fair values of the
assets transferred, the liabilities incurred to
the former owners of the acquired business,
the equity interests issued by the Group, fair
value of any assets and liability resulting from
a contingent consideration arrangement, and
fair value of any pre-existing equity interest in
the subsidiary. Identifiable assets acquired and
liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed
in a business combination are, with limited
exceptions, measured initially at their fair values
at the acquisition date. The Group recognises
any non-controlling interests in the acquired
entity on an acquisition-by-acquisition basis
either at fair value or at the non-controlling
interests’ proportionate share of the acquired
entity’s net identifiable assets.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as
incurred.

The excess of the consideration transferred,
amount of any non-controlling interests in the
acquired entity, and acquisition-date fair value
of any previous equity interest in the acquired
entity over the fair value of the net identifiable
assets acquired is recorded as goodwill. If those
amounts are less than the fair value of the net
identifiable assets of the business acquired, the
difference is recognised directly in profit or loss
as a bargain purchase gain.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.2 Subsidiaries (Continued)
2.2.1 Consolidation (Continued)

(a)

Business combinations not under common
control (Continued)

Where settlement of any part of cash
consideration is deferred, the amounts
payable in the future are discounted to their
present value as at the date of exchange. The
discount rate used is the entity’s incremental
borrowing rate, being the rate at which a
similar borrowing could be obtained from an
independent financier under comparable terms
and conditions. Contingent consideration is
classified either as equity or a financial liability.
Amounts classified as a financial liability are
subsequently remeasured to fair value with

changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss.

If the business combination is achieved in
stages, the acquisition date carrying value of
the acquirer's previously held equity interest
in the acquiree is remeasured to fair value at
the acquisition date. Any gains or losses arising
from such remeasurement are recognised in

profit or loss.
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e MR

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.2 Subsidiaries (Continued)
2.2.1 Consolidation (Continued)

(b)

Business combinations under common
control

The
incorporate the financial statement items of

consolidated financial statements
the entities or businesses in which the common
control combination occurs as if they had been
consolidated from the date when the entities or
businesses first came under the control of the
controlling party.

The net assets of the combining entities
or businesses are consolidated using the
existing book values from the controlling
party's perspective. No amount is recognised
in consideration for goodwill or excess of
acquirer’s interest in the net fair value of
acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities over cost at the time of
common control combination, to the extent
of the continuation of the controlling party’s
interest.

A uniform set of accounting polices is adopted
by those entities. All intra-group transactions,
balances and unrealised gains on transactions
between combining entities or businesses are

eliminated on consolidation.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.2 Subsidiaries (Continued)
2.2.1 Consolidation (Continued)

(©)

(d)

Changes in ownership interests in
subsidiaries without change of control

Transactions with non-controlling interests that
donotresultin aloss of control are accounted for
as equity transactions—that is, as transactions
with the owners of the subsidiary in their
capacity as owners. The difference between fair
value of any consideration paid and the relevant
share acquired of the carrying amount of net
assets of the subsidiary is recorded in equity.
Gains or losses on disposals to non-controlling

interests are also recorded in equity.

Disposals of subsidiaries

When the Group ceases to have control, any
retained interest in the entity is re-measured
to its fair value at the date when control is
lost, with the change in carrying amount
recognised in profit or loss. The fair value is
the initial carrying amount for the purposes
of subsequently accounting for the retained
interest as an associate, joint venture or financial
asset. In addition, any amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income in
respect of that entity are accounted for as if
the Group had directly disposed of the related
assets or liabilities. This may mean that amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive
income are reclassified to profit or loss or
transferred to another category of equity as
specified/permitted by applicable HKFRSs.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

2.2 Subsidiaries (Continued)
2.2.2 Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost
less impairment. Cost includes direct attributable
costs of investment. The results of subsidiaries are
accounted for by the Company on the basis of
dividend received and receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries
is required upon receiving a dividend from these
investments if the dividend exceeds the total
comprehensive income of the subsidiary in the period
the dividend is declared or if the carrying amount of
the investment in the separate financial statements
exceeds the carrying amount in the consolidated
financial statements of the investee’s net assets
including goodwill.
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e MR MR

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.3

Associates

Associates are all entities over which the Group has
significant influence but not control or joint control. This
is generally the case where the Group holds between 20%
and 50% of the voting rights. Investments in associates
are accounted for using the equity method of accounting.
Under the equity method of accounting, the investments
are initially recognised at cost and adjusted thereafter to
recognise the Group’s share of the post-acquisition profits
or losses of the investee in profit or loss, and the Group's
share of movements in other comprehensive income of
the investee in other comprehensive income. Dividends
received or receivable from associates are recognised as
a reduction in the carrying amount of the investment.
The Group's investments in associates include goodwill
identified on acquisition. Upon the acquisition of the
ownership interest in an associate, any difference between
the cost of the associate and the Group's share of the net
fair value of the associate’s identifiable assets and liabilities
is accounted for as goodwill.

The Group determines at each reporting date whether
there is any objective evidence that the investment in the
associate is impaired. If this is the case, the Group calculates
the amount of impairment as the difference between the
recoverable amount of the associate and its carrying value
and recognises the amount adjacent to share of results of
associates in profit or loss.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.3

24

Associates (Continued)

Profits and losses resulting from upstream and downstream
transactions between the Group and its associate are
recognised in the Group's financial statements only to the
extent of unrelated investor's interests in the associates.
Unrealised losses are eliminated unless the transaction
provides evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred.

Accounting policies of associates have been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted
by the Group.

Gain or losses on dilution of equity interest in associates are
recognised in profit or loss.

Joint arrangements

Investments in joint arrangements are classified as either
joint operations or joint ventures. The classification depends
on the contractual rights and obligations of each investor,
rather than the legal structure of the joint arrangement. The
Group has assessed the nature of its joint arrangements and
determined them to be joint ventures.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 FESHHEHBEGE)
POLICIES (Continued)
2.4 Joint arrangements (Continued) 24 SEZTH(E)

Under the equity method of accounting, interests in joint
venturesareinitially recognised at costand adjusted thereafter
to recognise the Group's share of the post-acquisition profits
or losses and movements in other comprehensive income.
The Group's investments in joint ventures include goodwill
identified on acquisition. Dividends received or receivable
from joint ventures are recognised as a reduction in the
carrying amount of the investment. Upon the acquisition
of the ownership interest in a joint venture, any difference
between the cost of the joint venture and the Group's
share of the net fair value of the joint venture’s identifiable
assets and liabilities is accounted for as goodwill. When
the Group’s share of losses in a joint venture equals or
exceeds its interests in the joint ventures, including any
other unsecured receivables, the Group does not recognise
further losses, unless it has incurred obligations or made
payments on behalf of the joint ventures.

The Group determines at each reporting date whether there
is any objective evidence that the investment in the joint
venture is impaired. If this is the case, the Group calculates
the amount of impairment as the difference between the
recoverable amount of the joint venture and its carrying
value and recognises the amount adjacent to ‘share of
results of joint ventures’ in profit or loss.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group and its
joint ventures are eliminated to the extent of the Group's
interests in the joint ventures. Unrealised losses are also
eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of an
impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting policies of
the joint ventures have been changed where necessary to
ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.5 Segment reporting

2.6

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent

with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating

decision-maker.

The chief operating decision-maker

("CODM"), who is responsible for allocating resources and

assessing performance of the operating segments, has been

identified as the Board of Directors that makes strategic

decisions. The CODM regards that there is only one segment,

that is property development business, which is used to

make strategic decisions.

Foreign currency translation

(a)

(b)

Functional and presentation currency

[tems included in the financial statements of each
of the Group’s entities are measured using the
currency of the primary economic environment in
which the entity operates (the “functional currency”).
The functional currency of the Company is RMB. The
Company'’s primary subsidiaries were incorporated
in the PRC and these subsidiaries considered RMB as
their functional currency. As the major operations of
the Group are within the PRC, the Group determined
to present its consolidated financial statements in
RMB.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the
functional currency using the exchange rates at the
dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains
and losses resulting from the settlement of such
transactions and from the translation of monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies
at year end exchange rates are generally recognised
in profit or loss. They are deferred in equity if they
relate to qualifying cash flow hedges and qualifying
net investment hedges or are attributable to part of
the net investment in a foreign operation.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.6 Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(c)

Group companies

The results and financial position of foreign operations
(none of which has the currency of a hyperinflationary
economy) that have a functional currency different
from the presentation currency are translated into
the presentation currency as follows:

assets and liabilities for each balance sheet
presented are translated at the closing rate at
the date of that balance sheet;

income and expenses for each statement
of comprehensive income are translated at
average exchange rates (unless this is not a
reasonable approximation of the cumulative
effect of the rates prevailing on the transaction
dates, in which case income and expenses are

translated at the dates of the transactions); and

all resulting exchange differences are recognised
in other comprehensive income.
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e MR

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

2.6 Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(c) Group companies (Continued)

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from
the translation of any net investment in foreign
entities, and of bank and other borrowings and other
financial instruments designated as hedges of such
investments, are recognised in other comprehensive
income. When a foreign operation is sold or any
bank and other borrowings forming part of the net
investment are repaid, the associated exchange
differences are reclassified to profit or loss, as part of

the gain or loss on sale.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the
acquisition of a foreign operation are treated as assets
and liabilities of the foreign operation and translated

at the closing rate.

2.7 Leases
(a) The Group as a lessee

Leases are recognised as a right-of-use asset and a
corresponding liability at the date at which the leased
asset is available for use by the Group. Assets and
liabilities arising from a lease are initially measured
on a present value basis. Lease liabilities include the
net present value of the following lease payments:

fixed payments (including in-substance fixed
payments), less any lease incentives receivable;

variable lease payments that are based on an
index or a rate, initially measured using the

index or rate as at the commencement date;

amounts expected to be payable by the Group
under residual value guarantees;
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 FESHBEFEHMEE)
POLICIES (Continued)

2.7 Leases (Continued) 27 THE(E)
(a) The Group as a lessee (Continued) (a) AEBEIEAEAES (&)
the exercise price of a purchase option if the . WMAEBEEERESTEREE
Group is reasonably certain to exercise that - BIBERENTRE &
option; and
payments of penalties for terminating the lease, . MHEGRTBETAERGITE
if the lease term reflects the Group exercising RAERE - BIERIETRERIETR ©
that option.
Lease payments to be made under reasonably AEBER  TEESeEREET
certain extension options are also included in the FERE ZRELNE SR -
measurement of the liability.
The lease payments are discounted using the interest MM FIRBLOA S FIEAEIR o {4
rate implicit in the lease. If that rate cannot be readily BAEEZNR(AEENHEELE
determined, which is generally the case for leases in ) - B AARE G RIEEEET
the Group, the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate is & BMERIAM T ERERERRR
used, being the rate that the individual lessee would HERR - BERRGGAEGEEER
have to pay to borrow the funds necessary to obtain AR EAEE N E E AR A
an asset of similar value to the right-of-use asset in o
a similar economic environment with similar terms,
security and conditions.
To determine the incremental borrowing rate, the RETEEERFIE  KEH
Group:
where possible, uses recent third-party . FERTREIB R T » {2 A MR Rl # 78
financing received by the individual lessee as ARLESNE=TRERD
a starting point, adjusted to reflect changes in B BFRABEARM B ERS
financing conditions since third party financing E =T R E AR F B R &

was received; g o
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

2.7 Leases (Continued)

The Group as a lessee (Continued)
uses a build-up approach that starts with a
risk-free interest rate adjusted for credit risk for
leases held by the Group, which does not have
recent third-party financing; and

makes adjustments specific to the lease, e.g.

term, country, currency and security.

If a readily observable amortising loan rate is available
to the individual lessee (through recent financing or
market data) which has a similar payment profile to the
lease, then the group entities use that rate as a starting

point to determine the incremental borrowing rate.

The Group's right-of-use assets consist of various
leases for properties and up-front payments to acquire
long-term interest in the usage of land.

Right-of-use assets resulted from leases of properties
are measured at cost comprising the amount of
the initial measurement of lease liability, any lease
payments made at or before the commencement date
less any lease incentives received, any initial direct
costs, and restoration costs. Depreciation is calculated
on a straight-line basis over the respective lease terms
and is charged to profit or loss in the consolidated

statements of comprehensive income.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.7 Leases (Continued)

(a)

The Group as a lessee (Continued)

Right-of-use assets resulted from prepaid land
lease payments are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses.
Cost represents consideration paid for the rights
to use the land and other direct related costs from
the date when the respective rights were granted.
Depreciation of prepaid land lease payments is
calculated on a straight-line basis over the lease terms
as stated in the relevant land certificates granted
for usage by the Group in the PRC and is charged
to profit or loss in the consolidated statements of

comprehensive income.

Lease payments are allocated between principal and
finance cost. The finance cost is charged to profit or
loss over the lease period so as to produce a constant
periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of
the liability for each period.

Payments associated with short-term leases of
properties for staff quarters are recognised on a
straight-line basis as an expense in profit or loss. Short-
term leases are leases with a lease term of 12 months
or less without a purchase option.

Practical expedients applied
Inapplying HKFRS 16, the Group has used the following
practical expedients permitted by the standard:

applying a single discount rate to a portfolio of
leases with reasonably similar characteristics;

relying on previous assessments on whether
leases are onerous as an alternative to
performing an impairment review; and

accounting for operating leases with a remaining
lease term of less than 12 months as short-term
leases.
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e MR

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.7 Leases (Continued)

(b)

The Group as a lessor

A lessor shall classify each of its leases as either an
operating lease or a finance lease. A lease is classified
as afinance lease if it transfers substantially all the risks
and rewards incidental to ownership of an underlying
asset. A lease is classified as an operating lease if it
does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
incidental to ownership of an underlying asset.

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in
profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the terms of
the relevant lease. Initial direct costs with more than a
significant amount are capitalised when incurred, and
are recognised in profit or loss on the same basis as
rental income over the lease term. Other initial direct
costs with an insignificant amount are charged to

profit or loss in the period in which they are incurred.

The lease receivables under lease arrangements are
recognised as “trade receivable” in the consolidated
balance sheets.

2.8 Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost

less depreciation. Historical cost includes expenditure that

is directly attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount

or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when

it is probable that future economic benefits associated with

the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can

be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced

part is derecognised. All other repairs and maintenance are

charged to the profit or loss during the financial period in

which they are incurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.8

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)
Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method
to allocate their cost or revalued amounts, net of their
residual values, over their estimated useful lives or, in the
case of leasehold improvements and certain leased plant
and equipment, the shorter lease term as follows:

—  Buildings
20-40 years
—  Building improvements
5 years
— Transportation equipment
5 years
—  Office equipment and machinery

3-5 years

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and

adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately
to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is
greater than its estimated recoverable amount.

Construction in progress represents the direct costs of
construction incurred of property, plant and equipment
less any impairment losses. No provision for depreciation
is made on construction in progress until such time the
relevant assets are completed and put into use. Construction
in progress is reclassified to the appropriate category of
property, plant and equipment when completed and ready
for use.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing
proceeds with carrying amount. These are included in profit

or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M mRME

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.9

2.10

Investment properties

Investment properties, principally comprising leasehold land
and buildings, are held for long-term rental yields or for
capital appreciation or both, and that are not occupied by
the Group. Investment property is initially measured at cost,
including related transaction costs and where applicable
borrowing costs. Subsequently, they are carried at fair value.
Changes in fair values are presented in profit or loss.

If an item of completed properties held for sale or properties
under development becomes an investment property
because its use has changed, any difference resulting
between the carrying amount and the fair value of this item

at the date of transfer shall be recognised in profit or loss.

Intangible assets

Computer software

Acquired computer software licenses are capitalised on the
basis of the costs incurred to acquire and bring to use
the specific software. These costs are amortised over their

estimated useful lives (2 to 5 years).

2

TEETEEMEH)

2.9

2.10

LB =
BRENXR(TERRFHEELHEBT)RE
REHEKERNEESIALREBH -
FAREEMNR - REVMEA LKA
E BREBXZKNARERNEER
K HBEBRAABEIR - AAEEBHRE
&=

5251 °

I FHENERT YR KFABR YRR
BREERGHEMKSREYE - %AH
REZHHNREEREAABEZHRNER
RN BERER -

AR
ERB1F

BARNE M A ERIEEE REAZ
FE B PT S BN AE AL © RFKA
REMFAIMERFHQEF) AEE



ARERBZERARAT - —ZT-TFFH
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.11

2.12

Impairment of non-financial assets

Goodwill and intangible assets that have an indefinite useful
life are not subject to amortisation and are tested annually
for impairment, or more frequently if events or changes
in circumstances indicate that they might be impaired.
Other assets are tested for impairment whenever events
or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying
amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is
recognised for the amount by which the asset's carrying
amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable
amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs of
disposals and value in use. For the purposes of assessing
impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for
which there are separately identifiable cash inflows which
are largely independent of the cash inflows from other assets
or groups of assets (cash-generating units). Non-financial
assets other than goodwill that suffered an impairment are
reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at the end
of each reporting period.

Financial assets

(a) Classification
The Group classifies its financial assets in the following
categories:

those to be measured subsequently at fair value
(either through other comprehensive income or
through profit or loss); and

those to be measured at amortised cost.
The classification depends on the entity’s business

model for managing the financial assets and the
contractual terms of the cash flows.
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e M mRME

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.12 Financial assets (Continued)

(a)

(b)

(c)

Classification (Continued)

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses
will either be recorded in profit or loss or other
comprehensive income. For investments in equity
instruments that are not held for trading, this
will depend on whether the Group has made an
irrevocable election at the time of initial recognition
to account for the equity investment at fair value
through other comprehensive income.

The Group reclassifies debt investments when and
only when its business model for managing those
assets changes.

Recognition and derecognition

Regular way of purchases and sales of financial assets
is recognised on trade-date, the date on which the
Group commits to purchase or sell the asset. Financial
assets are derecognised when the rights to receive
cash flows from the financial assets have expired or
have been transferred and the Group has transferred
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership.

Measurement

At initial recognition, the Group measures a financial
asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial
asset not at FVTPL, transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset.
Transaction costs of financial assets carried at FVTPL
are expensed in profit or loss.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are
considered in their entirety when determining
whether their cash flows are solely payment of
principal and interest.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.12 Financial assets (Continued)

(c)

Measurement (Continued)

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments
depends on the Group's business model for managing
the asset and the cash flow characteristics of the asset.
There are two measurement categories into which the
Group classifies its debt instruments:

Amortised cost: Assets that are held for collection
of contractual cash flows where those cash
flows represent solely payments of principal
and interest are measured at amortised cost.
Interest income from these financial assets is
included in finance income using the effective
interest rate method. Any gain or loss arising
on derecognition is recognised directly in
profit or loss and presented in other gains/
(losses) together with foreign exchange gains
and losses. Impairment losses are presented
as separate line item in the statement of
comprehensive income.

FVTPL: Assets that do not meet the criteria
for amortised cost or fair value through other
comprehensive income are measured at FVTPL.
A gain or loss on a debt investment that is
subsequently measured at FVTPL is recognised
in profit or loss and presented net within other
gains/(loss) in the period in which it arises.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.12 Financial assets (Continued)

(c)

(d)

Measurement (Continued)

Equity instruments

The Group subsequently measures all equity
investments at fair value. Where the Group’s
management has elected to present fair value
gains and losses on equity investments in other
comprehensive income, there is no subsequent
reclassification of fair value gains and losses to profit
orloss following the derecognition of the investment.
Dividends from such investments continue to be
recognised in profit or loss as other income when
the Group's right to receive payments is established.

Changes in the fair value of financial assets at FVTPL
are recognised in other gains/(losses) in the statement
of comprehensive income as applicable. Impairment
losses (and reversal of impairment losses) on equity
investments measured at financial assets at fair
value through other comprehensive income are not

reported separately from other changes in fair value.

Impairment

The Group assesses on a forward-looking basis
the expected credit losses associated with its debt
instruments carried at amortised cost and fair value
through other comprehensive income and lease
receivable. The impairment methodology applied
depends on whether there has been a significant
increase in credit risk. For trade receivables, the
Group applies the simplified approach permitted by
HKFRS 9 which requires expected lifetime losses to be
recognised from initial recognition of the receivables.
See Note 3.1.2 for further details.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.13

2.14

2.15

Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount
reported in the balance sheet where the Group currently has
a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts,
and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or realise
the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. The Group
has also entered into arrangements that do not meet the
criteria for offsetting but still allow for the related amounts
to be set off in certain circumstances, such as bankruptcy
or the termination of a contract.

Inventories

Inventories mainly comprise of spare parts and consumables
for hotel business, which are stated at the lower of cost or
net realisable value. Cost is determined using the weighted
average method. Net realisable value is the estimated selling
price in the ordinary course of business, less applicable
variable selling expenses.

Properties under development

Properties under development are stated at the lower of cost
and net realisable value. Net realisable value is determined
by reference to the sale proceeds of properties sold in the
ordinary course of business, less applicable variable selling
expenses and the anticipated costs to completion, or by
management estimates based on prevailing marketing
conditions.

Properties under development are classified as current
assets when the construction of the relevant properties
commences unless the construction period of the relevant
property development project is expected to complete
beyond normal operating cycle. The normal operating cycle
is usually around 3 years.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M mRME

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.16

2.17

Completed properties held for sale
Completed properties remaining unsold at reporting period
end are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

Cost comprises development costs attributable to the

unsold properties.

Net realisable value is determined by reference to the
sale proceeds of properties sold in the ordinary course of
business, less applicable variable selling expenses, or by
management estimates based on prevailing marketing
conditions.

Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for
properties sold or services performed in the ordinary course
of business. If collection of trade and other receivables is
expected in one year or less (or in the normal operating
cycle of the business if longer), they are classified as current
assets. If not, they are presented as non-current assets.

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at fair
value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method, less provision for impairment.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.18

2.19

Contract assets and liabilities and costs for obtaining
contracts

Upon entering into a contract with a customer, the Group
obtains rights to receive consideration from the customer
and assumes performance obligations to transfer goods or
provide services to the customer. The combination of those
rights and performance obligations gives rise to a net asset
or a net liability depending on the relationship between
the remaining rights and the performance obligations. The
contract is an asset and recognised as contract assets if
the measure of the remaining rights exceeds the measure
of the remaining performance obligations. Conversely, the
contract is a liability and recognised as contract liabilities
if the measure of the remaining performance obligations

exceeds the measure of the remaining rights.

The Group recognises the incremental costs of obtaining a
contract with a customer within contract cost if the Group
expects to recover those costs.

Cash and cash equivalents and restricted cash

For the purpose of presentation in the consolidated
statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents includes
cash on hand, deposits held at call with banks and other
short-term, highly liquid investments with original maturities
of three months or less that are readily convertible to known
of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value. Bank deposits which are restricted to
use are included in “restricted cash” of the consolidated
balance sheet. Restricted cash are excluded from cash and
cash equivalents.
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e MR

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.20

2.21

2.22

Share capital
Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new
shares or options are shown in equity as a deduction, net
of tax, from the proceeds.

Trade and other payables

Trade payables are obligations to pay for construction costs
or services that have been acquired in the ordinary course
of business from suppliers. Trade and other payables are
classified as current liabilities if payment is due within one
year or less (or in the normal operating cycle of the business
if longer). If not, they are presented as non-current liabilities.

Trade and other payables are recognised initially at their fair
value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method.

Bank and other borrowings

Bank and other borrowings are recognised initially at fair
value, net of transaction costs incurred. Bank and other
borrowings are subsequently carried at amortised cost; any
difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs)
and the redemption value is recognised in the profit or loss
over the period of the Bank and other borrowings using the
effective interest method.

Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are
recognised as transaction costs of the loan to the extent
that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be drawn
down. In this case, the fee is deferred until the draw down
occurs. To the extent there is no evidence that it is probable
that some or all of the facility will be drawn down, the fee
is capitalsed as a pre-payment for liquidity services and

amortised over the period of the facility to which it relates.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.22

2.23

Bank and other borrowings (Continued)

Bank and other borrowings are removed from the balance
sheet when the obligation specified in the contract is
discharged, cancelled or expired. The difference between
the carrying amount of a financial liability that has been
extinguished or transferred to another party and the
consideration paid, including any non-cash assets transferred
or liabilities assumed, is recognised in profit or loss as other

income or finance costs.

Bank and other borrowings are classified as current liabilities
unless the Group has an unconditional right to defer
settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after the
end of the reporting period.

Borrowing costs

General and specific borrowing costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition, construction or production
of a qualifying asset are capitalised during the period of
time that is required to complete and prepare the asset for
its intended use or sale. Qualifying assets are assets that
necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready
for their intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment
of specific bank and other borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the
borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

Other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which
they are incurred.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.24 Current and deferred income tax

The income tax expense or credit for the period is the tax
payable on the current period’s taxable income based on
the applicable income tax rate for each jurisdiction adjusted
by changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities attributable
to temporary differences and to unused tax losses.

Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis
of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the
balance sheet date in the countries where the Group and its
joint ventures and associates operate and generate taxable
income. Management periodically evaluates positions taken
in tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable
tax regulation is subject to interpretation. It establishes
provisions where appropriate on the basis of amounts
expected to be paid to the tax authorities.

Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the liability
method, on temporary differences arising between the tax
bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in
the consolidated financial statements. However, deferred
tax liabilities are not recognised if they arise from the initial
recognition of goodwill. Deferred income tax is also not
accounted for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset
or liability in a transaction other than a business combination
that at the time of the transaction affects neither accounting
nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred income tax is determined
using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or
substantially enacted by the end of the reporting period and
are expected to apply when the related deferred income tax

asset is realised or the deferred income tax liability is settled.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR MR

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 FESHBEFEHMEE)
POLICIES (Continued)

2.24 Current and deferred income tax (Continued) 2.24 BIHANIEFE PSR (48)
Deferred income tax (Continued) EAEFTEH (&)
The deferred tax liability in relation to investment property B AR EFENREMERBOELTR
that is measured at fair value is determined assuming the BEENBRRZMEEBLEMEHK
property will be recovered entirely through sale. B TIREE °
Deferred tax assets are recognised only if it is probable that RIERTR B E R AR K ERT IR R 2 A
future taxable amounts will be available to utilise those TR ERE RS IER T UAMER o

temporary differences and losses.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are not recognised for fied 2 &= B AT I RS E RE AV B B R -
temporary differences between the carrying amount and ZEBAETENA AL RKERE - E‘J
tax bases of investments in foreign operations where the TERBINEBRE 2 REEERE ZH
Group is able to control the timing of the reversal of the WEREZHERRAREHIBREREE -

temporary differences and it is probable that the differences
will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is fid B RIRORTT (6 B RE ) DA SH BN BB 1R &
a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets and ERAE  BRERBARER—HEHE
liabilities and when the deferred tax balances relate to the A - BRI EEEBER TUK
same taxation authority. Current tax assets and tax liabilities o i E R AMEROEITREMENIAEEE
are offset where the entity has a legally enforceable right to BERFHEAELEESRANZFREE RS
offset and intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise HEER - RIASFIEEERETIAAER
the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. TS -

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss, BN ER R ERR TE A B s N FERR - MEER A H
except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in tEEBRARRSEERNERERZIER
other comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this BRI - RUIERAT - BB HIR
case, the tax is also recognised in other comprehensive Hiv 2EPA S EERERTRER o

income or directly in equity, respectively.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M mRME

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.25 Employee benefits

(a)

Pension obligations

The Group only operates defined contribution
pension plans. In accordance with the rules and
regulation in the PRC, the PRC based employees of
the Group participate in various defined contribution
pension plans organised by the relevant municipal
and provincial governments in the PRC under which
the Group and the PRC based employees are required
to make monthly contributions to these plans
calculated as a percentage of the employees’ salaries.
The municipal and provincial governments undertake
to assume the retirement benefit obligations of all
existing and future retired PRC based employees’
payable under the plans described above. Other
than the monthly contributions, the Group has no
further obligation for the payment of retirement and
other post-retirement benefits of its employees. The
assets of these plans are held separately from those
of the Group in independently administrated funds
managed by the governments.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.25 Employee benefits (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Pension obligations (Continued)

The Group also participates in a pension scheme
under the rules and regulations of the Mandatory
Provident Fund Scheme Ordinance (“MPF Scheme”)
for all employees in Hong Kong, which is a defined
contribution retirement scheme. The contributions
to the MPF Scheme are based on minimum statutory
contribution requirement of 5% of eligible employees’
relevant aggregate income. The assets of this pension
scheme are held separately from those of the Group
in independently administered funds.

The Group’s contributions to the defined contribution
pension plans are expensed as incurred.

Housing benefits and social insurances
Employees of the Group in the PRC are entitled
to participate in various government-supervised
housing benefits and social insurance plan. The
Group contributes on a monthly basis to these funds
based on certain percentages of the salaries of the
employees, subject to certain ceiling. The Groups
liability in respect of these funds is limited to the
contributions payable in each year. Contributions
to the housing benefits and social Insurances are
expensed as incurred.

The obligations are presented as current liabilities
in the consolidated balance sheet if the entity does
not have an unconditional right to defer settlement
for at least twelve months after the reporting period,
regardless of when the actual settlement is expected

to occur.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.26 Share-based payments

Share-based compensation benefits are provided to
employees via the employee share incentive scheme.

Share incentive scheme

The Group operates equity-settled, share-based
compensation plans, under which the entity receives services
from employees as consideration for equity instruments of
the Group. The fair value of the employee services received
in exchange for the grant of restricted equity interest is
recognised as an expense.

The total amount to be expensed is determined by reference
to the fair value of the equity instruments granted:

including any market performance conditions (e.g.
the entity’s share price);

excluding the impact of any service and non-market
performance vesting conditions (e.g. profitability,
sales growth targets and remaining an employee of
the entity over a specified time period); and

including the impact of any non-vesting conditions
(e.g. the requirement for employees to save or holding

shares for a specific period of time).

Non-marketing performance and services conditions are
included in the calculation of the number of the restricted
equity interests that are expected to vest. The total expense
is recognised over the vesting period, which is the period
over which all of the specified vesting conditions are to
be satisfied.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 FESHBEFEHMEE)
POLICIES (Continued)

2.26 Share-based payments (Continued) 226 UMD ABEBNARE)

Share incentive scheme (Continued) R 17BN 2 (4E)

Where there is any modification of terms and conditions MIER KRR EENEREERTA
which increases the fair value of the equity instruments W RAREZEMMERTR - RIEBLRER TR
granted, the Group includes the incremental fair value BHFG ARG MERORIBNGTES - &
granted in the measurement of the amount recognised SRS ACRENEEAAE - BERR
for the services received over the remainder of the vesting BENRETREIEN AR BERFERT
period. The incremental fair value is the difference between BERARnBE HENER  MEARLBEERE
the fair value of the modified equity instrument and that of FIBEfAET - RIS E AR B ENRIRN
the original equity instrument, both estimated as at the date BETEBELET R T ARE B R H
of the modification. An expense based on the incremental AR - MAEMERETANTRESERE
fair value is recognised over the period from the modification BERNRBEEBEHNSRTHRBER o Ut
date to the date when the modified equity instruments SN - B BB RIZR D U RER A
vest in addition to any amount in respect of the original NEZHR AR EREN A AEMERS
instrument, which should continue to be recognised over BEXENAR  BFIEREERTAN
the remainder of the original vesting period. Furthermore, BRI - BIZERIEES GRS
if the entity modifies the terms or conditions of the equity REeRbBEa TANKREAR - BOZE
instruments granted in a manner that reduces the total R EBRE(ETREEH S I HEHD
fair value of the share-based payment arrangement, or is R T AMTH)

not otherwise beneficial to the employee, the entity shall
nevertheless continue to account for the services received
as consideration for the equity instruments granted as if that
modification had not occurred (other than a cancellation of
some or all the equity instruments granted).

At the end of each period, the entity revises its estimates of REMER - BRRBEIEMSEE LIRS
the number of equity instruments that are expected to vest IRHHEFT S TR s a i am T H BB Fr
based on the non-market vesting and service conditions. It e (AT « BRI RARMEEAH BT E(W
recognises the impact of the revision to original estimates, B)gREnER BRI SEERE -

if any, in profit or loss, with a corresponding adjustment
to equity.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.27

2.28

Provisions

Provisions for environmental restoration, restructuring costs,
and legal claims are recognised when: the Group has a
present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past
events; it is probable that an outflow of resources will be
required to settle the obligation; and the amount has been
reliably estimated. Provisions are not recognised for future
operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the
likelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement
is determined by considering the class of obligations as a
whole. A provision is recognised even if the likelihood of an
outflow with respect to any one item included in the same

class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the
expenditures expected to be required to settle the obligation
using a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the
obligation. The increase in the provision due to passage of
time is recognised as interest expense.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable for the sales of properties and services
in the ordinary course of the Group’s activities. Revenue is
shown net of discounts and after eliminating sales within
the Group companies.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.28 Revenue recognition (Continued)

(a)

Sales of properties

Revenue is recognised when or as the control of the
asset is transferred to the customer. Depending on
the terms of the contract and the laws that apply to
the contract, control of the asset maybe transferred
over time or at a point in time. Control of the asset
is transferred over time if the Group's performance
does not create an asset with an alternative use to
the Group and the Group has an enforceable right to
payment for performance completed to date.

If control of the asset is transferred over time,
revenue is recognised over the period of the contract
by reference to the progress towards complete
satisfaction of that performance obligation. Otherwise,
revenue is recognised at a point in time when the

customer obtains control of the asset.

In determining the transaction price, the Group
adjusts the promised amount of consideration for
the effect of a financing component if it is significant.

For property development and sales contract for
which the control of the property is transferred at
a point in time, revenue is recognised when the
customer obtains the physical possession or the legal
title of the completed property and the Group has
present right to payment and the collection of the
consideration is probable.
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e M mRME

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.28 Revenue recognition (Continued)

2.29

2.30

231

(b)

(c)

Construction contracts

For provision of construction services, the Group's
performance creates or enhances an asset or work
in progress that the customer controls as the asset
is created or enhanced, thus the Group satisfies a
performance obligation and recognises revenue
over time, by reference to completion of the specific
transaction assessed on the basis of the actual costs
incurred up to the end of the reporting period as a
percentage of total estimated costs for each contract.

Hotel operation income

Revenue from provision of hotel services is recognised
in the accounting period in which the related services
are rendered.

Interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest

method.

Commission income

Commission income from trading of construction materials

is recognised in profit or loss on net basis when the related

service is rendered.

Dividend income

Dividends are recognised as income when the right to

receive payment is established.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.32

2.33

2.34

Government grants

Grants from the government are recognised at their fair
value where there is a reasonable assurance that the grant
will be received and the Group will comply with all attached
conditions.

Government grants relating to costs are deferred and
recognised in the profit or loss over the period necessary
to match them with the costs that they are intended to
compensate. Government grants relating to the purchase
of assets are included in non-current liabilities as deferred
income and are credited to profit or loss on a straight-line
basis over the expected lives of the related assets.

Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company's shareholders
is recognised as a liability in the financial statements in
the period in which the dividends are approved by the
Company's shareholders or directors, where appropriate.

Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts are recognised as a financial
liability at the time the guarantee is issued. The liability
is initially measured at fair value and subsequently at the
higher of

the amount determined in accordance with the
expected credit loss model under HKFRS 9 ‘Financial
Instruments’ and

the amountinitially recognised less, where appropriate,
the cumulative amount of income recognised in
accordance with the principles of HKFRS 15 ‘Revenue
from Contracts with Customers'’.
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e M mRME

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.34

2.35

Financial guarantee contracts (Continued)

The fair value of financial guarantees is determined based
on the present value of the difference in cash flows
between the contractual payments required under the
debt instrument and the payments that would be required
without the guarantee, or the estimated amount that would
be payable to a third party for assuming the obligations.
Where guarantees in relation to loans or other payables of
associates are provided for no compensation, the fair values
are accounted for as contributions and recognised as part
of the cost of the investment.

Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit
attributable to owners of the Company by the weighted
average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the

financial year.

Diluted earnings per share

Diluted earnings per share adjusts the figures used in
the determination of basic earnings per share to take
into account the weighted average number of additional
ordinary shares that would have been outstanding assuming
the conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary shares.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

3.1

Financial risk factors

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks:
market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group's overall
risk management program focuses on the unpredictability
of financial markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse
effects on the Group’s financial performance.

3.1.1 Market risk

The Group's market risk arises mainly from interest
rate risk of long-term bank and other borrowings.
Bank and other borrowings obtained at variable
rates expose the Group to cash flow interest rate risk
which is partially offset by cash held at variable rates.
Bank and other borrowings obtained at fixed rates
expose the Group to fair value interest rate risk. The
Group closely monitors trend of interest rate and its
impact on the Group's interest rate risk exposure. The
Group currently has not used any interest rate swap
arrangements but will consider hedging interest rate
risk should the need arise.

As at 31 December 2020, if interest rates on bank and
other borrowings at floating rates have been 100 basis
points higher or lower with all other variables held
constant and without taking into account interest
capitalisation, interest charges for the year ended
31 December 2020 would have been increased/
decreased by RMB59,994,000 (2019: RMB41,965,000).
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e MR MR

3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.1

Financial risk factors (Continued)
3.1.2 Credit risk

The Group is exposed to credit risk in relation to its
trade and other receivables, contract assets, cash
deposits with banks and financial assets at FVTPL.
The carrying amounts of these assets represent the
Group's maximum exposure to credit risk in relation

to financial assets.

For the trade receivables arising from sales of
properties, the Group managed the credit risk by fully
receiving cash or properly arranging the purchasers’
mortgage loans financing procedures before delivery
of properties unless strong credit position of the
customers could be established. The Group closely
monitors the collection of progress payments from
customers in accordance with payment schedule
agreed with customers. The Group has policies in
place to ensure that sales are made to purchasers
with an appropriate financial strength and appropriate
percentage of down payments.

Meanwhile, the Group has the right to cancel the
contracts once repayment from the customers is in
default, it also has monitoring procedures to ensure
that follow-up actions are taken to recover overdue
balances. In addition, the Group regularly reviews
the recoverable amount of each individual trade
receivables to ensure that adequate impairment
provisions are made for irrecoverable amounts. The
Group has no significant concentrations of credit risk,
with exposure spread over a number of counterparties

and customers.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.1

Financial risk factors (Continued)
3.1.2 Credit risk (Continued)

The Group has arranged bank financing for certain
purchasers of the Group's property and provided
guarantees to secure obligations of such purchasers
for repayment. Detailed disclosure of such guarantees
is made in Note 36. If a purchaser defaults on the
payment of its mortgage loan during the guarantee
period, the bank holding the guarantee may demand
the Group to repay the outstanding principal of
the loan and any interest accrued thereon. Under
such circumstances, the Group is able to forfeit the
customer’s deposit and resell the property to recover
any amounts paid by the Group to the bank. In this
regard, the directors of the Company consider that the
Group's credit risk is significantly reduced.

The Group also provided financial guarantees for
the bank and other borrowings of certain related
parties, which were raised mainly for the purpose to
finance their property development projects. Detailed
disclosure of such guarantees is made in Note 36.
The Group reviews the financial performance of the
related parties as well as the underlying property
development projects at the end of each reporting
period, and considers that the Group’s credit risk is

not material.
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e MR

3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.1

Financial risk factors (Continued)
3.1.2 Credit risk (Continued)

For other receivables and financial assets at FVTPL, the
management of the Group has monitoring procedures
to ensure that follow up action is taken to recover
overdue debts. In addition, the Group reviews the
recoverability of these receivables at the end of each
reporting period to ensure that adequate impairment
losses are made for irrecoverable amounts.

The Group categories trade and other receivables and
financial assets at FVTPL as default when a debtor fails
to make contractual payments. Where a debtor fails to
make contractual payments, the Group continues to
engage in enforcement activity to attempt to recover
the receivable due. Trade and other receivables and
financial assets at FVTPL are written off where there
is no reasonable expectation of recovery.

To manage credit risk of cash deposits with banks,
deposits are mainly placed with licensing banks
which are all high-credit-quality financial institutions.
Cash and cash equivalents are also subject to the
impairment requirements of HKFRS 9, the identified

loss was immaterial.

The Group uses four categories for those receivables
which reflect their credit risk and how the loss

provision is determined for each of those categories.

3

TRAREE ()
3.0 E@EREEE)

312 1FEEfE (E)

AN EUGRIA R IR A 2 B AR
MEMEEMS - ARBEEER
BEEERF  BERERIRERE
YWEE AR - o - ARERE
& BRI AT 7% 5 R R TR B AT 4R [l
- RS SRR E M S BIFL D
HEEE

AEBRERAREEL SO FKE
K E 5N EAM R WA RIR DA E
FAABSNEREESRREN - H
B AREELEONKOBERT -
AEEGEBENTRINITES - A
EARDEHEKTIR - BH REM
FEWRIR LA RS2 A R BFT ABm A&
MEECEQERHATKRENERT
TUAMES ©

REEERRRITHRESFARNEE
B - FREBRFRRFRRT
ZERITOREAREEERENTR
W - ReRBSEFEBMINEETE
B BREEEIRARERRK -
PAEEHERL FNEKX -

N5 B 5t 2% R ORI 5K A U B AR
Al RERERRRIMEE AR LA E
EEBRBEHR -



3

ARERBZERARAT - —ZT-TFFH

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3 TEEREEGE)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 31 2mREAKEE(E)
3.1.2 Credit risk (Continued) 312 EEmEME (&)
A summary of the assumptions underpinning the AEBEEHEEEEENERNEBRR
Group's expected credit loss model is as follows: BT -
Basis for recognition of expected credit
Category Group definition of category loss provision
85 AEEHERNNES BRANCESERBHBNESE
Performing Customers have a low risk of default and a 12 months expected losses. Where the
TE strong capacity to meet contractual cash expected lifetime of an asset is less
flows than 12 months, expected losses are

EFENRBREBBRRENTREAHL

REMEFK
Underperforming Receivables for which there is a significant
TE increase in credit risk; as significant

increase in credit risk is presumed if

interest and/or principal repayments are
more than 90 days past due

FEUIRR EERBRBE LI » 5B R
S RARBFBEBEOR - BIHEER

EERBREELMN
Non-performing Interest and/or principal repayments are
B more than 365 days past due
B,/ AREEFEHBIBI65K
Write-off Interest and/or principal repayments are
e more than 3 years past due and there is

no reasonable expectation of recovery

MER/ SR ERaHBB=FATE

& 12 7] Y E TR H

measured at its expected lifetime

1218 ATEEAE 1S - B ERTEEIFER
1B A 2 A - RIFEHAE 1 i A 7a A
FERE

Lifetime expected losses

TFEEIER

Lifetime expected losses
FERTR BAE 1E

Asset is written off

The Group accounts for its credit risk by appropriately
providing for expected credit losses on a timely
basis. In calculating the expected credit loss rates,
the Group considers historical loss rates for each
category of receivables and adjusts for forward
looking macroeconomic data. The historical loss rates
are adjusted to reflect current and forward-looking
information on macroeconomic factors affecting the
ability of the customers to settle the receivables. The
Group has identified the GDP and the unemployment
rate of Mainland China in which it sells its properties to
be the most relevant factors, and accordingly adjusts
the historical loss rates based on expected changes
in these factors.
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e M mRME

3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.1

Financial risk factors (Continued)
3.1.2 Credit risk (Continued)

(a)

Trade receivables and contract assets

The Group applies the simplified approach to
providing for expected credit losses prescribed
by HKFRS 9 ‘Financial Instruments’, which
permits the use of the lifetime expected loss
provision for all trade receivables both from
third parties and related parties and contract
assets.

In calculating the expected credit loss rate of
the trade receivables, the Group has considered
the historical credit loss experience to
incorporate relevant, current and more forward-
looking information for different class of trade
receivables which grouped based on shared
credit risk characteristics and the days past
due. As there was no significant change of the
characteristic of the customer base, historical
credit loss rate of customers and forward-
looking information during the year ended 31
December 2020, the Group adopted the same
expected credit loss rate throughout 2020. The
loss allowance provision as at 31 December

2020 and 2019 is determined as follows:
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M mRME

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3 SHREREIE(E)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1 SEiEREZE(E)

3.1.2 Credit risk (Continued) 312 GERF (4E)

(a) Trade receivables and contract assets @ EBIZEUFERSHEE
(Continued) (&)
Over Over
90 days 180 days
Within and within and within Over
90days 180days 365days 365 days Total
90K 180K
90K 180k 365Kk 365K
B DY DY HUE st
Trade receivables B 2 WA
As at 31 December 2020 722020 12H31H
Expected loss rate (%) TEHRES 18 (%) 0.10% 2.00% 5.00%  10.00% =
Gross carrying amount RHAE
(RMB'000) (AREFT) 18,031 1,051 3,210 15,268 37,560
Loss allowance provision 518 5B
(RMB'000) (ARETT) 18 20 161 1,527 1,726
Trade receivables g 5 WA
As at 31 December 2019 #2019612A31H
Expected loss rate (%) EEIEEE %) 0.10% 2.00% 5.00% 10.00% -
Gross carrying amount FE4E
(RMB'000) (AREFT) 16,674 9,627 1223 18,043 45,567
Loss allowance provision 1B ZEFRE &
(RMB'000) (ARETTT) 17 193 61 1,804 2,075

The contract assets relate to construction

services have substantially the similar risk

characteristics as the trade receivables for the

same types of contracts. The Group has therefore

concluded that the expected loss rates for trade

receivables are a reasonable approximation of

the loss rates for the contract assets. Expected

loss rate of contract assets is assessed to be
4.60% as at 31 December 2020 (2019: 4.55%).
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3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.1

Financial risk factors (Continued)
3.1.2 Credit risk (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Trade receivables and contract assets
(Continued)

The Group made no write-off of trade receivable
and contract assets during the year ended 31
December 2020.

Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously
written off are credited against the same line
item.

Other receivables

The Group's other receivables mainly include
amounts due from third parties, related parties
and non-controlling interests. To measure the
expected credit losses of other receivables,
other receivables have been grouped based
on shared credit risk characteristics and the days
past due. As at each reporting period end date,
other receivables due from related parties and
non-controlling interests were performing and
the debtor has a strong capacity to meet its
contractual cash flow obligations in the near
term. The Group has assessed that the expected
credit losses for these receivables are not
material under the 12 months expected losses
method. Thus no loss allowance provision was
recognised in respect of these balances during
the year ended 31 December 2020 (2019:nil).

Management considered other receivables
due from third parties to be low credit risk as
they have a low risk of default and thus the
impairment provision recognised during the
year ended 31 December 2020 was limited to
12 months expected losses. A reversal for loss
allowances of RMB12,388,000 (2019: provision
for loss allowance of RMB3,794,000) was
recognised in profit or loss in relation to the
impaired other receivables.

The Group made no write-off of other
receivables during the year ended 31 December
2020 (2019:nil).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.1

Financial risk factors (Continued)
3.1.2 Credit risk (Continued)

(©

Financial assets at FVTPL and cash and cash
equivalent

The entity is also exposed to credit risk in
relation to debt investments that are measured
at FVTPL. The maximum exposure at the end of
the reporting period is the carrying amount of
these investment.

The Group is also exposed to credit risk in
relation to debt instruments that are measured
at FVTPL, which are considered to be low credit
risk, where they have a low risk of default as the
debtor is assessed to have a sufficient capacity
to meet its contractual cash flow obligations
in the near term. The maximum exposure at
the end of the reporting period is the carrying

amount of these investment.

While cash and cash equivalents are also subject
to the impairment requirements of HKFRS 9,
the identified impairment loss was immaterial.
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e BRI
3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3 TEEREREEGE)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 31 SREEZEGE)
3.1.2 Credit risk (Continued) 312 15 ERFE (&)
(d) Movement of loss allowance provision for d) THEERSIEEHEE
financial and contract assets is summarised EHEREEEB T -
as follows:
Trade Contract Other
receivables assets receivables Total
BEZEW Hiy R
ME BHEE RIE st

RMB'000  RMB000 ~ RMB'000  RMB'000
ARETT ARBTT ARETT ARETT

At 1 January 2020 7M2020%F181H 2,075 2,606 35,256 39,937
Provision for loss (#E) 1R EE

allowance (reversed)/ ERE

recognised (349) 4,819 (12,388) (7,918)
Disposals of subsidiaries & /&2 &) = = (255) (255)
At 31 December 2020 R2020%F12H31H 1,726 7,425 22,613 31,764
At 1 January 2019 #2019 1A1H 2,886 8,447 61,979 73,312
Provision for loss (BE) R EE

allowance (reversed)/ AR

recognised 811) (5,841) 3,794 (2,858)
Disposals of subsidiaries & B A 7 - - (30,517) (30,517)

At 31 December 2019 420195128318 2,075 2,606 35,256 39,937
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.1

Financial risk factors (Continued)
3.1.3 Liquidity risk

Management aims to maintain sufficient cash and
cash equivalents or have available funding through
an adequate amount of available financing, including
proceeds from pre-sale of properties, bank and other
borrowings and fundings from shareholders to meet

its acquisition and construction commitments.

The Group has a number of alternative plans to
mitigate the potential impacts on anticipated cash
flows should there be significant adverse changes
in economic environment. These include adjusting
project development timetable to adapt the changing
local real estate market environment, implementing
cost control measures, promotion of sales of
completed properties, accelerating sales with more
flexible pricing, seeking business partners to jointly
develop projects etc. The Group will pursue such
options based on its assessment of relevant future
costs and benefits.

The table below analyses the Group's financial
liabilities maturity profile at the balance sheet date.
The amounts disclosed thereon are the contractual
undiscounted cash flows. Balances due within 12
months from the balance sheet date equal to their
carrying amounts in the balance sheet, as the impact
of discount is not expected to be significant.

3

e MR
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3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3 SHREKRER(E)

Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1 eREREZE(E)
3.1.3 Liquidity risk (Continued) 313 mBELEE(E)
Carrying
Less than Between Between amounts of
Tyear 1and2years 2and5years Over5 years Total liabilities
15/ 1226 2558 SENE @ BEESE
RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARETE ARETT AREBTR ARETE  ARETR
Asat 31 December 2020  12020%E12831H
Lease liabilities HEERE 21,075 25,544 81,475 72,470 200,564 143,210
Bank and other borrowings SR/ REMAE R 3358317 4709530 3,343,790 215701 11,627,338 10,314,138
Trade and other payables ~ EHREfERFE
excluding accrued payroll  FREEANE
and other taxes payable HRAMENTIE 13435207 - - - 13435207 13,435,207
16814599 4735074 3,425,265 288,171 25263109 23,892,555
Financial guarantees SRER 17,489,248 = = - 17,489,248 17,489,248
As at 31 December 2019 }2019%12A31H
Lease liabilities HEAR 221 954 884 241 4300 3121
Bank and other borrowings  $R47 R AL EFR 2,866,170 3,129,354 2,663,702 126809 8,786,035 7,770,445
Trade and other payables B 5 REMERFE
excluding accrued payroll  MEFEERME
and other taxes payable B REAERTA 9,090,493 - - - 9,090,493 9,090,493
11,958,884 3130308 2,664,586 127050 17880828 16864059
Financial quarantees SRER 14,086,462 - - - 14086462 14086462
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.2 Capital management

The Group's objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a going concern
in order to provide returns for owners and benefits for other
stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital structure
to reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group
may adjust the amount of any returns to shareholders, return
capital to shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets to
reduce debt.

The Group monitors its capital structure on a basis of gearing
ratio. This ratio is calculated as net bank and other borrowings
divided by total equity as shown in the consolidated balance
sheet. Net bank and other borrowings are calculated as total
bank and other borrowings less total cash and bank deposits.

3

e MR

SRIEMER (&)
32 EBEXRER

AEEEREANBRRREAEERE
REMBEN - REAANRME RN SEA
BoREHMN G - XRBREELERE - #
EEARRA o

RRFBAFBERER AREXSAE
EABRROHEE  RERREAN - BT
AL E R E - ARRRET -

AEEENFABLEREEREARGEE -
ZERRIF R EERBERATRIT REA
ERFRR AR AR E - RITREA
EFRFERRITELAMERBRRRE R
RITHFRABERETH ©

As at 31 December

M12A31H
2020 2019
20205 20194F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T T ARETIT

Total bank and other SRIT M E A fE AR RE

borrowings 10,314,138 7,770,445
Less: cash and bank deposits B IRE RIRITER (5,660,333) (4,095,171)
Net debt &% 58 4,653,805 3,675,274
Total equity EmAATE 7,921,978 3,084,293
Gearing ratio (%) F B B2 (%) 58.7% 119.2%
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3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.3 Fair value estimation

(a)

Financial assets carried at fair value

The Group's financial assets carried at fair value
include financial assets at FVTPL. The different levels
of the financial instruments carried at fair value, by
valuation method, have been defined as follows:

Level 1: The fair value of financial instruments traded
in active markets (such as publicly traded derivatives,
and trading and available-for-sale securities) is based
on quoted market prices at the end of the reporting
period. The quoted market price used for financial
assets held by the Group is the current bid price. These
instruments are included in level 1.

Level 2: The fair value of financial instruments that
are not traded in an active market is determined
using valuation techniques which maximise the use
of observable market data and rely as little as possible
on entity-specific estimates. If all significant inputs
required to fair value an instrument are observable,
the instrument is included in level 2.

Level 3: If one or more of the significant inputs is not
based on observable market data, the instrument is
included in level 3. This is the case for unlisted equity

securities.

3
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3 ZREREEREGE)
3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued) 33 AAETER(E)

(a)  Financial assets carried at fair value (Continued) () EAIAEIRNEHEE (&)
Specific valuation techniques used to value financial Hem T AGERMANSEMERS
instruments include: EEE

Quoted market prices or dealer quotes for . FETANMSHREXIHE
similar instruments; and WwE: &
Discounted cash flow model and unobservable . BhIRBR e RERT RIET B2
inputs mainly including assumptions of BASE  FZEEAHEES
expected future cash flows and expected rate RIRRemE R8I E @WEL
of return. fRa& °
All resulting fair value estimates for financial assets at FIBIRARBEF ABRNEHEER
FVTPL are included in level 3. ILEER AR EMFTRAEIR
There were no transfers among levels 1, 2 and 3 for RELE2020F 12 A31 A IEFE#HITA
recurring fair value measurements during the year AEFER - B 2R3K 2 EIE
ended 31 December 2020. ERCIEEYEA
The Group performs valuation, or necessary updates, REEZEDENEAETIRHES
at least once every six months. The Group adopts WEMER - XEBEFERSEREE
various techniques to determine the fair value of the E '*32&15:5’]’&5?@ BREERET
Group's level 3 instruments. External valuation experts Al REEERE N E R

may also be involved when it is necessary.

As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, the components HE2020F 2019512 8318 » £3
of the level 3 instruments were debts investment in Z&I/E:E'JZEEX‘B D IIEREIRERIEL
unlisted company, which are not trade in any active NA - REREWENEERT

market. iE' 5F °
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3 TREREEREGE)
3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued) 33 AAETER(E)
(a)  Financial assets carried at fair value (Continued) () EAIAEIRNEHEE (&)
The fair values of debts investment in unlisted HIE LT RRINEEREN AR ENR
company have been determined using applicable BRAMNBEREEE  TEREMR
valuation techniques, which mainly include RERmEE - HEKAAANEZRR
discounted cash flows approach. Major assumptions BIEBEREARESK AR G5
used in the valuation include historical results and TR EBEEIRARETERFT
estimates of the cost of equity. The following table RAWERTAI SR ASIBENEEE
summarises the quantitative information about the K} o
significant unobservable inputs used in level 3 fair
value measurements.
Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31BLEE
2020 2019
20204 2019%F
Significant unobservable input ERRAEERGE AYIE
The cost of equity MR AR 12.86% 12.55%
Fair value changes DNRERE
Impact of fair value change to profit SHERMEHBENHNTE
after income tax
Increase by 5 basis points (RMB'000) EhnsEER (AR¥FT) (2,316) (2,873)
Decrease by 5 basis points (RMB'000)  J& > 5EXEEZ (AR TIT) 2,448 3,048
Financial assets at FVTPL Level 3
BRAnBEst \BaEmEE E=1

2020 2019
20204F 20194
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET AREBTT

At 1 January M1A1H 200,806 176,589
Additions NE 110,741 -
Disposals HE (110,741) -
Change in fair value N EEE 17,035 24217
At 31 December M12831H 217,841 200,806
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued)

(b)

Investment properties
Investment properties of the Group were measured

at fair value.

There were no transfers among levels 1, 2 and 3 for
recurring fair value measurements during the year
ended 31 December 2020.

The directors determine a property’s value within a
range of reasonable fair value estimates. Fair values
of the Group's completed investment properties are
derived using the income capitalisation approach. This
valuation method takes into account the net rental
income of a property derived from its existing leases
and/or achievable in the existing market with due
allowance for the reversionary income potential of the
leases, which have been then capitalised to determine
the fair value at an appropriate capitalisation rate.

Fair values of the Group's investment properties under
construction are derived on the basis that they will
be developed and completed in accordance with
the latest construction plans. It is assumed that
all consents, approvals and licenses from relevant
government authorities for the construction plans
have been obtained without onerous conditions
or delays. In arriving at the fair values, the direct
comparison approach is adopted by making reference
to comparable sales transactions as available in the
market and also taken into account the costs that will
be expended to complete the construction to reflect
the quality of the completed construction. The “market
value as if completed” represents the estimate of the
aggregate selling prices of the property assuming
that it would be completed as at the valuation date.

All resulting fair value estimates for investment
properties are included in level 3.

3
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FEMBBRHE
3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3 TREREEREGE)
3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued) 33 AAETER(E)
(b) Investment properties (Continued) (b) KREYF (&)
The following table summarises the quantitative TRBAFTEFIR DA EEMALN
information about the significant unobservable inputs BEANAERGALBEEEER -

used in recurring level 3 fair value measurements.

Fair value as at 31 December

R12A31BH R RE
Property status 2020 2019
WA 20204 20194
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETF T ARETT

Completed BT 1,410,730 1,403,070
Under construction EEH 156,000 147,470
1,566,730 1,550,540
Properties status Unobservable inputs Range of unobservable inputs
WA TR ABE ARG A BIEEE
As at 31 December
M12H31H
2020 2019
20205 20194
Completed Capitalisation rate 3.5%~6% 3.5%~6%
E%T B e®
Retail and office monthly rental
(RMB/sg.m./month) 18~156 18~156
ZERMAEAM
(AR®,FHK/A)
Carpark monthly rental (RMB/space/month) 338 337

FESAE (AR SRFELA)

Under construction Expected profit margin 15% 15%
FEE TREAF R =
Accommodation value (RMB/sq.m.) 4,185~4,601 3,981~4,379

EEE (AR FI7K)
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e ISR M
FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3 LCRMEAREE(E)
3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued) 33 AAETER(E)
(b) Investment properties (Continued) (b) KREYF (&)
Relationship of unobservable inputs to fair value: TRJER S g A BUHR BN R EEVRE(R ¢
The higher capitalisation rate, the lower the fair . BEXNMcERE - AREME
value
The higher monthly rental, the higher the fair . Alds r AnERS
value
The higher the expected profit margin, the . TEFEEES - AaEEE
lower the fair value
Investment properties Level 3
B
2019
20194
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET T AREBTT
At 1 January MH1A1H 1,550,540 1,413,010
Transfer from completed properties EBEERELENERIYE
held for sale
~ Cost — KR 44,417 -
~ Revaluation gains — Bl 28,464 -
Other additions EMRE 2,465 95,325
Fair value changes NREZE 19,174 42,205
Disposals of subsidiaries HERBAR (42,100) -
Other disposals Hin & (36,230) -

At 31 December M12831H 1,566,730 1,550,540
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3

B R Rk M =

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued)

(b)

Investment properties (Continued)

The Group's investment properties were valued at
each reporting period end date and each transfer date
by independent professionally qualified valuer, who
holds a recognised relevant professional qualification
and has recent experience in the locations and
segments of the investment properties valued. For
all investment properties, their current use equates
to the highest and best use.

The Group’s finance department includes a team
that reviews the valuations performed by the
independent valuer for financial reporting purposes.
This team reports directly to the executive directors.
Discussion of valuation processes and results are held
amongst the executive directors, the valuation team
and independent valuer during financial reporting
process.

At each reporting period end, the finance department:

Verifies all major inputs to the independent
valuation report;

Assesses property valuation movements when
compared to the prior period valuation report;

and

Holds discussions with the independent valuer.

3
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS

The preparation of financial statements requires the use of
accounting estimates which, by definition, will seldom equal the
actual results. Management also needs to exercise judgement in
applying the Group's accounting policies.

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated. They are
based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that may have a financial impact
on the entity and that are believed to be reasonable under the

circumstances.

(@) Estimates for net realisable value of properties under
development and completed properties held for
sale
The Group assesses the carrying amounts of properties
under development and completed properties held for
sale according to their net realisable value based on the
realisability of these properties. Net realisable value for these
properties is determined by reference to management’s
estimates of the selling price based on prevailing market
conditions, less applicable variable selling expenses and,
for property under development, the anticipated costs to
completion.

(b) Valuation of investment properties
The fair value of the investment properties was determined
by reference to valuations conducted on these properties
by independent property valuers using property valuation
techniques which involve certain assumptions under
prevailing market conditions. Changes to these assumptions
may result in changes in the fair value of the investment
properties, which will lead to the change of profit for the

year.
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4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

(c)

Current and deferred income tax

The Group is subject to corporate income taxes in the
PRC. Estimation is required in determining the amount
of the provision for taxation and the timing of payment
of the related taxation. There are many transactions and
calculations for which the ultimate tax determination is
uncertain during the ordinary course of business. Where
the final tax outcome of these matters is different from the
amounts that were initially recorded, such differences will
impact the income tax and deferred tax provisions in the

period in which such determination is made.

Deferred tax assets relating to certain temporary differences
and tax losses are recognised when management considers
to be probable that future taxable profit will be available
against which the temporary differences or tax losses can
be utilised. The outcome of their actual utilisation may be
different.

PRC land appreciation taxes

The Group is subject to land appreciation taxes in the PRC.
The Group has not fully finalised its PRC land appreciation
taxes calculations and payments of certain development
projects with local tax authorities in the PRC. Accordingly,
judgment is required in determining the amount of the land
appreciation and the related taxes. The Group recognised
the land appreciation taxes based on management’s best
estimates according to their interpretation of the tax rules.
The final tax outcome could be different from the amounts
that were initially recorded, and these differences will impact
the related tax expenses and deferred tax provision in the
period in which such taxes are finalised with local tax

authorities.
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SEGMENT INFORMATION 5

Management has determined the operating segments based on
the reports reviewed by CODM.

The Group is principally engaged in property development
business in the PRC. Management reviews the operating results
of the business as one operating segment to make decisions about
resources to be allocated. Therefore, the CODM regards that there
is only one segment which is used to make strategic decisions.

All of the Group's revenue are derived in the PRC during the year
ended 31 December 2020 and the Group's non-current assets were
all located in the PRC. No geographical information is therefore
presented.

REVENUE 6

Revenue is analysed as follows:

e MR

2 EBE R
ERECRETBEEREE BNOBRERETE
BHH -

AEBTEETEREMERAE - EEER—E
REDHEHEGEEFRE - U ERNA D
FRVEHARSE - At - TELERKERRESR
—ERRELEBRRA D -

HZE2020F12831BLEFE + AEERZ U
HREHRERAEBRNIERSEEHMNPE -
M E 2@ E R -

Year ended 31 December

HZ12A31BLEEE

2020 2019
20204 20194
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR%TT AREFT

Sales of properties HEWHE
Provision of construction services RHBEERS
Rental income HEBWA
Provision of hotel services REVATE RS
Others Hith

10,109,291 7,772,380
241,973 218,621
56,408 40,622
47,848 34,782
132,859 41,621

10,588,379 8,108,026
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e MR

6 REVENUE (Continued)

Represented by:

6 W (&)

Year ended 31 December

BZ12A31BLEEE

2020 2019
20206 20194
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®ET AREBTT

Revenue from contracts with customers
Sales of properties

- Recognised at a point in time

Provision of construction, hotel and other

HEFENANEENKRE
SHEWH
— RE R BER 10,109,291 7,772,380

REHEE  BIEREMARE

services

~ Recognised at a point in time — RE KRR 27,589 19,588

— Recognised over time — R—BREEAER 395,091 275436

Revenue from other sources H R &=

- Rental income — HE WA 56,408 40,622

10,588,379 8,108,026

There was no revenue derived from a single external customer HZE2020F K 2019F12 A31 B ILFE - BEHETM
accounting for 10% or more of the Group's revenues during the KRB E IR PR Eh AN S B U ES # 10% 3k
years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019. VAL -
The Group recognises construction, hotel and other services AEEBRIREE BERAMRBEREERS
revenue in the amount that equals to the right to invoice which B m e RSN AEEENER - ma kT
corresponds directly with the value to the customers of the Group's ERHEASBEZESREFELNEBAEE - &
performance to date. The Group has elected the practical expedient SEBEENTEIRE  TEEZSAOER
for not to disclose the remaining performance obligations for these HER TEAEE -

types of contracts.
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EXPENSES BY NATURE

7

BEMHER TS

e MR

Year ended 31 December

HZ12A31BLEEE

RMB’000

2020 2019
20205 20194
RMB'000

ARETT

AR®TTT

Cost of properties sold — including construction

costs, land costs and capitalised interest expenses

BEEWEKAR — BRREEK
R LA R B AR

BRX 7,567,732 5,500,833

Cost of construction services RS 229,874 207,690
Other taxes and other levies HitbFE R EmEE 68,918 75174
Advertising costs EERA 151,037 164,033
Employee benefit expenses (Note 8) EE @AM (MiiEs) 425,386 323,349
Entertainment expenses BiHE 34,195 33,206
Office and travelling expenses WARERAS 34,851 35,325
Depreciation of HEWE
— Property, plant and equipment — W% BEKREHE 82,550 82,842
~ Right-of-use assets — ERAREE 13,911 2,418
Amortisation of THE #5H
— Costs for obtaining contracts — BMBE R 135,744 102,014
- Intangible assets — EREE 6,533 4,681
Property management expenses MEEIERS 64,292 63,297
Maintenance costs DN 5,718 9,339
Professional service expenses BXERGE 56,592 59,532
Provision of write-down for properties under FERYERBIELEND R

development and completed properties held for TR EE

sale - 131,120
Auditor’s remuneration 1% B BN
— Audit services - BRI 3,800 -
- non-audit services - FEEZRE 250 -
Listing expenses W& 9,172 16,232
Short-term lease payments RARER 2,128 1,695
Other expenses H bR 4,691 8,926
Total cost of sales, selling and marketing costs and ~ $HER A - $5E K& & §HFT 7 LA

administrative expenses RATH G 4858 8,897,374 6,821,706

(&5
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mEMBmRME
8 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES 8 REERABX
Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31BLEE
2020 2019
20204 20194
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T ARETT
Wages and salaries ITER® 455,494 369,398
Social insurance expenses (a) HIRFA X (a) 10,912 22,859
Housing benefits (E=E Y 17,186 14,990
Share-based compensation (Note 30(c)) VARR 1 72 B0t & 5 B
(Bt5E30(c)) 28,405 22,724
Other employee benefits Hithlg B8 7 26,767 29,135
538,764 459,106
Less: capitalised in properties under development — Ji : BARILIEFIZE R 2 (113,378) (135,757)
425,386 323,349

(a)

Employees in the Group’s PRC subsidiaries are required to
participate in a defined contribution retirement scheme
administrated and operated by the local municipal
government. The Group's PRC subsidiaries contribute funds
which are calculated on certain percentage of the employee
salary to the scheme to fund the retirement benefits of the

employees.

(a)

AEETENBARZEERZ2EM ST
BT & B2 ROE VR RO SUE (R IRGH &) » K
SEPEMERRRGBEH
BEBTIEM—EBEOLAE  BIEER
BIREF] -
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e ISR M
8 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES (Continued) 8 EERMBAX(E)
(b) Five highest paid individuals b)) ABESFHFMAL
The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest BZE2020F12H31BIEFE - NEEEB
in the Group include 3 directors for the years ended 31 BN AEBABEIBES(2019F : 3
December 2020 (2019: 3), whose emoluments are reflected %) - EHMND I RAK 44 o FAER
in the analysis shown in Note 44. The emoluments payable HER2ZEA (20195 : 28 )M BHAA T -
to the remaining 2 (2019: 2) individual during the year are
as follows:
Year ended 31 December
BZ12A318LFE
2020 2019
202045 20194
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T T AREBTT
Wages and salaries TERES 1,567 1,564
Social insurance expenses RS 20 37
Housing benefits FE®F 56 36
Share-based compensation VARE 15 2 B HiE A 5 B 158 127
1,801 1,764
The emoluments fell within the following bands: A A T EER -
Number of individuals
A
Year ended 31 December
BZ12A318LEE
2020 2019
20205 2019%F
Emolument bands S E

Nil = HK$ 1,000,000 = 21,000,000/ 7T 2 2
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REMBBRME

9 OTHER INCOME

9 HulA

Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31BLEEE

2020 2019
20205 20194
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR%¥TR ARETT

Commission income from trading of construction B &= EEM B E S URA
materials 27,418 27,444
Government grants iSRG 4,196 767
Others Hith 10,643 10,941
42,257 39,152
10 OTHER EXPENSES 10 HpEx
Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31BLEEE
2020 2019
20205 20194
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T AREFTT
Donations B 9,943 26,665
Penalty payments I 613 3,444
Others H 1,207 5,466

11,763 35575
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OTHER GAINS - NET

R B RRMEE

11 Btz — 5

Fair value and revaluation gains on investment

BREWME AR EMERK S
(Kt&E16)

Year ended 31 December

HZ12A31BLEEE
2020 2019

20205 20194
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET T ARETTT

properties (Note 16) 47,638 42,205
Fair value gains of financial assets at FVTPL BAREFABGNEREE
(Note 20) A AN E (FRE20) 17,035 24,217
(Losses)/gains on disposals of subsidiaries HEHB A RN (EE), IR
(Note 39) (M47E39) (5,434) 59,286
Losses on de-registration of an associate A /NSTEE S 2) g i=] (2,099) -
(Losses)/gains on disposals of property, plantand ~ H&E®E - BiE MREDH
equipment (B518), Mz (778) 2,642
Losses on disposals of investment properties HEREYEEE (5,419) -
Others Hit 600 826
51,543 129,176
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REMBBRME

12 FINANCE COSTS - NET

12

BB A — FE

Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31BLEEE

2020 2019
20205 20194
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®TTT ARETT

Finance income:

BEWA -

— Interest income from bank deposits — RITFHFEHA (28,799) (25,539)
Finance costs: BLEP AN
~ Interest expenses of bank and other borrowings ~— — #8717 R E b {& 3k F| B L 883,149 737,414
— Interest expenses on lease liabilities — HEaEMNERX 6,529 622
- Others — H 1,683 1,545
891,361 739,581
— Less: interests capitalised — B BAMEFE (842,987) (691,115)
48,374 48,466
Finance costs - net LB R A — FE 19,575 22,927
(@ EREERR

Capitalised borrowing costs

(a)

The capitalisation rate of bank and other borrowings was
8.27% per annum for the year ended 31 December 2020 Bk

(2019: 8.22% per annum).

(1

HE2020F12A31BILEE @ BITREM

BFE & AMb R 58.27%(20194F :8.22%) °
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e MBRERME

13 INCOME TAX EXPENSES 13 FiBHHAX

Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31BLEE
2020 2019
20204 20194
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T R AREFTT

Current income tax BNHARTIS 7
— PRC corporate income tax — B EAER 489,152 320,465
— PRC land appreciation tax ("LAT") —H R IR ER ([ b
BF] ) 415,405 550,314
904,557 870,779
Deferred income tax (Note 34) EIEFTSR (FIsE34) (138,851) (90,328)

765,706 780,451
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ma

13

P AR EE

INCOME TAX EXPENSES (Continued)

The tax on the Group's profit before tax differs from the theoretical
amount that would arise using the tax rate applicable to profits

of the entities of the Group as follows:

13 FREHRA< (&)

IMTRFUR -+ A BB RO BB T RARERR
REBEEEA OB R ERHORREE

Year ended 31 December

BZ12A31BLEEFEE

2020 2019
20205 2019%F
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET T AREBT T
Profit before income tax PS84 Bl 1,715,655 1,407,864
Adjusted: P
Share of results of joint ventures and associates EEROEEELERBER
reported net of tax AIEE (NBRHIE) 45,730 (8,860)
1,761,385 1,399,004
Tax calculated at tax rates applicable to profits in ~ IEAEESERFEFEHE 2
the respective entities of the Group K EHTIA 440,346 349,751
Tax effects of; T EENHBE
- Expenses not deductible for tax purposes — TR IR X 13,765 17,547
— LAT deductible for income tax purposes — A AT IS T A + 3G (E R (103,851) (137,578)
— Tax losses for which no deferred income tax asset — R FERIEIL ST EEMT
was recognised THE 1B 41 417
Corporate income tax RS 350,301 230,137
LAT 3 IRER 415,405 550,314
765,706 780,451
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13 INCOME TAX EXPENSES (Continued)

(a)

Hong Kong profits tax
No provision for Hong Kong profits tax has been made as
the Group had no assessable profit for the year (2019: Nil).

PRC corporate income tax

The income tax provision of the Group in respect of
operations in Mainland China has been calculated at the
applicable tax rate on the estimated assessable profits for
the year, based on the existing legislation, interpretations

and practices in respect thereof.

The corporate income tax rate applicable to entities of the
Group located in Mainland China is 25% according to the
Corporate Income Tax Law of the PRC (the “CIT Law").

LAT

Income from the sale or transfer of land, buildings and their
attached facilities in the PRC s subject to LAT at progressive
rates ranging from 30% to 60% of the appreciation value,
with an exemption provided for sales of ordinary residential
properties if their appreciation values do not exceed 20%
of the sum of the total deductible items.

13 Fif8

(a)

e MR

BRI ()

EBFEH
FAREEERRTGHN - WA EFTIRE
ABRET (20195 : &) -

Bl 2 TS B

ZNER B 5 B R RS PR PR S R B R AR
BRTAED  RERED - REAG
FHERBR M EER R EGH -

RIBCPEARKMBEEAETE) (T
ERBHED  BRARTBEAEAEER
ERNEEMEHRRER25% °

T 3B E

HEREEPR L - REREMELRE
®) BT B WA 7B $2 38 1B B 5 #930% 2 60% &Y
SUER RGN IR ER - S BREE
MEREERERTBAANKER A8
20% - RIEgERE -
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e MR

13

INCOME TAX EXPENSES (Continued)

(d)

Overseas income tax

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands
as an exempted company with limited liability under the
Companies Law and, is exempted from Cayman Islands

income tax.

PRC dividend withholding income tax

Pursuant to the Detailed Implementation Regulations for
Implementation of the Corporate Income Tax Law, dividends
distributed from the profits generated by the PRC companies
after 1 January 2008 to their foreign investors shall be subject
to a withholding income tax of 10%. A lower 5% with holding
tax rate may be applied when the immediate holding
companies of the PRC subsidiaries are established in Hong
Kong according to the tax treat arrangements between
the PRC and Hong Kong. The Group has not accrued any
withholding income tax for the undistributed earnings of
its PRC subsidiaries as they do not have a plan to distribute
these earnings out of Mainland China in the foreseeable
future.

13 FREHRA< (&)

(d)

BINREH
ARABNASBHESREABEAEMKILS
BHRRERLNF  WERLANFASES
Frig®L -

FE R EFEATEH
RIRREFTETEB MRS - 200851 A1
H& - LA BIR B E £ /9w A [ B g NS
B E DR B AR B JE R 10% M B R SR TE
FrB®i - BEREEEBEHTNH MR E
ZH o ERRBARMERIZERARRN
BAK - AIFHABEAS%TEIFE o &
RS2 B Ay A B B B A Rl AT Sl R P TR
BARRDIERARDIRBFZEFREIFIN - BK
EEWARBFENE R RMNZERFF R
ERIFEIFEE ©
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e M mRME

14 EARNINGS PER SHARE 14 BRER

(@) Basic (@ EHXK
Year ended 31 December

BZ12A31BLEEE

2020 2019
20205 20194
Profit attributable to owners of the Company A Bl# B AFE (L% T

(RMB'000) (AR%TT) 715,372 710,256

Weighted average number of ordinary shares B 217 A% & hi 19 &1
in issue ('000) (TH%) 1,019,130 788,403
Earnings per share — Basic (RMB) BRAEN -EX (ARET) 0.70 0.90

For the purpose of calculating the weighted average number TETE B BT B INEE S Em S

of ordinary shares in issue:

()  the subdivision of the Company's share capital and (i) AREBRAFARBEEREABESR
the following shares issued during the Reorganisation B 317 H T 7 B0 3 AR /ERE 2052 2019
are treated as if they had been in effect and issued FIARE AR ET

on 1 January 2019:

100 shares (subdivided) issued on 14 December o M2018F 12 B 148 (AR Al 5 it
2018, the date of incorporation of the Company; A2 B HR) 17100/ R% 10 (2 #F
fsedn )

100 shares (subdivided) issued on 30 April . 720194 4 A 30 H [ Dynasty
2019 to Dynasty Cook as the consideration CookZ1T100R% AR 17 (7 Hr A7)
for acquiring of the 100% equity interests in EB WS BT K E 2 SPR% Ay
Xiamen Datang; and RE;: &

727,073 shares issued to Dynasty Cook on 5 . 720194 11 A 5 B [ Dynasty

November 2019. Cook®£17727,073R% IS °
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e MR

14 EARNINGS PER SHARE (Continued)

(a)

Basic (Continued)

(ii)

(ii)

(iv)

in the respect of the 50,606 ordinary shares of the
Company issued on 5 November 2019 to a company
controlled by the Ultimate Controlling Shareholder
for further share incentive plan, 28,635 shares were
treated as being issued on 5 November 2019 at fair
value and 21,971 shares were treated as if they were
bonus shares that had been in issue since 1 January
2019.

the 999,000,000 ordinary shares of the Company
issued on 30 November 2020 under the Capitalisation
Issue (Note 29) have been adjusted retrospectively to
the number of ordinary shares issued under (i) and
(i) above as if the proportionately higher number
of shares had been in issue since the relevant dates
indicated; and

the 333,400,000 ordinary shares of Public Offering
(Note 29) were issued on 11 December 2020.

14 BRER(E)

(a)

EXR(E)

(ii)

(iif)

(iv)

R20194E 11 A5 B g — AR 0 3B
&1 80 A S AR P BR AR BR AT il A ) BT
ANRAF50,6068 F @R - HAF28,635
BERS D AR MER 201911 A5BHIRA
AMEEIT » M21,971 AN AR VERE
201951 A1 B EEAALIREETT -

R 2020F 11 B30H IRIEE AN 31T
2517 B9 28 A §1999,000,000 5% - 378 A%
(FtzE29) BB MFAERERIE EX() R
(NEITHEMREE - B EHE
BT/~ B BB B 1 T8 = L BRI AR (D 8K
B R

R20205F12 A 11 B R AR E R 3T
333,400,000% & A% (FI5E29) ©



ARERBZERARAT - —ZT-TFFH

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

14 EARNINGS PER SHARE (Continued)

(b)

Diluted

Diluted earnings per share is calculated by adjusting the
weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding
to assume conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary
shares. Restricted Shares granted to employees under the
Group's share incentive scheme (Note 30(c)) are considered
to be potential ordinary shares. For the Restricted Shares,
a calculation is done to determine the number of shares
that could have been acquired at fair value (determined as
the average annual market share price of the Company’s
shares) based on the monetary value of the subscription
rights attached to outstanding Restricted Shares. Taking into
account the effect of the Capitalisation Issue, the number of
shares calculated as above is compared with the number of
shares that would have been issued assuming the exercise
of the Restricted Shares.

e MR

14 BRER(E)

(b)

wE
BEREERNDBRRELMEALETCES
MEBRE - AR EITEBRAINEY
B ERY - REASEORO BB
2 (T EE30(0)) AR B 1% H 9 52 B8 il AR 40 12
BARBEEEN LA - LR R D
ME @ CARECBTRRERNMANRE
BNEREE  FAEAEAAEGRAR
A MR P HEEE ) BUS A A (D 8
B - KA RERMBETOEE  RERT
AFFEA RGN BB B BRRITEZR B
D MEITRRM BB ELLE -

Year ended 31 December

BE12A31HLEE
2020 2019
2020%F 20194

Profit attributable to owners of the Company

ARAHEBAEEZN (AR

(RMB'000) TT) 715,372 710,256
Weighted average number of ordinary shares & 277 & 38 I% &9 hnfE 5 &1

in issue ('000) (FA%) 1,019,130 788,403
Adjustments for Restricted Shares ('000) TR SIS0 1E TR

(Note 30(c)) (FRr)  (M$EE30(0)) 81,550 61,299
Weighted average number of ordinary shares & B 58 22 7| 69 & 38 A% hn e 7

for diluted earnings per share ('000) BHE (F%) 1,100,680 849,702
Diluted earnings per share (RMB) FlErEad (ARET) 0.65 0.84

207
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REMBBRME

15 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

15 Y%  BERRZE

Buildings Office
and building  Transportation  equipmentand ~ Construction
improvements equipment machinery in progress Total
BFRETER EaRt BARBRER HRIR a5t
RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000
AREFT  ARETR  ARETn AREfr  ARETR
Year ended 31 December 2019 BE2019E 128310 LEE
Opening net book amount ENEEEE 605,830 4387 13013 95431 718661
Additions "E 45813 1424 5,305 76,134 128676
Disposals iH & (13418) - (249) (15,163) (28826)
Transfer from completed properties held for sale BORENENZRINE 10147 - - - 10147
Transfer £z 120792 - 20587 (141379) -
Disposals of subsidiaries HEMBAR - 79 (36) - (115)
Depreciation charge nEER (76,371) (1541) (4930) - (82842)
Closing net book amount EXBEFAE 692,793 4191 33694 15083 745701
As at 31 December 2019 20198128318
Cost A 849,101 13512 58494 15083 936,130
Accumulated depreciation ZihhE (156308 9321) (24,800) - (190429)
Net book amount FERFE 692,793 4191 33694 1503 745,701
Year ended 31 December 2020 BE200F1283101LEE
Opening net book amount ENEEEE 692,793 4191 33,694 15,023 745,701
Additions hE 62,69 44 7,505 13,643 84,286
Disposals of subsidiaries HENBAF (506) 3 (121) = 630)
Other disposals g (4,455) (182) (915) - (5,552)
Transfer &3 443 = 955 (1,398) =
Depreciation charge EER (74,393) (1,329) 6,828) - (82,550)
Closing net book amount FREETE 676,578 3119 34,290 27,268 74,255
As at 31 December 2020 R2020512A318
Cost BA 906,425 12,532 55,620 27,268 1,001,845
Accumulated depreciation ZitinE (229,847) (9413) (21,330) = (260,590)
Net book amount BEFE 676,578 3119 34,290 27,268 741,255
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mEMBRERME

15 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued) 15 Y¥ - BMENRRE(HE)

Depreciation expenses were charged to the following categories MERY BRE 2MNERM TFIERIFIRR -
in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income:

Year ended 31 December

HZ12A31BLEEE

2020 2019
20205 20194
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR%¥TR ARETT

Cost of sales THE AR 2,198 7,133
Selling and marketing costs HEREHAY 45,296 37,123
Administrative expenses THRAZ 35,056 38,586
82,550 82,842

Pledges of property, plant and equipment for the Group's bank RASENRITREMERMEROYE - KE

and other borrowings is disclosed in Note 32. BB MTE32 o
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ma

16

P AR EE

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

16 BEWE

Investment properties

RENZ
2020 2019
20205 20195
Under Under
Completed Construction ICIcIM  Completed Construction Total
[E1: an Gt st BAT figedis a5t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETR ARETR ARSI ENSSRRNLarEN AR
At fair value BARE
At 1 January A1 1,403,070 147470 1,550,540 815510 597,500 1413010
Transfer from completed properties held ~ EARBIEHENE R T HE
for sale
- Cost - R 44417 - 4417 - - -
- Revaluation gains - s 28464 = 28464 - - -
Other transfer EthiEs - - - 457,000 (457,000) -
Other additions EfRE 2465 - 2465 91382 3943 95325
Fair value changes NNV 10,644 8530 19,174 39178 3027 42,205
Disposals of subsidiaries HEMBAT (42,100 - (42,100) - - -
Other disposals EtihE (36,230) = (36,230) - - -
At 31 December R12A318 1,410,730 156,000 1,566,730 1,403,070 147470 1,550,540
(@) Amounts recognised in profit or loss for investment (a) MEREINREVELLEE
properties
Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31BLEE
2020 2019
20205 2019%F
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETTT
Rental income WA 56,408 40,622
Direct operating expenses from properties REEAMHSBAMENEE
that generated rental income EEHY (17,197) (12,189)
Fair value and revaluation gain N EREHRE 47,638 42,205
86,849 70,638
(b) Pledges investment properties for the Group’s bank and (b) BAREBERIRIT R E AL G K E

REMERBERME2

other borrowings is disclosed in Note 32.
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REMBBRME

Computer software

R

2020 2019
20205 20194
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR%¥TR ARETT

At 1 January M1ATH 17,320 10,067
Additions = 4,523 11,934
Amortisations e (6,533) (4,681)
At 31 December MW12A31H 15,310 17,320
As at 31 December MW12A31H

Cost R AR 31,628 27,105
Accumulated amortisations RETHEE (16,318) (9,785)
Net book amount BREFE 15,310 17,320
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REMBBRME

17 INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)

Amortisation of intangible assets has been charged to profit or

loss as follows:

17 BREE(E)

RS - EBVEE#EC BB

Year ended 31 December

HZ12A31BLEEE

2020 2019
20204 20194
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET T AREFTT
Cost of sales SHE R AR 244 462
Selling and marketing costs HE REHAX 348 503
Administrative expenses THAX 5,941 3,716
6,533 4,681

18 RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS 18 EAEEE
Properties Land Total
LY/ES T it e
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARETIT AREBTET ARETRT

At 1 January ®1A1H

Opening net book amount FYIREFE 2,244 32,503 34,747
Additions NE 1,612 - 1,612
Depreciation e (1,482) (936) (2,418)
At 31 December M12H31H 2,374 31,567 33,941
Year ended 31 December 2020 BZE2020F12831BLLEE

Opening net book amount FYIRESE 2,374 31,567 33,941
Additions RE 149,610 - 149,610
Depreciation e (13,002) (909) (13,911)
Closing net book amount FRERFE 138,982 30,658 169,640
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e ISR M
18 RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (Continued) 18 EAEEE(E)
Pledges of land for the Group’s bank and other borrowings is RAKENRITRAMERMERN L HHBEER
disclosed in Note 32. BfaE32 ©
Depreciation of right-of-use assets has been charged to profit or MTERAT - ERAEEENES ABRR

loss as follows:

Year ended 31 December

HZ12A31BLEEE

2020 2019
20205 20194
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR%¥TR ARETT

Cost of sales HEK A 1,391 242
Selling and marketing costs HE REHRX 6,501 716
Administrative expenses THRAZ 6,019 1,460

13,911 2,418
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FRE KRR MEE
19 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 19 ZERESz2EMIA
As at 31 December
M12A31H
2020 2019
20204 20194
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T T ARETTT
Financial assets at amortised cost: REBERATTENSREE -
Trade and other receivables excluding B REAMBERFIA - TRIE
prepayments TR IR 5,151,381 2,983,926
Cash and bank deposits R & MIRTTIF K 5,660,333 4,095,171
10,811,714 7,079,097
Financial assets at fair value: ARBEFENESREE :
Financial assets at FVTPL BAREFAEBENEREE 217,841 200,806
Financial liabilities at amortised costs: REBERATTENSRES
Bank and other borrowings RIT R E A K 10,314,138 7,770,445
Trade and other payables excluding accrued &5 N EMbERFIE - T
payroll and other taxes payable JEET AR AR 357 B R EL b P £+
A 13,435,207 9,090,493
Lease liabilities HEBE 143,210 3,121

23,892,555 16,864,059
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20 FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH

21

PROFIT OR LOSS

R B RRMEE

20 BAREFABENEREE

Financial assets at FVTPL
BAARBEGABENESREE

z-zrew 215

2020 2019

20204 2019%F

RMB’000 RMB'000

ARET T ARETIT

At 1 January ®1A1R 200,806 176,589

Additions (i) RE() 110,741 -

Disposals (i) HE®) (110,741) -

Change in fair value NREZE) 17,035 24,217

At 31 December (ii) »12H831H 217,841 200,806
(i)  During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group () HEHE2020F12831IFE - KEFBEBER

(ii)

purchased and disposed of wealth management products
amounting to RMB110,741,000 with no fair value gains or
losses recorded.

The financial assets mainly represented unlisted debt
instruments in the PRC which were investments made in a
property development company with variable returns linked
to the financial performance of the investee company.

TEMENERBARE110,741,0007T
BES B AR BB -

(ih FHEHMEEZZRENTENIFLTER
TR HE/HYMEHZEQRNKRE - A8
BZARIRE AR SR IRANN A AT E 3R

INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING THE 21

EQUITY METHOD

Amount represented:

LIgEsSEARNIRE

THAE ¢

Year ended 31 December

HZ12A31BLEEE

2020 2019
20204 20194

RMB’000 RMB'000

ARET T ARETIT

Investment in joint ventures (a) REELENKRE () 2,267,721 625,118
Investment in associates (b) REEE R E IR E (b) 2,501,277 881,880
4,768,998 1,506,998
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REMBBRME

21 INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING THE
EQUITY METHOD (Continued)

(@) Investment in joint ventures

21 BAESEEARNIRE (R)

@ REELEMNRKRE

The movement of investments in joint ventures is REELENREZEUT :
as follows:
Year ended 31 December
BZ12B31BLEEE
2020 2019
20205 20194
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T AREET T
Share of net assets: DIFEE
Opening balances FHEH 625,118 347,896
Transfer from investments in subsidiaries  E#{AMIB QA TIHIRE 5,500 -
Additions NE 1,649,630 206,773
Share of results DL ELE (12,527) 70,449
Closing balances FREH 2,267,721 625,118

(i) There were no significant commitments relating to
the Group's interests in the joint ventures.

(ii)  The directors of the Company consider that none of
the joint ventures was significant to the Group and
thus, the individual financial information of the joint

ventures was not disclosed.

(i)

(ii)

WEEBAASEMESECERETN
BRI -

ARBEERRMEHAKE N =B
EXWAZERE A 2R E
R ERRTHE -
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e M mRME

21 INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING THE 21 MEZRZEARMNKRE(E)
EQUITY METHOD (Continued)

(@) Investment in joint ventures (Continued) (@) MELLENKRE(E)
(i) The summarised financial information of the (iii) {ERITNEANELEEENEHE
individually immaterial joint ventures on an aggregate ERMBEERZENT

basis is as follows:

Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31BLEE
2020 2019
20205 2019%F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T AREBTT

Carrying amounts in the consolidated 4R ABEABRAKRE(E

balance sheet 2,267,721 625,118
Share of results DIEFRE (12,527) 70,449
Share of total comprehensive income — DEARA WA 4258 (12,527) 70,449

(iv) The Group's joint ventures are principally engaged (iv) REBEZEEPEFENEYER
in property development business. During the year BE - HE2020F12A31HIEF
ended 31 December 2020, the projects of certain E ETEEC¥NER FEER
joint ventures were under development with net o EAEBFREmMASE D ERE
losses incurred and the Group recognised share of HEEEEEE - AEBEHNEGE
losses of the joint ventures. The Group has performed EEMNREELHRESS - EFEE
assessment on impairment of the investments in joint RAEELEMENTEERR - MEHE
ventures taking into account the pre-sales status of & B A AR TR R R AR RS2
the properties of the joint ventures, the current and BE - WRABREHEZREMNRE
future market condition for sales of properties and EHRE °

the budgeted development cost and expenses, no
impairment on the investments in joint ventures is

considered necessary.
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21 INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING THE 21

EQUITY METHOD (Continued)

(b) Investment in associates
The movement of investments in associates is as follows:

LI EZ A RVIRE (&)

REBERNRANRE

R ARRERBIT

Year ended 31 December

BZ12A31BLEEE

2020 2019
20204 2019%F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T T AREBTT

Share of net assets: PEFEE

Opening balances AW AE R 881,880 137,469
Transfer from investment in a subsidiaries (i) ERANMNBARRE(®) 78,690 -
Other additions HMRE 1,585,495 806,000
Liquidation BE (11,585) -
Share of results DIREE (33,203) (61,589)
Closing balances HAR A5 4 2,501,277 881,880

(i) On 22 December 2020, the Group disposed of 70%
equity interest in a subsidiary, Tianjin Xinghuashang
Real Estate Co., Ltd. (“Tianjin Xinghuashang”). After
the disposal, the Group hold 30% equity interest of
Tianjin Xinghuashang and it became an associate.

(ii)  There were no significant commitments relating to
the Group's interests in the associates.

(iii) ~ The directors of the Company consider that none of
the associates was significant to the Group and thus,
the individual financial information of the associates
was not disclosed.

(ii)

(iii)

2020128218 - AEBEHE—
ZHBRARAIKXKEEEBEEXERA
BT REEZER ] A70%KRE - b
B&  AEEFBEREZEEN30%0RK
- eEAMENR o

MEAEASEMSHE QA RERN
BERAESE o

ARREERAMELAEEN S B
EANBERF - FutiE AR E
PTBEERRTRE -
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21 INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING THE
EQUITY METHOD (Continued)

(b) Investment in associates (Continued)

e MR

21 BAESREARNKRE(R)

(b) REBEQRNKRE (&)

(iv) The summarised financial information of the (iv) BRI NENKEZERNFERE
individually immaterial associates on an aggregate FEENMFZERELNT -
basis is as follows:

Year ended 31 December
BZ12A3MBLEEE
2020 2019
202045 20194
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR® T ARETIT
Carrying amounts in the consolidated e BAERBEXRAKREMEB
balance sheet 2,501,277 881,880
Share of results DIEEE (33,203) (61,589)
Share of total comprehensive losses DA A EREE (33,203) (61,589)
The Group's associates are principally engaged in (v) ANEBZHMEANREENEYERE

(v)

property development business. During the year
ended 31 December 2020, the projects of certain
associates were under development with net losses
incurred and the Group recognised share of losses of
the associates. The Group has performed assessment
on impairment of the investments in associates taking
into account the pre-sales status of properties of these
associates, the current and future market condition for
sales of properties and the budgeted development
costand expenses, no impairment on the investments
in associates is considered necessary.

¥ o BIE2020F12A31HIEFE -
ATHENRMEL EEESRP  E
A S 1BF R M AN B B T RR P A B
NAIEE - NEBEDHREE A RA
KEELREN G - EPEERBE
RNAYENTEEBER - WEHEB A
RARTRAKARKARMASZEE
WRAEAHEE QAR EELR
@ o
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22 PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT 22 BEEDYE

As at 31 December
M12A31H

2020 2019
20204 20194
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBT R ARETT

Properties under development expected to  TEEHZ 77175 3% T HFE A

be completed: L/
— Within normal operating cycle included —RIEFEERAEBNGT AR
under current assets HEE 23,429,576 21,343,530
- Beyond normal operating cycle included — —#BH E&FELRIAF AR
under non-current assets FEE 14,140 14,140
23,443,716 21,357,670
Properties under development comprise: RS BIE
— Construction costs — R 8,756,770 8,656,659
— Capitalised interests —EREFE 1,590,091 1,497,288
~ Land costs — T HbEK AR 13,375,573 11,482,441
Less: write-down provision B B (278,718) (278,718)
23,443,716 21,357,670
Representing BATIERT
— At cost —¥ZRAR 21,715,888 19,629,842
~ At net realisable value —RAERFE 1,727,828 1,727,828
23,443,716 21,357,670
Properties under development of the Group are all located in the REERBERYMELLRPRE - BELTMARR

PRC. The relevant land are on leases of 40 to 70 years. 40E70F o
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REMBEHRRME
22 PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT (Continued) 22 B H ¥ (&)
At 31 December 2020, properties under development amounting 720206124318 - (BEAKME17,474,833,0007T
to RMB17,474,833,000 was expected to be completed and delivered HFREZERFETERAR —FERT TR o
beyond one year.
The capitalisation rate of bank and other borrowings was 8.27% BE2020F12H31BIEFE @ RIT R EALERK
per annum for the year ended 31 December 2020 per annum HEEREELER827% (20194 : 8.22%) (KizE
(2019: 8.22%) (Note 12). 12) °
Pledges of properties under development for the Group’s bank RASERBRITREMERMERORERME
and other borrowings is disclosed in Note 32. B R IEE32
23 COMPLETED PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE 23 HEHEME®RIYE

As at 31 December

M12H31H
2020 2019
20205 20194F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARETTT
Completed properties held for sale BIEHEMND R T 2,181,330 1,983,311
Less: write-down provision B BRI (46,614) (56,660)
2,134,716 1,926,651
Representing BATIERT
— At cost —HRRA 1,815,284 1,634,978
~ At net realisable value —RA#RHE 319,432 291,673
2,134,716 1,926,651
The completed properties held for sale are all located in the PRC. FHELERNE R ITMEIMRRE -
Pledges of completed properties held for sale for the Group’s bank AREERITREMERMERNFELHEND

and other borrowings is disclosed in Note 32. W% TR BB FIEE32 ©
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REMBBRME

24 CONTRACT ASSETS AND CONTRACT COSTS

(a)

Details of contract assets and contract costs are as follows:

24

BREERGHEAE

(a)

BREEMANRARADIIRAT

As at 31 December

M12A318
2020 2019
20204 20194
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR®T T ARETIT
Contract assets related to construction A REEREHELIEE()
services (i) 167,755 57,228
Less: allowance for impairment W ORERE (5E3.0.2d)
(Note 3.1.2(d)) (7,425) (2,606)
160,330 54,622
Costs for obtaining contracts (ii) A KVERUK AN (i) 278,002 223,712
Total contract assets and contract BHEERE YR AR
costs 438,332 278,334

(ii)

Contract assets consist of unbilled amount resulting from
construction services when revenue recognised exceeds
the amounts billed to the customer. Change of contract
assets is primarily related to increase in unbilled amounts.
A loss allowance for provision of RMB7,425,000 (2019:
RMB2,606,000) has been made against the amounts.

Management expects the incremental costs, primarily
represent sale commission and stamp duty for of obtaining
the property sale contracts, are recoverable. The Group has
capitalised the amounts and amortised them to profit or
loss when the related revenue is recognised. For the years
ended 31 December 2020, the amount of amortisations
was RMB135,744,000 (2019: RMB102,014,000) and there
was no impairment loss recognised in relation to the costs

capitalised.

ERERN B RBANTPELENAZESRE
B AHNEERSEERBOARES
B ANEESB T EHEAMESEEILMN
B - B EREELEBEBEFREA
R#7425,0007T (20194 : A R#2,606,000
JT) °

BRHEMESNMELENIGENAEE
RIEEMe RENER @ EREEF AR
B - AMASEEEZEEKAETENE
WA ERERE RSN IES#E - 5=
20206F12 A31HIEFE - BEKASH)EE
5 A AR M1357440007C( 20194 = A
R#102,014,0007T) * I B & A KB AR
WEERERRERE °
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mEMBRERME

25 CONTRACT LIABILITIES 25 AHEE

(@) The Group has recognised the following liabilities related (@) AEEEERAUTEEFEHNEENERE:
to contracts with customers:

As at 31 December
M12A31H

2020 2019
20204 20194
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T R ARETT

Contract liabilities related to sales of ~BRAHEWEMASYARE

properties 11,653,541 13,187,888
Contract liabilities related to FHRENENAE
construction 40,986 85,489
Contract liabilities aHaE 11,694,527 13,273,377
The Group receives payments from customers based on the AEEZRBEEGHNNENTRLZHERE
billing schedule as established in sale contracts. Payments PWEGIA - & AFIBBELS NEL
are usually received in advance of the performance under BEETHZAIWE - ZEENEEFHEE
the contracts which are mainly for sales of properties. The Y% o BHIE2020F12A31HLEFE &
decrease in contract liabilities during the year ended 31 HNEBERY  FEHRATFPINYERR
December 2020 was mainly attributable to the delivery of B o

properties to customers.
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REMBBRME

25 CONTRACT LIABILITIES (Continued)

(b) The following table shows how much of the revenue
recognised in the year relates to carried-forward
contract liabilities.

25

aeHaE(E)
TRIIMENFEIELZESNER

(b)

BENWE -

Year ended 31 December

BZ12A3MBLEE
2020 2019
20205 20194
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TT AREET T
Sales of properties THEYZE 8,919,282 6,994,994
Construction services BERE 85,489 14,916
9,004,771 7,009,910
() Unsatisfied contracts () XRBITEY
Related to sales of properties: B EYEFE -
As at 31 December
M12A31H
2020 2019
20204 20194
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET T ARETTT
Expected to be recognised within one FEEH —FENIER
year 8,884,437 8,329,486
Expected to be recognised after one  FEFHR —F1&HER
year 12,465,993 12,463,210
21,350,430 20,792,696
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRERME

25 CONTRACT LIABILITIES (Continued) 25 EHEEE)
(c) Unsatisfied contracts (Continued) () RBITEH(E)
Related to construction services: BEFEREFE -

As at 31 December
M12A31H

2020 2019
20205 20194
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T R ARETT

Expected to be recognised within one TR —F AER

year 252,263 174,357
Expected to be recognised after one  FEzFA—F & MER
year 126,132 87,178
378,395 261,535
26 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 26 EZRHMERIE

As at 31 December

R12A31H
2020 2019
20205 20194
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET T ARETT

Trade receivables (a) H 5 IEWRIA )

— Related parties (Note 40(b)) — @77 (MI5E40(b)) 3,164 487
— Third parties —%¥=7 34,396 45,080

37,560 45,567
Less: allowance for impairment W RERE (1,726) (2,075)
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REMBBRME

26 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued)

As at 31 December

M12A31H
2020 2019
20204 20194
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR® T ARETT
35,834 43,492
Other receivables H A B
— Note receivables — KRR 2,010 -
— Amounts due from related parties (Note — — JEUBFHE
40(b)) (MfzE40(b)) 1,175,714 1,819,170
— Amounts due from non-controlling — FEUR SR I i 25 SRR
interests 3,392,404 702,225
— Amounts due from third parties — B E=FIE 3,563 8,010
- Deposits for land auction — B E 305,340 210,210
— Construction deposits —BHERE 87,582 73,121
~ Amounts due from governments for — PR BT 2 7 B 8
amounts paid on behalf 69,828 100,628
— Receivables arising from disposals of —HEMBAREEMEI
subsidiaries TRIE - 5,100
- Others — Hh 101,719 57,226
5,138,160 2,975,690
Less: allowance for impairment B RERE (22,613) (35,256)
5,115,547 2,940,434
Prepayments TEfIFRIE
— For acquisitions of land — U T 1,003,629 47,478
— For construction costs and construction — — FLIERERACAR M B SR A L
materials 76,568 23,920
~ For value-added and other taxes —phRER R EM IR 490,074 886,742
- Others —BLEA - 7,237
1,570,271 965,377
Total trade and other receivables BB 5 K H b R GRIA 6,721,652 3,949,303




26 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued)

(a)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M mRME

Trade receivables mainly arise from sales of properties
and provision of construction services and are settled in
accordance with the terms stipulated in the sales contracts.

The aging analysis of trade receivables based on invoice

date was as follows:

(a)

BHRIGATERAHEMERIEMHE

ARERBZERARAT - —ZT-TFFH

26 EZRHEMEBEWREGE)

SR BRBHE A QR LRGSR -

B o RWFIRRER A2 REDITIAT :

As at 31 December

M12H31H
2020 2019
20204 20194F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T ARETTT
Within 90 days 90K 18,031 16,674
Over 90 days and within 180 days HBIBAIOKIBTE180RA 1,051 9,627
Over 180 days and within 365 days iR 180K I1BFEI65K 3,210 1,223
Over 365 days HBiE365K 15,268 18,043
37,560 45,567

The Group applies the simplified approach to provide for
expected credit losses prescribed by HKFRS 9. Impairment
losses are recognised in profit or loss within losses of
impairment on financial and contract assets. Subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited
against the same line item. See Note 3.1.2 for information
about impairment losses.

AEEIRE B H IS E RS oM KA LA
REMEEEERE - BEBENBSR TSR
REMNEEREBEAER - ERKEZATH
HHFER R —HE TARK - BREREBENE

K

== Sa

e

B sE3.1.2 ©
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REMBBRME

26 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued) 26

(b)  The Group's trade receivables were all denominated in RMB,
unsecured, repayable in accordance with terms stipulated
in the sales contracts and interest-free.

The Group's other receivables were all denominated in RMB,
unsecured, repayable on demand and interest-free.

(c) Due to the short-term nature of the current receivables,
their carrying amount is considered to be close to their fair
value.

27 PREPAID INCOME TAX 27

Prepaid income tax represented amounts prepaid to tax bureau on
corporate income tax on profit and LAT for pre-sales of properties.

B 5% &k HAREWRE ()

b) AEENEZERFEIAAREE -
BEERABREBEHEESOATHIRRER
&%/%\ °

AEBENEMERFBBAAREE @ £
HMABREREENRE -

(© MBRAHAERKFENEREE - HREE
BIERFEFR R AERL -

BNFRER

BNAEHREREYEMARERENONEZ
EMERH R LIZERNSEE -

28 CASH AND BANK DEPOSITS 28 BHERBITEFER
As at 31 December
M12H31H
2020 2019
20204 2019%F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T ARETIT
Cash and bank deposits (a) R& RIRITIFHK Q) 5,660,333 4,095,171
Less: Restricted cash (b) R ZEREIIERE0) (2,196,977) (1,878,260)
Term deposits (c) TEHIFH(0) (567) (2,750)
Cash and cash equivalent B MRS EEY 3,462,789 2,214,161
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R B RRMEE

28 CASH AND BANK DEPOSITS (Continued) 28 RERBITERGER)

(@) Cash and bank deposits were denominated in RMB, US @ IREXRBIEAXDANAARE « ETKB
dollars and Hong Kong dollars respectively. The carrying TETE c Be RRITFEHREEENATIE
amounts of cash and bank deposits are denominated in the BEHE -
following currencies:

As at 31 December
M12A31H
2020 2019
20204 20194
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T T ARETT
Denominated AR EEEHE
- RMB —UARBHE 5,585,696 4,093,030
- HKD —BTTEHE 41,552 2,141
- UsD —AFETTEHE 33,085 -
5,660,333 4,095,171
(b)  The Group's restricted cash comprised of the following: (b) AEBEMZREFIRSHATSIEMAK
As at 31 December
M12A31H
2020 2019
20205 2019%F
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET T ARETTT
Deposits pledged for bank and other  &IR7T K HAb &M E H K
borrowings e 173,116 155,396
Supervision accounts for construction AERTEEWHERENEE
of pre-sold properties R 1,559,692 1,277,868
Guarantee deposits for construction 7 LIRE S 260,610 253,043
Supervision accounts for mortgage BIEBEREENEERR
guarantee 203,559 191,953
2,196,977 1,878,260
() These bank deposits were with original maturity of over (© ZEBRTHEAXRREBEABBE=MEA R

three months. The effective interest rate of these deposits
as at 31 December 2020 was 1.50% per annum (2019: 1.60%

per annum).

2020F12A318 » ZEGEZNERERX
51.50%(2019%F : FF1.60%) °
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29 SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE PREMIUM 29 BARRGRE

Number of Equivalent

ordinary  nominal value
shares of of ordinary Share
US$0.01 each share premium

SRE{E0.01 ZER
ETHEER opiE)d B 3
B HE BE
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBFT ARETTT

Issued: BT

Balance as at 1 January 2019 201951 A1 2 &8 1 - =
Share issued BE1TRHR 1 = =
Effect from subdivision BB E 198 = =
Share issued upon completion of subdivision ~ RHFATEA & 1T 727,073 51 =
Share issued pursuant to share incentive plan  RIERR (D BT B2 TR IR (D 272,727 19 508442
Balance as at 31 December 2019 201912 A31 B 2 %k 1,000,000 70 508,442
Balance as at 1 January 2020 20201 A1 8 2 gk 1,000,000 70 508,442
Share issued in Public Offering (b) NABEEETRH D) 333,400,000 21,806 1,277,753
Share issuance costs for Public Offering (c) NABEZRMDEITRA(Q) = - (42,952)
Capitalisation Issue (d) EARETd) 999,000,000 65,340 (65,340)
Balance as at 31 December 2020 FR20205F 12 A31 B 2 &gk 1,333,400,000 87,216 1,677,903

(a)

The Company’s shareholders passed a written resolution on
20 November 2020 that the authorised share capital of the
Company was increased from US$50,000 to US$50,000,000
by the creation of an additional 4,995,000,000 shares of a
par value of US$0.01 each.

On 11 December 2020, upon its listing on The Hong Kong
Stock Exchange Limited, the Company issued 333,400,000
new shares with par value US$0.01 each at HK$4.56 per
share for a total cash consideration of HK$1,520,304,000
(equivalent to approximately RMB1,299,559,000). The
corresponding share capital amount was approximately
RMB21,806,000 and share premium arising from the issuance
was approximately RMB1,277,753,000.

The share issuance costs paid and payable mainly include
share underwriting commissions, lawyers' fees, reporting
accountants’ fee and other related costs, which were
incremental costs directly attributable to the issuance of
the new shares. These costs amounting to RMB42,952,000
were treated as a deduction against the share premium
arising from the issuance.

(a)

ANABPRRA2020611 B20H BB —HE
ERZR - MBEREREEIEITH
4,995,000,00008 810 #ANRRLEERAA
50,000 7T 250,000,000 7T °

MR2020F 12 A1TBEBEBBERZER
ANaEl EmE - ARRIRERAS6ETETT
333,400,0000% F AR E1H0.01 ETTHIFTAR + IR
% #R1E51,520,304,00058 7T (FE R LA
R ¥1,299,559,0007T ) ° EERI IR AN & R LY
A ANREE21,806,0007T + BEITE £ MR G
BAHAREE,277,753,0007T °

ENREMBROBITIRAEZEZBERG R
HAE - ZMB - ARSFAE RHEMAE
AR - WERBITHREEELNILE
RN o ZZERAS A R #42,952,00070# R AE
BITAEARG S ERRE -
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RE M BEmRME
29 SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE PREMIUM 29 RAERRKRGRE(R)
(Continued)
(d)  Following the Public Offering on 11 December 2020, the d) M20200F2H1ITBAREE®R  &AAQ
Company capitalised an amount of RMB65,340,000 standing ARBARKEEREREREERRHR
to the credit of the share premium account of the Company 999,000,000 B {7 + PAIR A 7 2 & A AT 5%
("Capitalisation Issue”), by applying such sum in paying up RABIRELHIETREETARRRE
in full at par 999,000,000 shares for issue and allotment to IRER - BRMEEARBRODBERNERS
the existing shareholders of the Company before Public #ARK65,3400007T ([ EAMELETT]) -
Offering in proportional to their respective shareholdings
in the Company.
30 OTHER RESERVES 30 Hftif#fE
Share-based
Capital Statutory compensation
reserve reserve reserve Others Total
DR
g% EE REBRN
1] e M Hif )
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARETL  ARBTR  ARETL  ARETRE  ARETR

As at 1 January 2019 R20191A1R 110,249 249,390 34,085 (8959) 384,765
Employee share schemes - value of EERMGE-EERHE
employee services (c) ELEL) - - 2724 - 2724
Capital injection from shareholders of RREREEER)
the Company (a) 265,548 - - - 265,548
Disposals of interests in a subsidiary without loss AR EEHIENBRTHE
of control WEARER - - - 645 645
Acquisitions of additional interests in subsidiaries  WEBMIB A AIEIMER - - - (24509) (24509
Appropriation of statutory reserves (b) BEETRHED - 109,272 - - 109,272
As at 31 December 2019 R2019512831R 375,797 358,602 56,809 (32823) 758445
As at 1 January 2020 R202061A1R 375,797 358,662 56,809 (32,823) 758,445
Employee share schemes - value of EERNGE-EERE
employee services (c) ELEL) - - 28,405 - 28,405
Appropriation of statutory reserves (b) BREERED - 338,132 - = 338,132
Contribution from a fellow subsidiary (d) EELEGES () - = = 22,606 22,606
As at 31 December 2020 R2020512831R 375,797 696,794 85,214 (10,217) 1,147,588
(@) Capital reserve (a) BXRfFEE
During the year ended 31 December 2019, Dynasty Cook #HZ=2019F12A31HIEFE * Dynasty Cook
furtherinjected capital in cash amounting to RMB265,548,000 MAKEELE-—FPRSEE  REAA

in total to the Group. R #265,548,0007T ©
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30 OTHER RESERVES (Continued)

(b)

Statutory reserve

Group’s entities in PRC are required to transfer 10% of
their profit after taxation calculated under PRC accounting
rules and regulations to the statutory reserve fund, until
the accumulated total of the fund reaches 50% of their
registered capital. The statutory reserve fund can only be
used, upon approval by the relevant authority, to offset
losses carried forward from previous years or to increase

capital of the respective companies.

Share-based compensation plan

In January 2018, the Group set up a share incentive scheme
for the purpose of retaining talent, promoting the long-term
sustainable development of the Group. Under the share
incentive scheme, certain directors and senior management
(the “Grantees”) have a right to subscribe the equity interests
of Dynasty Cook, the Company’s parent company, or of
the Company at a predetermined subscription price (the
“Restricted Shares”). These Restricted Shares are limited
to be transferred or used in pledge within 4 years after
the date of the subscription of the Restricted Shares (the
"Restricted Period”). If a Grantee ceases to be employed by
the Group within the Restricted Period, the Grantees has
to sell the Restricted Shares to designated persons at its

original subscription price.

This share incentive scheme is accounted for as an equity-
settled share-based compensation plan under HKFRS 2
“Share Based Payment”.

The fair value of Restricted Shares at the grant date, were
primarily determined by reference to the fair value of the
equity interest of Xiamen Datang, the principal holding
company of the Group's operating subsidiaries.
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30 OTHER RESERVES (Continued)

(0)

Share-based compensation plan (Continued)
Under the share incentive scheme (as amended and
supplemented in 2018), the total Restricted Shares of the
Company to be issued to the Grantees represented 27.27%
of the Company's share capital. On 5 November 2019, the
Grantees subscribed and the Company issued 222,121 shares
under this scheme at a total consideration of US$58,835,000
(equivalent to RMB414,113,000).

As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, the Group estimates that
all of the Grantees will stay within the Group throughout
the Restricted Period for the determination of the amount
of share-based compensation expenses.

For the years ended 31 December 2020, expenses arising
from share-based payment transactions were RMB28,405,000
(2019: RMB22,724,000).

Contributions from a fellow subsidiary

On 30 June 2020, Dynasty Cook, a fellow subsidiary, which
is also the former parent company of Xiamen Datang,
entered into an agreement with Xiamen Datang, pursuant
to which a dividend payable to Dynasty Cook amounting
to RMB12,619,000, which was declared by Xiamen Datang
before 2015, was waived and therefore recognised in other

reserves.

On 30 June 2020, Xiamen Wanlian Real Estate Company
Limited, an associate of the Group with 40% and 60% equity
interest held by Xiamen Datang and Dynasty Cook, a fellow
subsidiary, was liquidated. At the same date, Dynasty Cook
and Xiamen Datang entered into an agreement pursuant to
which Dynasty Cook contributed its share of Xiamen Wanlian
Real Estate Company Limited’s surplus cash amounting to
RMB13,316,000 to Xiamen Datang, the post-tax amount of
RMB9,987,000 was therefore recognised in other reserves.
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FEMBBRHE
31 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 31 BESREMENKIEA
As at 31 December
M12A31H

2020 2019
20205 2019%
RMB'000 RMB000
AR¥ET R ARETT

Trade payables (a) B 5 IENFIE )
~ Related parties (Note 40(b)) — @7 (FIE40(b) 24,002 24,903
~ Third parties - =] 3,241,716 2,950,751
- Notes payable —“EREE 98,489 73,048
3,364,207 3,048,702
Amounts due to related parties (Note 40(b)) Fﬁ@ﬁﬂ? A (WEHO b)) 6,746,015 2,976,205
Amounts due to non-controlling interests (b) HiHWHxF @A 2,312,216 2,266,778
Amounts due to third parties (b) Jr BB =N (b) 185,985 185,985
Dividend payable e RS - 12,619
Construction guarantee deposits received Euﬁlﬁml1 RiE® 368,170 196,737
Accrued payroll EETE 139,924 132,231
Other taxes payables HAth T HH IR 1,006,524 1,487,262
Interest payables FERTRIE 39,747 41,366
Consideration payable for acquisition of a joint venture  YEEA S EREMNA(E - 16,800
Others Hit 418,867 345,301
11,217,448 7,661,284
14,581,655 10,709,986
(@)  The aging analysis of the trade payables based on invoice @ EIENFEBEREZEHZRESITOT:

date is as follows:

As at 31 December
M128318
2020 2019
20205 20194F
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETRT AREFIT

Within 90 days KA 2,379,388 2,477,667
Over 90 days and within 180 days HBIBIORIEE 180K A 309,780 51,036
Over 180 days and within 365 days HBiB180KBEI65RA 271,922 191,134
Over 365 days BiB365K 403,117 328,865
3,364,207 3,048,702
(b)  Amounts due to non-controlling interests and third parties b) ENFERERRE=FRBREEAE
are unsecured, repayable on demand, denominated in RMB BREREE  UARKETERLEE °

and interest-free.
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32 BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS

ARERBZERARAT - —ZT-TFFH

32 RITREMER

As at 31 December

M12HA31H

2020 2019
20204 20195
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T T ARETT

Non-current FEENEA
Bank borrowings — secured/qguaranteed RITIER—BHR R 6,439,838 4,381,845
Other borrowings - secured/quaranteed (a) HiE R —EEE ERE) 3,459,300 2,417,550
9,899,138 6,799,395
Less: current portion of non-current borrowings R JERNERE SR BN ER R (2,251,675) (1,330,713)
7,647,463 5,468,682

Current BN &

Bank borrowings — secured/qguaranteed RITIER B HRER 100,000 19,000
Other borrowings — secured/quaranteed (a) HfE R -6 EAE ERE) 315,000 952,050
Current portion of non-current borrowings JERNER B BN EREE 2,251,675 1,330,713
2,666,675 2,301,763
Total bank and other borrowings R1T R E A AR 10,314,138 7,770,445

(@)  Certain subsidiaries in the PRC have entered into funding
arrangements with trust companies, securities companies
and assets management companies, pursuant to which
these financial institutions raised funds and provided the
proceeds, directly or through entrusted banks, to the Group.
Certain equity interests of subsidiaries were held in the name
of the financial institutions as collateral for which the Group
is obligated to repurchase at predetermined prices. These
bank and other borrowings bear fixed or floating interest
rates and have fixed repayment terms.

hEMNETHBARIEEERERR -
RANLEBEEERAANVLESRY @ &
It ZESRBBERICEBRER
BYKAERBEANEHE - ZEH B
RANETHREAZESBEBHRER
B ERASEREEREEEREDN
HIFY o ZFRT R EAS
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REMBBRME

32 BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS (Continued)

32 RITRHEMERE)

(b)  Bank and other borrowings were secured by the following () MITREMERETIREERATEHE

assets with book value of:

B EFIER

As at 31 December
®W12A31H

2020
20205
RMB'000
ARET

Land cost included in properties under development and T3 A (BIEERMERIZELEN

2019
20194
RMB'000
ARETT

completed properties held for sale BRINE) 11,122,644 10,316,160
Investment properties REME 938,010 1,009,610
Property, plant and equipment mE - BiE R E 121,293 135,778
Restricted cash XBRHERS 173,116 155,396
Right-of-use assets TREEE 10,600 11,227
12,365,663 11,628,171

() As at 31 December 2020, the Group's bank and other (© M2020F12HA31B AEBE AR

borrowings of RMB2,433,620,000, were guaranteed by Mr.
Wu Di, a director and shareholder of the Company (2019:
RMB3,437,945,000 guaranteed by Fuxin Group Co., Ltd, or
Mr. Wu Di, or jointly guaranteed by Fuxin Group Co., Ltd

2,433,620,0007C I #R1T R E AL fE XA A &)
BEERRFRmEERBER(2019F : A
R¥3,437,9450007c AR E BB R A A5k
REEFSABEEEGRARI KRR M

and Mr. Wu Di). A HFERHEIER) o
(d) The Group's bank and other borrowings were repayable as d) AEEMRTREMEFERATHREE
follows: B
As at 31 December
M12H31H
2020 2019
20205 20195
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ETT AREBTT
Within 1 year 14E AR 2,666,675 2,301,763
Between 1 and 2 years 1226 4,310,213 2,820,932
Between 2 and 5 years 2E85F 3,122,000 2,527,750
Over 5 years SEL 215,250 120,000
10,314,138 7,770,445
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mEMBRERME

32 BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS (Continued) 32 BITRHEMMER(E)

(e)  The exposure of bank and other borrowings to interest-rate (e) #R1TRE M{EFAEBH =2 b By R R A
changes and the contractual repricing dates or maturity date MEXHNENIEBHKEBE(UAREES
whichever is earlier are as follows: VAR -

As at 31 December
R12831H
2020 2019
20204 2019%F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARETTT

At variable rate borrowings AIEREER 5,999,368 4,196,544

Repricing dates: ENEEAR

- Within 6 months —6fE A AR 547,500 641,500

- Between 6 and 12 months —62 1218 A 743,800 1,550,263

- Between 1 and 5 years —1E5%F 3,023,470 1,382,138
10,314,138 7,770,445

()  The weighted average effective interest rates were as f  IEFHERMNEAT
follows:

As at 31 December

M12H31H
2020 2019
2020 20195
Bank borrowings (%) RITET (%) 6.36% 6.82%
Other borrowings (%) H M fETR00) 10.79% 9.83%
All bank and other borrowings (%) TG #R47 R EL A TR (%) 8.27% 8.22%
(@  The fair value of bank and other borrowings approximate (9 HREFRFZEBIWAEKN @ WRIT R EALE
their carrying amount, as the impact of discounting is not FEO AR EHEERABERES -
significant.
(h) Al of the Group’s bank and other borrowings are (h AEEFAARTREAMEREUAREE

denominated in RMB. ' -
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REMBBRME

33 LEASE LIABILITIES

(@) Amounts recognised in the consolidated balance

sheets

33 HEEE
() MEEEEBBRTEINESEE

Lease of office properties for operation

HERRIMEAES

As at 31 December
®W12A31H

2020 2019
20204 20194
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR%ETR ARETT

- Current — &) 9,256 1,749
- Non-current —JERE 133,954 1,372
143,210 3,121

(b) Amounts presented in the consolidated statement

of cash flows

e

(b) #&

BRERERANZIINEHE

Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31HLEEE

2020 2019
20205 20194

RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T R ARETT
Included in cash flows from financing BEEREEHRENE
activities
Cash outflow for lease payments MENZESRD 15,346 2,281
Included in cash flows from operating BREEEEEHREeNE
activities
Payment of short-term leases ARSI 2,128 1,695




33 LEASE LIABILITIES (Continued)

(0)

ARERBZERARAT - —ZT-TFFH

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A maturity analysis of lease liabilities is shown in the table
below:

()

e MR

33 HESE(HE)

HEABEHE ST TRAT -

As at 31 December
M12A31H
2020 2019
20205 20194
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARBTT

Minimum lease payments due

RTFBEZBANSRERE SR

— Within 1 year — 1A 21,075 2,221
— Between 1 and 2 years —1E:24F 25,544 954
- Between 2 and 5 years — 2E5F 81,475 884
— Later than 5 years — 55 72,470 241
200,564 4,300
Less: future finance charges B RRBEER (57,354) (1,179)
Present value of lease liabilities MEBELRE 143,210 3,121

The Group leases various properties to operate its businesses
and the liabilities of these lease were measured at net
present value of the future lease payments during the lease
terms. The lease contracts do not include renewal option or
termination option and no extension options are included
in such property leases across the Group.

These lease liabilities were measured at the present value of
the remaining lease payments, discounted using the lessee’s
incremental borrowing rate applied to lease liabilities was
9%.

AEEHESEDELLERYK  &FH
EaERERANRRBEEMNFFRET
B -MHEANIERSEBEBIRILE -
BRSEERMNERNEHEEY BHAL
g o

ZEHERBERAK THENRORET
B EREANEERENAEALER
TR I%ESTAEIR o
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REMBBRME

34 DEFERRED INCOME TAX ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

The analysis of deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities is

as follows:

34 RERBHEERER

ERERAEENREEHAABEITOT

As at 31 December
M12831H
2020 2019

20204 20194F
RMB’000 RMB’'000
ARET T ARET T
Deferred tax assets: EEBIBEE
— Deferred tax asset to be recovered after — 13N 218 A 12 UL Bl YRR
more than 12 months HEE 697,453 562,279
- Deferred tax asset to be recovered —#&FN 218 B R UL B &R IE R
within 12 months HEE 106,739 94,626
804,192 656,905
Deferred tax liabilities: EEBIREE
— Deferred tax liability to be recovered after — A1 218 A 18 Y B B IR RE AR
more than 12 months HEE (1,041,269) (1,122,209)
- Deferred tax liability to be recovered — 11 24 A Y [ Y R RE AR
within 12 months HEE (175,957) (81,690)
(1,217,226) (1,203,899)
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34 DEFERREDINCOME TAX ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

(Continued)

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities:

The movement in deferred income tax assets and liabilities

during the year ended 31 December 2020, without taking into

ARERBZERARAT - —ZT-TFFH

34 RERBHEERER(R)

EEFSHEERAR :

HZE2020F12A31BLEFE  BREMBHREER
BEZFCRFTEE B AR A& RIE

consideration the offsetting of balances within the same tax )
jurisdiction, is as follows:
Write-down
of properties
under
Impairment of  development Recognition of
financial assets and completed construction  Amortisation
and properties Tax Accrued revenue  of right-of-use
contractassets  held for sale losses LAT over time assets Total DTA
SHEE BEMIER
RAKEE RELENE BE EiibE  MRERIN  GEREEE  EEASH
HE RINEHEE i & BElE B BEMH
RMB000 RMVB000 RMBO000 RMBO000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000
ARETT  ARETR  ARETn  ARETR  ARETR  ARETT  ARETR
Asat 1 January 2019 R2019E151H 20819 49513 377434 61622 3729 A1 513348
Credited/(charged) to profitorloss — 3FA/ (HIRE) B& (692) 31933 10610 116,150 (3729 (44 154,228
Disposals of subsidiaries EMBAH (7652 - 2883) (136) - - (10671)
As at 31 December 2019 R2019F12531H 12475 81,446 385,161 177,636 - 187 656,905
Asat 1 January 2020 R202051A18 12475 81446 385,161 177,636 - 187 656,905
(Charged)/credited to profit or loss (ka) /HAER (1,980) - 135,345 17943 - 870 152,178
Disposals of subsidiaries HEMBAR 5) - (4886) - - - [4891)
As at 31 December 2020 R2020E12531H 10,490 81,446 515,620 195,579 - 1,057 804,192

241



242 DATANG GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED - Annual Report 2020

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M mRME

34 DEFERRED INCOME TAX ASSETS AND LIABILITIES 34 EZFIEHEERAE(E)

(Continued)
Recognition of  Revaluation Capitalisation ~ Revaluation
construction  resulted from  Revaluation ~ Capitalisation ~of costsfor ~ of financial
revenue over business ~ of investment  of interests obtaining assets
time  combinations properties expenses contracts at FVTPL Total DTL
BAAETA
BREEIN  ERAHER HEHxE REAHNR BENERE  EEFE
BElE WEf RENEEH A FEAL EEf B4
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMBI000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT  ARETT  ARETR  ARETR  ARET  ARETR  ARETR
As at 1 January 2019 R2019F141H (79,255) (870949) (79,646) (47,692) (50,524) (11933) (1,139,999
(Charged)/credited to profit or loss (Nk8) /HAER (74073) 59344 (16010) (21,709 (5404) (6,054) (63.900)
As at 31 December 2019 120195128318 (153328) (811,605) (95,656) (69395) (5592 (17987 (12038%9)
As at 1 January 2020 R202051R18 (153328) (811,609) (95,656) (69,395) (55.928) (17.987) (1,203,899)
(Charged)/credited profit or loss (k&) /AER (36,651) 97411 (17922) (29,286) (22621) (4,259) (13327)
As at 31 December 2020 R2020E12531H (189,979) (714,194) (113,578) (98,681) (78,549) (22,245) (1,217,226)
As at 31 December 2020, the Group did not recognise deferred R2020F 128318 ASEBUTEFARK
income tax assets of RMB43,000 (2019: RMB417,000) in respect 172,0007T( 20194 : AR#¥1,668,0007T ) Ky 1B &
of tax losses of RMB172,000 (2019: RMB1,668,000). Tax losses of BREREE ST & E AR ¥43,0007T (20195 :
Group companies operated in the PRC could be carried forward AR®417,00070) - R BIEE R AEE QTR

for a maximum of five years. MIEEER RIS HE -
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mEMBRERME

35 NOTESTO CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTOFCASH 35 #ZEalRE&RERME

FLOWS
(@) The reconciliation of profit before income tax to (@) BRFTBFANGER ELZ (FTA) s
cash (used in)/generated from operation I8 & B EBR
Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31BLEE
2020 2019
20205 2019
RMB'000 RMB’000
ARET T ARETT
Profit before income tax FRGTATE 1,715,655 1,407,864
Adjustments for: THIBEZHE
~ Depreciation of property, plant and - WE BERRERE (Mi7)
equipment (Note 7) 82,550 82,842
~ Amortisation of intangible assets (Note 7) - EWRESE (MW7) 6,533 4,681
~ Depreciation of right-of-use assets (Note 7) - FREAENE (MW7) 13,911 2418
— Net reversal of impairment losses for financialand ~ — £EIRANEENEBERLFE
contract assets (7,918) (2,858)
~ Share-based compensation — R BEREGEH 28,405 22,724
— Provision of write-down for properties under - AERYERBELENERTIY
development and completed properties held for sale SRRt - 131,120
- Losses/(gains) on disposals of property, plantand ~ — HENE « BERRENER/
equipment (Kz) 778 (2,642)
~ losses on disposal of investment properties - HERENMENERE 5419 -

~ Fair value gains on investment properties (Note 11) BEMEAAEYE (1) (47,638) (42,205)
- Fair value and revaluation gains on financial assets at — ZAR B ABENEBEERA

FVTPL (Note 11) ERERYE (FEn) (17,035) (24.217)
— Share of results of investments in joint ventures and  — DMAERA B EREEARNRE

assoclates ZEE 45,730 (8,860)
~ Finance costs, net (Note 12) - BERAFE (M:2) 19,575 2927
~ Losses/(qains) on disposals of subsidiaries (Note 11)  — HEMBRARMNER,/ ()

(FaE11) 5,434 (59,286)

- Loss on de-registration of an associate - BEARTHEENER 2,099 -
Changes in working capital: HEESH
— Properties under development and completed - RERNERBELENCZRIY

properties held for sale ¥ (538,005) (966,395)
— Prepayments for acquisition of land use rights — BB ERENE (956,151) -
~ Trade and other receivables - BShEMERGUE (1,358,793) (892,976)
- Trade and other payables - BHRAEMENTR 1,797,353 3,956,289
— Contract assets and contract costs - RWEERAHMK (159,998) 95264
- Contract liabilities - AWAk (1,578,850) 1,794,983
- Restricted cash - XBHRS (300,997) (930,390)

(1,241,943) 4,591,283
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35 NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF 35 RERERERMZE(E)
CASH FLOWS (Continued)
(b) The reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing (b) MEEBELENHAGEHRNOT
activities is as follows:
Amounts due
to related
parties Amounts
Bank and (excluding due to non-
other joint ventures Lease Dividend controlling
borrowings and associates) liabilities payable interests Total
FEREBAR
B (FEES FEft
RITRHM EEERBE FER
B 2R) HEAR RS BRNE act
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT  ARETL ARETR ARETRE ARETT  ARETR
As at 1 January 2019 R20191A1R 8,460,454 1,376,868 3,167 12619 - 9,853,108
Cash flows BenE
- Outflow in financing activities ~ —Bi&EENR S
ik (690009)  (1,287,213) (2281) - - (1979503)
Non-cash movements FRe%
- Interest expenses -FIBHY - - 2235 - - 2235
As at 31 December 2019 R2019F12A31R 7,770,445 89,655 3121 12619 - 7875840
As at 1 January 2020 ®202061A1R 7,770,445 89,655 3121 12,619 - 7,875,840
Cash flows Bene
- Inflows/(outflows) of financing ~ — B EEBE LR
activities A/ () 2,543,693 (89,655) (15,346) - - 2,438,692
Non-cash movements Fheg
- Transfer to financing activities* ~ —EAZ|RYE - - - - 3,832,518 3,832,518
- Interest expenses -MERR - - 6,529 = = 6,529
~ Wavier of dividend payable -ERREE#E - - - (12,619) - (12,619)
- Debts capitalisation BEERL
(Note 38(c)) (Ft3%38(0) - - - - (1520302 (1,520302)
- Others (¢) —Eft(o - - 148,906 - - 148,906
As at 31 December 2020 202012 831R 10,314,138 - 143,210 - 2,312,216 12,769,564
* Following the change of capital structure of the Group * BEE EEREBEREEZS) T8

after Listing, certain amounts due to non-controlling

interests are regarded as financing activities in nature.

Non-cash financing transactions:

Non-cash financing activities during the year ended 31
December 2020 were disclosed in Note 30(d) and Note 38(c).

EZEd g SN

FREMERS

BERRARERRNE -

HE20200F 12831 B IEFEMNIFRERE
SEENIR R A MT5E30(d) K B EE38(c) °
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35 NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF

CASH FLOWS (Continued)

REMBBRME

35 ZERTREBRMEE)

(d) Inthe consolidated statement of cash flows, proceeds from (d) REFEEHeRERT  LEVE  BEX
EQ

disposals of property, plant and equipment comprise:

Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31HLEEE
2020 2019

20205 20194F
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBETR ARET T
Net book amount disposed of (Note 15) HEREVFE (HFE15) 5,552 28,826

(Loss)/gains on disposals (Note 11) HeEmSE (BE) ks
(M3E11) (778) 2,642
4,774 31,468

36 FINANCIAL GUARANTEES 36 HIBER

As at 31 December
M12A31H
2020 2019

20205 20194
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR AREFIT

Guarantees in respect of mortgage facilities for

REFRERBRENERGQ)

purchasers (a) 12,080,907 10,451,822
Guarantees provided for the bank and other HABECEMRITREMETIRE
borrowings of joint ventures (b) HIHELR(b) 941,000 253,000
Guarantees provided for the bank and other R A EIMIRTT R EMETIRE
borrowings of associates (b) MR (b) 4,467,341 3,156,640
Guarantees provided for the bank and other FhEL fh BRSSO ERTT A B RUR
borrowings of other related parties (b) HHER () = 225,000
17,489,248 14,086,462
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36 FINANCIAL GUARANTEES (Continued)

37

(a)

The
purchasers of the Group's property units and provided

Group has arranged bank financing for certain

guarantees to secure obligations of such purchasers for
repayments. Such guarantees terminate upon the earlier of
(i) issuance of the real estate ownership certificate which will
generally be available within an average period of two to
three years upon the completion of guarantee registration;
or (i) the satisfaction of mortgaged loan by the purchasers.

Amounts represented the maximum exposure of the
guarantees provided for the bank and other borrowings of
these parties.

The directors of the Company have assessed that the fair
values of guarantees provide to purchasers, joint ventures,
associates and other related parties as at initial recognition
were insignificant. The financial guarantees are also subject
to the impairment requirements of HKFRS 9, the identified

impairment loss was immaterial.

36 HIKER(E)

(a)

AEECDAAEENEELNETERR
PHRTTRLE - YAFHWERMERE TR
HER - BREERROBELIBEMAE
E(—RRTERERECEMNE=FMN T
FHAEEF) ¢ Hi) BRI RIBERHE
BERIE -

BEEAE AR T ORTREMERE
HOEROEARER

ARBEZEHNRERERNESL - A%
X - BEAR REMERE RENER
MAREELFE  YRB/EFERK © #f
BHERIVAE ST BB R EERIE o5RAY
BEMRE @ FERHREBRL TEX -

COMMITMENTS 37 AiE
Commitments for capital expenditures BN AR
As at 31 December
M12A31H
2020 2019
2020 20194
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETT
Contracted but not provided for EEENEES =
- Property, plant and equipment —Wz - BEREE 15,188 43,829
— Investment properties —REmE 24,692 51,242
39,880 95,071
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

38 TRANSACTIONS WITH NON-CONTROLLING
INTERESTS

(@) Disposals of interests in subsidiaries without change
of control
During the year ended 31 December 2020 and 2019, the
Group disposed of certain equity interests in subsidiaries to
third parties for a total cash consideration of RMB73,500,000
and RMB1,746,000 respectively. The differences between
the carrying amounts of equity interests disposed of and
consideration received are set out below.

R BREH
38 FEREERS
@ THREEHEHERT LEHELD

HYRE &

HZE2020F K2019F 12 A31BHIEFE - K
SELEWNBRARETHRETE=F &
REREDHIAARE73,500000T & AR
#1,746,0007T © B EEREEZIARE I
REZEEEEHNZEHIIMT

Year ended 31 December

BZ12A31BLEEE

2020 2019
20205 20194
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETIT

Total carrying amounts of equity interests

BB Rk m AR

disposed of (73,500) (1,701)
Less: total consideration received from R WEEE IR s e B R(E

non-controlling interests 73,500 1,746
Total difference recognised within equity PR ERNEERR - 645
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38 TRANSACTIONS WITH NON-CONTROLLING
INTERESTS (Continued)

(b) Subsidiaries with material non-controlling interests
Set out below is summarised financial information for a
subsidiary, Zhangzhou Tangyi Real Estate Development
Co., Ltd. that has non-controlling interests that is material
to the Group. The amounts disclosed for the subsidiary are

before inter-company eliminations.

38 FFERERRZ(E)

(b) BERFEREZNHELF
ATEINEBEHARNEET 5 BERNZIFE
BERNMBRAREMNERFEHERESR
RABNPHEERNRE - LM E R BMH
BeRARRIREHEATNESRA -

Summarised balance sheet BEBEXBE

As at

31 December 2020

120204

12A31H

RMB'000

AR¥T T

Current assets REEE 530,796
Current liabilities mEAE (369,682)
Current net assets REBEETE 161,114
Non-current assets SERBEE 1,160
Net assets EEFE 162,274
Carrying value of non-controlling interests kR REE 57,946
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e MBRERME

38 TRANSACTIONS WITH NON-CONTROLLING 38 FZEREZRZ(E)
INTERESTS (Continued)

(b) Subsidiaries with material non-controlling interests (b) BERFEZEREZNHNEBLAR(E)
(Continued)
Summarised statement of comprehensive income FEMRARHE
Year ended 31
December 2020
B Z2020%F
128318 LLEE
RMB'000
ARET T
Profit for the year FREA 146,394
Total comprehensive profit 2HEHNERE 146,394
Profit allocated to non-controlling interests DB E IS R ) 7 52,438
Summarised cash flows RERERE
Year ended 31
December 2020
BZ2020F
128318 LLEE
RMB'000
AR¥T T
Cash outflows from operating activities R EEIR SR (41,755)
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents RFeRESEE/YURDFE (41,755)
(c) Capitalisation of amounts due to non-controlling (0 BARMENFERERRIA
interests
During the year ended 31 December 2020, certain non BHZE2020F12831HIEFE - AEEET
wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Group increased their FE2EMB LR AIRKRRS OB ME T
registered capital in proportional to shareholders’ respective MEZR o Z5 HE Ty @B e IR K
ratio. A portion of the capital contributions was settled by THEE - BREUGEE St FRIET A
offsetting the amounts due to their shareholders, resulting AR¥1,520302,0007LE AL (2019%F : ) -

RMB1,520,302,000 of the amounts due to non-controlling
interests were capitalised (2019: Nil).
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39 DISPOSALS OF SUBSIDIARIES 39

The Group disposed of certain interests in a number of subsidiaries.
Summaries of the disposals are as follows:

HENRAR

BX

REBHEMEZRMB RTINS THZ - HE
BEEmT :

Year ended 31 December
BZ12R31BLEEE

2020 2019
20205 20194
RMB’000 RMB'000

ARET R ARETT
Disposals consideration HERE
~ Cash consideration received —-BUYERERE 154,210 66,416
- Outstanding and included in other receivables —REERGT AR MY A 28,450 -
— Fair value of investments in a joint venture -RENERERAE 5,500 -
— Fair value of investments in an associate - REERAREANE 78,690 -
266,850 66,416
Less: L
- Total net assets of subsidiaries disposed of —HENBRARKNFEELE 272,284 35,375
- Non-controlling interests disposed of —HERFEERER = (28,245)
Losses/(gains) on disposals HEBE,/ (k&) (5,434) 59,286
Cash proceeds from disposals, net of cash disposed of ~ HEMEHEE  MEHENRS
- Cash consideration received —-BYCReRE 154,210 66,416
~ Less: cash and cash equivalents in the subsidiaries ~ — il : HEMBREMRERREEED
disposed of (130) (28,837)
- Deferred cash considerations received -EYEERERE 5,100 108,231
- Net cash inflow on disposals -~ HEBRNRSRAFE 159,180 145,810
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e ISR M
40 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 40 BHAIRZ
Apart from those related party transactions disclosed elsewhere in BRiFEMBMEREMITOFAEBNEE RS
the consolidated financial statements, the following transactions Gh - AR R 515 B 5 LT o
were carried out with related parties.
(a) Transactions with related parties (@) EHEEBAINRS
Year ended 31 December
BENANALEE

2020 2019
20204 2019F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AREBTT

(i) Entities controlled by the Ultimate Controlling (i) SxAIZE AR BRI HIH E S

Shareholder

Rental income e A 3,480 6,351

Purchase of property management services REYMEEERS 62,125 40,542

Purchase of architectural design services RS IRTS 3,272 819

Purchase of advertising services REESRS 8,396 15,000

Purchase of materials BEEME - 2616
(il Key management of the Company (i) AARIEEEEE

Transfer equity interests in a project company #2218 B /A A iR #E = 36416

Sale of properties HEME 1,416 -
(iiiy Joint ventures (i) AEDE

Sales of materials MHEE 2,863 4,306

Provide project management services B R BERE 7,449 1,892
(iv) Associates (iv) Bt 2 A

Provide project management services REIEE EERS 62,105 5,582

Purchases of project management services REEEE B ARG 1,985 -

The prices for the above transactions were determined in Ll R 5B EEIR AR FE RS 155 M R HEE ©

accordance with the terms of the underlying agreements.
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40 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued) 40 BEAIRZ(E)

(b) Balances with related parties (b) EdEEES RVASER
As at 31 December
R12831H
2020 2019
2020%F 2019%F
RMB'000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARETF T

R RIEHIMERE -

(i) Entities controlled by the Ultimate

Controlling Shareholder, included in: .ﬁ]\ :
Trade receivables 2 ZEWGRIA 112 42
Trade payables 2 ZENHIR 18,085 24,903
Amounts due from related parties — [ T IE-EE 5
Non-trade - 1,456
Amounts due to related parties — Non-trade ~ JERH B S 7B —3EE 5 - 90,592
(i) Joint ventures, included in: (i) BERE FIA:
Trade receivables 2 ZENGRIE 1,403 326
Amounts due from related parties JFE U5 BE B 5 FUA 18,741 510,407
Amounts due to related parties JEE 1 B 75 R 1,877,660 545,832
(iii)  Associates, included in: (=N NS
Trade receivables 2 S E 1,649 119
Trade payables = FEN%’JE 5917 -
Amounts due from related parties fﬂﬁ(ﬁﬂﬂ 7 IE 1,156,973 1,307,307
Amounts due to related parties JE 15 BB HSE 77 50R 4,868,355 2,339,611
Amounts due from/to related parties are unsecured, FEUR, FE S RAESE 5 ZROB AR B /B BB E
repayable on demand, denominated in RMB and interest- NARKETEREE ©

free.
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Key management compensation

()

Compensations for key management including directors as

disclosed in Note 44 is set out below.

R B RRMEE

40 BEMAERZ (&)

FTEEEAEWNE
44 BErEERAB(BEES)DH

SEFIIT o

Year ended 31 December

BZE12A31BLEEE

41 DIVIDEND

2020 2019
2020 20194
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥TR ARETTT
Wages and salaries HeRER 8,487 8,365
Social insurance expenses e REAX 90 168
Housing benefits and other employee T E L R H A E B R A
benefits 250 215
Share-based compensation DARS 15 7 EE 1t ) 5 B 28,405 22,724
37,232 31,472
41 RE
2020 2019
2020 20194
RMB'000 RMB’000
AR¥ETR ARETT

Proposed final dividend of RMB11 cents (2019: Nil) ZEzR S R EIRS B =A% @A A

per ordinary share

E#119 (20194 - #)

149,990 -

Final dividend of RMB11 cents (equivalent to HK$13 cents) per
share in respect of the financial year ended 31 December 2020
(2019: Nil) has been proposed by the Board and is subject to
approval by the shareholders at the forthcoming Annual General
Meeting. The consolidated financial statements as at 31 December
2020 have not reflected this dividend payable.

EEe DB RNEZ2020F12831 8 IEBFBF
EHRBRESRARE N DGEER13EL)
(2019%F : &) - WARERERRAFAS LERF
IR ER T AIEER - Bl 2020612 H31 BAY4R
B BMERRL L EMBRE o
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42 NOTES TO THE COMPANY’S BALANCE SHEETS

42 AAREEERBRME

As at 31 December

®W12A31H
2020 2019
20205 20194
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
My AR¥T T AREETIT
Assets EE
Non-current assets ERBEE
Investments in subsidiaries (a) R E R EHRE @) 3,831,289 2,546,277
Current assets REEE
Cash and bank deposits & MIRITIFK 3,123 -
Prepayments SEUNE /O] = 7,217
3,123 7,217
Total assets EEH#AE 3,834,412 2,553,494
Equity ER
Share capital [N 29 87,216 70
Share premium B miE 29 1,677,903 508,442
Other reserves (b) HAbE M (0) 2,066,170 2,037,765
Accumulated losses (b) ZEHEE (D) (37,831) (28,660)
Total equity SRR 3,793,458 2,517,617
Current liabilities i A=Ri
Amounts due to subsidiaries FER B R RFRE 33,117 17,433
Other payables EAth FE S 3R 7,837 18,444
Total liabilities EERE 40,954 35,877
Total equity and liabilities ERREBEHEE 3,834,412 2,553,494
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42 NOTES TO THE COMPANY’S BALANCE SHEETS 42 ZAATEEBRBRME(E)
(Continued)

(@) Investments in subsidiaries (a) RHBARMNKRE
As at 31 December
M12H31H
2020 2019
20206 20194

RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARETT

Investment, at cost: BE - RK
- Deemed contribution —BRENEE 1,753,281 1,753,281
- Capital injection to a subsidiary —m—HENBAREE 2,030,667 774,060
— Share-based compensation — DARR 15 A B 1 69 357 47,341 18,936
3,831,289 2,546,277
Details of the principal subsidiaries are set out in Note 43. FEMBRARFFBHNMHTELS
(b) Other reserves and accumulated losses (b) EHEfFERZSEE
Other

reserves Accumulated losses

Hitnfie EG |

2020 2019

2020%F 20198

RMB000 RNIB000

ARETFT ARETT

At 1 January 2019 mR2019F1A18 - -
Deemed contribution (i) BIELE (1) 1,753,281 -
Capital contribution from shareholders (Note 30(a)) REBRROLE (FI:E300) 265,548 -
Share-based compensation to employees of subsidiaries JARR{% &R (B 1 7] 8 T &) FE 18,936 -
Loss for the year FRESR - (28,660)
At 31 December 2019 #2019 128318 2,037,765 (28,660)
At 1 January 2020 P202041 A1H 2,037,765 (28,660)
Share-based compensation to employees of subsidiaries SRR RS (FHE 1 7] 8 T &) EEN 28,405 -
Loss for the year 518 - (9,171)
At 31 December 2020 72020128318 2,066,170 (37,831)
()  Deemed contribution represented the excess of the () HRIELBEEARRARMKEBEFIAES
aggregate net asset value of Xiamen Datang Group B R & EFEREBLHN2019F AR
acquired by the Company over the nominal amount AMERNREBE BTG EE ) 5P

of share issued by the Company as consideration in B ©
2019.
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42 NOTES TO THE COMPANY’S BALANCE SHEETS
(Continued)

()  Amounts due to a subsidiary
As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, amounts due to
subsidiaries were all denominated in RMB. They were
unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand. Their
carrying amounts approximated fair values at 31 December
2020 and 2019.

(d) Other payables
As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, other payables were
denominated in RMB, unsecured, interest-free and repayable
on demand. Their carrying amount approximated fair value
at 31 December 2020 and 2019.

42 AAREEERBRMEGE)

()

B+ — BB A RFIE

20205 2019512 8318 - ENAHTBEA
AIFIBANAREE - EAREKR - £
B RAEREREEE - R20205F k20195
12A318 @ EEREEEARBEEE °

Hb B FRIE

20204 £ 20194F12 A318 - HAbfER K
BHHUARBE @ HAEER - 28K
AR B EE o 7202049 K 2019512 A
318 - EEREERAAEEE -
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43 KEAF

e MR

(@)  Particulars of the principal subsidiaries of the Group are set @ AEBEMNEEMBARGHEIEHIINT
out as below:

Place and Attributable equity interest of

date of Registered/issued  the Group as at 31 December  Principal
Company name incorporation and paid-up capital ~ AEBER12ABEERE  activities

FEREL T 2 R it/ BB 2020 2019
NEER A RERER 20205 019 FEEH
Directly held by the Company:
ARAEERR -
Dynasty Management International Limited ~ BVI, 19 June 2019 Us$100 100% 100%  Investment holding
REERBERARAF RERIAS  2019F6 10057t REER

A198
Datang Investment Limited Hong Kong, 30 January 2019 HKS11 100% 100%  Investment holding
RERE (BR) BRAA &%+ 201951308 18T REER
Indirectly held by the Company:
ARARRIERE -
Dynasty Development International Limited ~ Hong Kong, 27 June 2019 HK$100 100% 100%  Investment holding
REREERARLA &% - 2019568278 1007 REER
Xiamen Datang Real Estate Group Co,Ltd The PRC, 29 August 1997 US$524,239,400 100% 100%  Property development
EFAREEREEBARAT B - 199748298 524239400 T ELES
Nanning Huadu Real Estate Co,Ltd The PRC, 24 April 1995 RMB30,000,000 100% 100%  Property development
HEEHERERRLA MEl - 1995548 24A ABH30,0000007T LR
Xi'an Tangmei Real Estate Co,Ltd. The PRC, 17 July 2000 RMB12,000,000 100% 100%  Property development
BREXRHERRAT Pl - 2000578178 ARE120000007T MRF%
Xi'an Tangmen Real Estate Co, Ltd The PRC, 27 July 2000 RMB10,000,000 100% 100%  Property development
BREFREGERRAR HE - 2000577278 ARB10000,0007 MERE
Guangxi Datang Real Estate Co, Ltd The PRC, 3 September 2000 RMB50,000,000 100% 100%  Property development
ERAERHERRAT Ml - 200069438 AR 500000007 ELES
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43 SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 43 KB E (&)
(@)  Particulars of the principal subsidiaries of the Group are set @ AEENEEWBARFBEEHIIOT ((8)

out as below: (Continued)

Place and Attributable equity interest of
date of Registered/issued  the Group as at 31 December ~ Principal
Company name incorporation and paid-up capital ~~ AEERM2A31AEERE  activities
AR i /BT 2020 2019
RAER A RERES 2020F 019 FEXH
Xiamen Jingding Sports Culture The PRC, 26 April 2004 RMB311,998,081 100% 100%  Sports facilities
Development Co, Ltd. operation
EFRSBE X ERABRAA - 200454268 ARE3119980817 EBREER
Zhangzhou Xindi Real Estate Co,Ltd The PRC, 16 December 2005 RMB10,000,000 100% 100%  Property development
EMERERERRAT B+ 20055128 16H ARE100000007T L
Guangxi Xindi Investment Co,, Ltd. The PRC, 28 October 2009 RMB50,000,000 100% 100%  Property development
BREHREARAR Bl - 2009%10A28A AR 85000000070 L
Tianjin Haihui Real Estate Development Co,  The PRC, 18 January 2010 RMB 110,000,000 100% 100%  Property development
Ltd.
REBERHEREARAF el - 2010514188 ARB1100000007C LR
Tianjin Xinghuafu Real Estate Co, Ltd. The PRC, 24 August 2010 RMB 1,200,000,000 100% 100%  Property development
REEENERARATA - 2010F8A24A ARE1,200,000,0007C L
Zhongling Sports Industrial (Changtai) Co,, Ltd. The PRC, 21 January 2011 RMB20,000,000 90% 90%  Sports facilities
operation
hAREES (RR) ARDA B 2011415218 ARE200000007C EPRiEER
Zhangzhou Datang Real Estate Co,, Ltd. The PRC, 17 February 2012 RMB50,000,000 100% 100%  Property development
BNAEEHERRLA B - 2012428178 AR %50,000,0007C WRR%
Xiamen Dazu Real Estate Development Co,, Ltd.The PRC, 6 September 2012 RMB10,000,000 100% 100%  Property development
EMmAREHEREARALAT P& - 201269868 AR 100000007 L
Zhangzhou Tangmen Real Estate Co, Ltd. ~ The PRC, 31 July 2013 RMB10,000,000 100% 100%  Property development

ENEMRHEERDA B 2013578318 AEE10,000,0007C mERE
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(a)

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries of the Group are set (a)

out as below: (Continued)
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43 ME2R (&)

e MR

AEBWEZMBABFEERIWT - (8)

Place and Attributable equity interest of

date of Registered/issued the Group as at 31 December  Principal
Company name incorporation and paid-up capital ~ ARER12ANBEERE  activities

MR BER i/ o8 2020 2019
NEER A RERER 20205 019 FEEH
Guangxi Datang Shijia Investment Co,, Ltd. ~ The PRC, 4 December 2013 RMB50,000,000 100% 100%  Property development
BREABHRRARRAT RE 2013512848 ABRH50,0000007T ELES
Zhangzhou Tangzhuang Real Estate Co,, Ltd.  The PRC, 29 January 2014 RMB10,000,000 100% 100%  Property development
BMERERERR AT B - 2014518298 ARE100000007T EES
Guangxi Tangzhuang Investment Co,, Ltd. ~ The PRC, 19 November 2014 RMB100,000,000 100% 100%  Property development
EREHREARAF hE2014E11A19E ARE100,0000007T LR
Tianjin Datang Real Estate Development Co,  The PRC, 3 April 2015 RMB30,000,000 100% 100%  Property development

Ltd.
REXEEHEREARAA B - 2015F4A3H AR 300000007 ELES
Guangxi Gefusite Commercial The PRC, 8 May 2015 RMB2,000,000 100% 100%  Commercial property
Management Co, Ltd. operation
e e I B 201555 A8A ARH2,0000007T EEES Ay
Guangxi Tangmei Investment Co,, Ltd. The PRC, 30 July 2015 RMB34,000,000 100% 100%  Property development
BREXRARRLA B 2015574308 AR 340000007 EES
Changtai Datang Real Estate Co, Ltd. The PRC, 25 November 2015 RMB2,000,000 70% 70%  Property development
RRAERHERBR AT B - 2015511825 AR 20000007 LR
Xiamen Tangling Trade Co, Ltd. The PRC, 5 January 2016 RMB10,000,000 100% 100%  Wholesale of building
materials

EMmEAESRRAT RE 201651 A5H AR 100000007 BEMARE
Xiamen Tangmen Real Estate Co,, Ltd. The PRC, 13 January 2016 RMB20,000,000 100% 100%  Property development
EFEFRRERR AT E - 201651 A13A AR 200000007T ELES
Zhangzhou Tangsheng Real Estate Co, Ltd. ~ The PRC, 21 June 2016 RMB30,000,000 100% 100%  Property development
BMERERERRAT e 20165664218 ABRH30,0000007T ELEE
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43 SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 43 KMEBAT(E)

AEEWEZMBABFEERIWT : (8)

(@)  Particulars of the principal subsidiaries of the Group are set (a)

out as below: (Continued)

Place and Attributable equity interest of
date of Registered/issued the Group as at 31 December  Principal
Company name incorporation and paid-up capital ~ ARER12ANBEERE  activities
MR BER i/ o8 2020 2019
NEER A RERER 20205 019 FEEH
Guangxi Tangju Investment Co,, Ltd. The PRC, 25 July 2016 RMB50,000,000 70% 70%  Property development
EREZREARAA B - 2016%7R25H AR 500000007 L
Zhangzhou Tanghua Real Estate Co,, Ltd. The PRC, 3 March 2017 RMB30,000,000 100% 100%  Property development
BMEZERERRAT el - 201743438 ARH300000007 ELEES
Guangxi Tangning Investment Co,, Ltd. The PRC, 15 March 2017 RMB65,000,000 77% 77%  Property development
EREEREARAA B - 2017463A15H AR 650000007 LR
Xiamen Datang Commercial Management  The PRC, 30 March 2017 RMB1,000,000 100% 100%  Commercial property
Co, Ltd. operation
EMARELERARAA B 201783A308 AR%1,0000007T BENFER
Guangxi Tangyu Investment Co, Ltd. The PRC, 10 April 2017 RMB50,000,000 100% 100%  Property development
ERETRARRAA B - 201754A108 AR 500000007 LR
Zhangzhou Tangcheng Real Estate Co, Ltd.  The PRC, 12 June 2017 RMB50,000,000 67% 67%  Property development
BMEXERERRAT B - 201756A128 AR 500000007 LR
Guangxi Tangrun Investment Co, Ltd. The PRC, 31 December 2017 RMBB800,000,000 100% 100%  Property development
BRERRAARAA B 20175128318 ARM8000000007T L
Guangxi Tangsheng Investment Co, Ltd. The PRC, 13 November 2017 RMB100,000,000 40% 40%  Property development
ERERREARAA B 017511138 ARM1000000007T L
Zhangzhou Tangxing Real Estate The PRC, 20 November 2017 RMB30,000,000 80% 80%  Property development
Development Co,, Ltd.
ENEREHEREERAR B - 20174118208 AR 300000007 LR
Zhangzhou Tangyi Real Estate Development  The PRC, 8 April 2018 RMB30,000,000 64% 64%  Property development
Co, Ltd.
ENEREREREERAA B - 201854 A8H AR 300000007 ELES
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43 ME2R (&)

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries of the Group are set (a)

out as below: (Continued)

AEBWEZMBABFEERIWT - (8)

ARERBZERARAT - —ZT-TFFH

Place and Attributable equity interest of

date of Registered/issued the Group as at 31 December  Principal
Company name incorporation and paid-up capital ~ ARER12ANBEERE  activities

MR BER i/ o8 2020 2019
NEER A RERER 20205 019 FEEH
Guangxi Tangxun Investment Co,, Ltd. The PRC, 6 July 2018 RMB51,610,200 97% 97%  Property development
BRESRAARLA B 201857 A6A ARES1,6102007T ELES
Guangxi Tangrui Investment Co,, Ltd. The PRC, 14 June 2018 RMB2,000,000 100% 100%  Property development
ERERRAARLA E - 2018564148 AR %2,000,0007C EES
Guangxi Tangtong Investment Co, Ltd. The PRC, 24 August 2018 RMB87,720,000 56% 56%  Property development
ERERRAARAF B - 201858524 ABRH87,7200007T LR
Quanzhou Tangcheng Real Estate Co,, Ltd. ~ The PRC, 28 December 2017 RMB10,000,000 50% 50%  Property development
FNERERERRAT P& - 2017F12828R ARE100000007C MR
Quanzhou Tangmei Real Estate Co, Ltd. The PRC, 24 January 2018 RMB10,000,000 25% 25%  Property development
FMEXERERRAT PE - 201851 A24A ARE100000007T MR
Nanan Yuanchang Real Estate Co, Ltd. The PRC, 16 January 2018 RMB10,000,000 25% 25%  Property development
ARREEFARLA HE - 201851 A168 AR 100000007 ELES
Nanning Datang Congyue Hotel Co, Ltd. The PRC, 4 June 2018 RMB500,000 100% 100%  Hotel operation
REAEEHEEARLA PE - 2018F6A4H ARHS000007T BEEE
Hunan Xingrong Investment Co,, Ltd. The PRC, 22 July 2004 RMB50,000,000 100% 100%  Property development
HEERRERRRT i - 200467A 228 AR 500000007 L
Guangxi Tangming Investment Co,, Ltd. The PRC, 20 June 2019 RMB259,991,875 98% 98%  Property development
BRESREERAR B - 2019568208 AR¥259991875TC MER%
Fuzhou Tangmei Real Estate Co, Ltd. The PRC, 30 May 2019 RMB50,000,000 100% 100%  Property development
BNEXEHERBRAR P - 2019F5A308 ARH500000007T ELES
Guangxi Tanghui Investment Co,, Ltd. The PRC, 3 July 2019 RMB159,897,700 100% 100%  Property development
BREEREABRAT HE 201967 A3A ARH159897,7007C EES
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mEMBmRME
43 SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 43 KB E (&)
(@)  Particulars of the principal subsidiaries of the Group are set @ AEENEEWBARFBEEHIIOT ((8)

out as below: (Continued)

Place and Attributable equity interest of

date of Registered/issued the Group as at 31 December  Principal
Company name incorporation and paid-up capital ~ ARER12ANBEERE  activities

MR BER i/ o8 2020 2019
NEER A RERER 20205 019 FEEH
Liuzhou Tangmei Real Estate Co,, Ltd. The PRC, 17 July 2019 RMB255,000,000 80% 100%  Property development
INEXRHEREERAT B - 2019%7R178 AR 825500000070 L
Zhangzhou Tangrun Real Estate Co, Ltd. The PRC, 19 July 2019 RMB100,000,000 100% 100%  Property development
ENEERHEREARAT Bl - 20197A198 ARE100000,0007C L
Yueyang Tangyun Real Estate Co,, Ltd. The PRC, 9 August 2019 RMB50,000,000 100% 100%  Property development
ERESRHEREARAT E - 2019F8R9A ARE500000007T LR
Yueyang Tangsheng Real Estate Co,, Ltd. The PRC, 23 August 2019 RMB50,000,000 100% 100%  Property development
ERERRHEREERAT B - 20195823 AR %50,000,0007C WRR%
Zhangzhou Tangfeng Real Estate Co,, Ltd. ~ The PRC, 8 October 2019 RMB100,000,000 51% 100%  Property development
BNEERHEREERAT B - 2019%10A8H AB%100,000,0007C L
Chongging Tangmei Real Estate Co, Ltd. The PRC, 9 October 2019 RMB30,000,000 100% 100%  Property development
EREZRHEREARAA B+ 2019%10A9A AR 300000007 L
Guangxi Tangpeng Investment Co,, Ltd. The PRC, 24 October 2019 RMB200,000,000 25% 25%  Property development
EREBREARRA BE 201910848 AK2000000007T L
Zhangzhou Tangshun Real Estate Co, Ltd. ~ The PRC, 21 November 2019 RMB50,000,000 70% 100%  Property development
ENERERHEREERAT M - 20195118218 AR 500000007 L
Guangxi Beihai Tangrun Kuanggqui Real The PRC, 28 February 2020 RMB80,000,000 90% - Property development

Estate Co, Ltd.

BRI SEBRERNERRLR B - 2020%2A28H AR 800000007 L
Liuzhou Datang Real Estate Co,, Ltd. The PRC, 19 May 2020 RMB50,000,000 100% - Property development
HNRERHEREBRAT i - 202055A19A ARB50000,0007 ETES
Jiangsu Tangsheng Real Estate Co, Ltd, The PRC, 19 February 2020 RMB10,000,000 100% - Property development

IHEAEHEERLA el 2020627198 AEE10,000,0007C e



43 SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

(a)

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries of the Group are set (a)

out as below: (Continued)

Company name

LAER

ARERBZERARAT - —ZT-TFFH

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Place and

date of
incorporation
EMRILBYR
A&

43 ME2R (&)

e MR

AEBWEZMBABFEERIWT - (8)

Attributable equity interest of

Nantong Tangsheng Real Estate Co, Ltd.

HREBRENEARAA

Zhejiang Tangsheng Real Estate Co,, Ltd.

MIEEFHERRLA

Zhangzhou Longwen Tangguang Real
Estate Co, Ltd.

BMNEXEARHEREARAA

Yuyao Huachuan Real Estate Co, Ltd.
RUE) I EXARRA

Sichuan Tangmei Real Estate Co,, Ltd.
M IEEEHERRLT

Fuzhou Tangsheng Real Estate Co, Ltd.
BNEEEHEREARAR

Guangxi Tangxiang Investment Co,, Ltd.

RRERRARRAA

Ningbo Tangyao Real Estate Co,, Ltd.
EREREFARLA

Guangxi Tangrong Investment Co, Ltd.

BRERRAARLA

Guangxi Tangshun Investment Co, Ltd.

EREIRREARAF

Ningde Tangsheng Real Estate Co, Ltd.
ERERRNEREARAT

The PRC, 7 April 2020
il 202084 A7R

The PRC, 20 December 2019
Bl 2019127208

The PRC, 16 April 2020

el 2020%4 16

The PRC, 2 March 2020
hEl 202083828

The PRC, 19 June 2020
BB - 2020564198

The PRC, 1 July 2020
hEl - 202057818

The PRC, 14 July 2020
B - 202057 A14R

The PRC, 25 August 2020

e - 2020E8 258

The PRC, 3 September 2020

e - 202059730

The PRC, 30 October 2020
HE - 2020108308

The PRC, 23 November 2020
R 202011 F23H

Registered/issued the Group as at 31 December  Principal
and paid-up capital ~ AEER12A31BEMERE  activities
it/ B 2020 2019
RERER 20205 W9 TEER
RMB20,000,000 55% - Property development
AE#20000,0007C VEES
RMB50,000,000 100% 100%  Property development
AR#50000,0007C ETES
RMB800,000,000 50% - Property development
AR #800,000,0007C VELES
RMB10,000,000 51% - Property development
AR#10000,0007C ESES
RMB50,000,000 100% - Property development
ARH500000007 ESES
RMB351,000,000 80% - Property development
ARB351,0000007C mERE
RMB400,000,000 51% - Property development
AR B400000,0007C mERE
RMB100,000,000 100% - Property development
AE#100000,0007C VEES
RMB200,000,000 55.55% - Property development
AR #200000,0007C ESES
RMB50,000,000 100% - Property development
ARH5000000070 EES
RMB322,000,000 55% - Property development
AR3220000007 mERE
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e MR

43 SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

(@)  Particulars of the principal subsidiaries of the Group are set (a)

out as below: (Continued)

43 Bﬁ-E/_\j (IHE.)

AEENTEMBRRAFFRINAT : (F)

Place and Attributable equity interest of

date of Registered/issued the Group as at 31 December  Principal
Company name incorporation and paid-up capital ~ ARER12ANBEERE  activities

MR BER i/ o8 2020 2019
NEER A RERER 20205 019 FEEH
Guangxi Tangxi Investment Co,, Ltd. The PRC, 14 December 2020 RMB1,200,000,000 100% - Property development
FREERARRLA hE 2005128148 ARE12000000007T ELES
Guangxi Tanghe Investment Co,, Ltd. The PRC, 12 August 2020 RMB400,000,000 34% - Property development
RRENRAARLA E - 2020588128 AR %400,000,0007C EES

As the Group has the rights to variable returns from its involvement
with these companies, and has the ability to affect those returns
through its majority voting position of the board of directors of
these companies and the right to determine the budget, pricing

and promotion strategies of these companies, the Group has control

BRER > WREBEBENZEAR
&ZJE&FZEEZ% AIHEE -

T?EZ%%?%L'K% B BT

over these companies and these companies are thus accounted for

as subsidiaries of the Group.

HRAAERERZ2EZER T%?’T%Hﬁﬁ‘[ @i&

ETE&TEJ#

CAREEHZEARERAEGE  AZE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FEMBBRRHE
44 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS 44 EBEINRER
(a) Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments (a) ESRITBEAZME
The directors received emoluments from the Group for the BE2020F12H31BIEFE - EFHAE
year ended 31 December 2020 as follows: EESHMENT -
Housing benefits
Wagesand  Social insurance and other Share-based
Name Fees salaries expenses employee benefits compensation Total
- EEERR  MRGARER ;
#e fig HERER AR AthESEA E) &5t
RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000
ARET T ARET T ARETT ARET T
Evecutive directors H1EE
Mr. WU Di Rtk - 1,011 10 28 27,692 28,741
Mr. HAO Shengchun g - 1,193 10 i 79 1310
Mr. TANG Guozhong iyt - 1,151 10 28 79 1,268
s, ZHANG Jianhua gt - 737 - - 79 816
Independent Non-executve divectors B/ #31/7EF
Mr. Qu Wenzhou B 19 - - - - 19
Ms. Xin Zhu gt 19 - - - - 19
M Tam Chi Chol ik 19 - - - - 19
57 4,092 30 84 27,929 32192
The directors received emoluments from the Group for the BZE2019F12H31BIEFE - EFHAE
year ended 31 December 2019 as follows: EESHMemT
Housing benefits
Social insurance and other Share-based
Name Fees  Wages and salaries expenses  employee benefis compensation Total
| o | BERIR  iBbARE ;
e k3 e R HRAX  RbEEEA GE) @t
RB00D RHBOOO RIBOOD RBOOO RIBOOD RBOOO
ARETI N ARETT ARETR AR¥TT AREFT
Evecutive directors HEE
Wr. WU DI Rigth - 1002 19 7 2,154 30
Mr. HAO Shengchun WHELE - 1,184 19 i 63 1293
Mr. TANG Guozhong EEZLE - 1142 19 7 63 151
Ms. ZHANG Jianhuz FeEnt - 695 - - 63 758
Independent Non-executve divectors B/ #31/78 %
Mr. Qu Wenzhou EUhRE - - - - - -
Ms. Xin Zhu it - - - - - -
Mr. Tam Chi Choi Epind - - - - - -
- 403 57 81 0383 26504
& President of the Company & PIN/NGIFE S
Mr. Qu Wenzhou, Ms. Xin Zhu and Mr. Tam Chi Choi were EXMNELE FHREZTREBEESTEER
appointed as the Independent Non-executive Directors of 20205 11 H20 B EZ £ R R RIE Y IEH
the Company on 20 November 2020. They did not receive TEE - HE2019F12A31HILEFE &

any emolument during the year ended 31 December 2019. SHEWENERIENE -
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e MR

44 BENEFITS AND

INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS

(Continued)

(b)

Directors’ retirement benefits

During the year ended 31 December 2020 and 2019, there
were no additional retirement benefit received by the
directors except for the emoluments as disclosed in (a)
above.

Directors’ termination benefits

During the year ended 31 December 2020 and 2019, no
payments to the directors of the Company as compensation
for the early termination of the appointment.

Consideration provided to third parties for making
available directors’ services

No consideration was provided to or receivable by third
parties for making available directors’ services subsisted
at the end of or at any time during the year ended 31
December 2020 and 2019.

Information about loans, quasi-loans and other
dealings in favour of directors, controlled bodied
corporate by and connected entities with such
directors

Except for the balances disclosed in Note 40(b), no loans,
quasi-loans and other dealings in favour of directors,
controlled bodied corporate by and connected entities
with such directors subsisted at the end of or at any time
during the year.

interests

Directors’ material

arrangements or contracts

in transactions,

Except for the transactions disclosed in Note 40(a), no
significant transactions, arrangements and contracts in
relation to the Group's business to which the Company was
a party and in which a director of the Company had interests,
whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of 31
December 2020 and 2019 or at any time during the year.

44 EFEETANRER(E)

(b)

EHENKRER

HZE2020F K2019F 12 A3 BIEEE @ B
Fil@BEE M - EEHEESET
A EMRAREF o

EERBER

HZE2020F K2019F 1231 HIEEE » #
BMAANREZTIMERRERIEZEN
FERFIE o

RERHESRBAE=FIRE

H E2020%F %2019 12 A31 B IEFE R
F R A EEREE S RE MR
FoAYNSEE=AERRE -

BBEUNES  ESNZEFEERE
BEEEAZZANER  EERKH
bR 5% B

BRBT FE40(0) TR B O AE BRSO - MFRKF
NEMAER - SIERREUNES EFHX
EHZEREEERARBANER - £
ERNEMRS -

EENRS - ZHRSHNEAES

BrBTFE40@ FT I BRI R HIN + R2020F K
2019 12 A31 BRI FREMFERE + XA
AESMERARR I LEBAEEERE
BrZEARS THEREHPHEFEMNE
ok AL o
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ARERBZERARAT - —ZT-TFFH

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

On 6 January 2021, the Company issued 30,144,000 ordinary
shares of USS0.01 each at the subscription price of HK$4.56 per
share to public pursuant to an over-allotment option granted
in conjunction with Public Offering for a total consideration of
HK$137,457,000 (equivalent to approximately of RMB114,578,000).
The difference between the net proceeds of HK$135,385,000
(equivalent to approximately of RMB112,821,000), after deducting
share issuance cost of HK$2,072,000 (equivalent to approximately
of RMB1,727,000) and the issued and fully-paid up share capital
of HK$2,337,000 (equivalent to approximately RMB1,947,000),
amounting to HK$133,048,000 (equivalent to approximately
RMB110,874,000) was credited to the share premium account
in 2021.

45

e MR

HEREIR

R2021F1 68 © KRARERAAFAEBEERE
EREABREERERAREZRBESTRL6
7S LB 1T S IR E {E0.01 3 7T F930,144,000 % 8
B 4R (B 5137,457,0008 TL(HHER AR
114,578,0007C ) ° FT5% 7K 18 135,385,00078 7T ( 48
BN ARE112,821,0007T) (K ID 21T
752,072,000/ 7T (48 & R 4 A R #1,727,0007T) )
B3 B BT R IR 42,337,000/ T (FBE R4 A
R #1,947,0007T ) 2 Al 8 Z 58 133,048,000/ 7T (1
ERHARE110,874,0007C) B R2021 FE AR E

Binim B
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY
MBEHME

CONSOLIDATED RESULTS mEeXE
2017 2018 2019 2020
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000

ARBTT ARBTT ARETT ARBT R

Revenue Wz 4,019,267 5,495,610 8,108,026 10,588,379
Gross profit EF 966,383 1,525,293 2,185,373 2,695,925
Profit before income tax A1 E 753,734 1,083,602 1,407,864 1,715,655
Income tax expenses SR> (340,573) (495,439) (780,451) (765,706)
Profit for the year ERER 413,161 588,163 627,413 949,949
— Owners of the Company —ARAHERA 424,056 683,632 710,256 715,372
— Non-controlling interests — IR (10,895) (95,469) (82,843) 234,577
413,161 588,163 627413 949,949
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL POSITION LSBT FEARR
As at 31 December
M12A318
2017 2018 2019 2020
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000

ARETT ARBETT ARETTT ARBTR

Total non current assets FRBEELE 3,557,989 3,365,927 4,726,351 8,298,106
Total current assets RBEEARE 22,868,085 27,790,300 32,312,610 38,957,192
Total assets EEAR 26,426,074 31,156,227 37,038,961 47,255,298
Total non current liabilities FAREEEAE 8,186,234 5,802,775 6,673,953 8,998,643
Total current liabilities RBEEAEE 17,592,525 23,947,961 27,280,715 30,334,677
Total liabilities BEAE 25,778,759 29,750,736 33,954,668 39,333,320

Equity attributable to owners of the Z&2A RHH AEIGER
Company 643,982 1,394,006 2,877,182 4,900,172
Non-controlling interests FERER 3,333 11,485 207,111 3,021,806

Total equity ERARE 647,315 1,405,491 3,084,293 7,921,978
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